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Beck, in the fall of 1835. Roussesu removed his goods, which were such as were
required for the Indian trade, to Leesburg, after that village was laid outy soon
after, Thomas & Runyan opened up, in 1836, and Michael Horan, in 1837. The
history of this village, which was the parent settlement of the county, will cccupy
another chapter, however. The agriculture of the county will be comprehended
in the doings of the Agricultural Society.

There are a number of beautiful prairies, noted for fertility—the principal of
these are Little Turkey, Big Turkey and Bone Prairie, with an aggregate of about
10,000 acres in area. There are s number of wet prairies, many of which are
being reclaimed by ditching, as the following statement, from the County Auditor's
office, shows :

Ji ish Adams’s ditch
Samuel R. Valentine's ditch
Kindig and Irwin’s ditch
John G. McNamara's ditch
Jucob Doremire’s ditche................. errubssanevdees sestssues:
James Cook’s ditch
Levy Teuney’s ditch
Abram Haas’ ditch

7,215 feet long.
7,090 feet long.
17,550 feet long.
4,300 feet long.
6,150 feet long.
2,650 feet long.
9,318 feet long
2,900 feet long.

Thomas Rhinehart's ditch 7,400 feet long.
Herman I. Stevens’ ditch.............. . 7,425 feet long.
William M¢Namara's ditch 30,850 feet long.
Jobn Gl e Aol L i vsnsessssisens sesesaasasasseies 8,700 feet long.

There was originally & heavy growth of walnut, maple, hickory and oak, but
the giants of these forests have succumbed to the woodman’s ax. The southern
part of the county was, as a rule, densely wooded, until the soil was taken for cul-
tivation. The northern portion of the county is level and gently rolling, while in
the eastern, central and southern parts, the land rises into considerable hills and
ridges. The soil is generally easily tilled and very productive, yielding large crops.

CONTEST FOR THE COUNTY SEAT; OTHERWISE, “THE CLIPPING
QUESTION.”
BY WILLIAM C GRAVES.

In the early period of its history, Warsaw had much to contend with, and for
many years its prosperity was greatly retarded by unfortunate occurrences. Hav-
ing been laid out in the year 1836, when money was plentiful and all Western
towns improving at & rapid rate, it ought to, and otherwise would have obtained
a good start in building and other improvements.

John B. Chapman, on behalf of himself and the other proprietors of the place,
held the first sale of lots in June, of that year. The lots were bid off at good
prices—higher than theysold for at suy time in the succeeding twenty years, But
the other proprietors, all of whom lived at a distance, and were engaged in other
and more interesting speculations, thought the prices too low and refused to ratify
the sales, save of u few lots which sold at high prices. The remainder were with-
drawn from the market, and for several years it was with great difficulty that a
person wanting a lot could find a proprietor to sell Lim one.

The next year, 1837, came tie great financial crash, the most disastrous in the
history of the nation, which brought down the price of all real estate, and caused
a very general suspension of Western imy ments for several years. And, as if
Warsaw's cup of misery was not yet full, about this time came the unkindest cut
of all, the so-called e/ipping question, which began to assume formidable propor-
tions. 1t served to render any investment in Warsaw property extremely hazard-
vus and likely to prove a total loss.

This clipping question was a project by interested parties to effect a removal of
the county seat from Warsaw, by clipping or detaching some six miles from the
southern end of the county, and thus through the center north of Warsaw and
near to the more dense settlements of the prairie region.

It is true that the early settlers were imbued with the belief that Leesburg was
the most suitable place for the seat of justice; and as early as December, 1835, a
petition was forwarded from that place to Indianapolis, to the care of the Hon. E.
M. Chamberlain, then the Representative from this district, praying that body to
lessen its area by detaching six miles wide of territory from its southern extremity.
This it was desired to do in anticipation of the appointment, at that session, of
Commissioners to locate the seat of justice, who would then find, on their arrival,
the geographical center to be near Leesburg. But no effort was made beyond
forwarding the petition by mail to their Representative, who presented the same,
had it referred, and that was the last of it, Hada lobby of two or three gone
with 1t, the effort could not but have succeeded, for Chamberlain was friendly to
the project, Warsaw had then no existence, and there were not twenty voters in
the central part of the county, nor, in fact, in all the county south of the Tippe-
canoe River. The true reason for an absence of effort at this time was a confident
feeling at Leesburg that its superior cluims for the county seat could not well be
ignored in any event.

But events shaped thewselyes differently ; the seat of justice was located at
Warsaw, or, we should rather say, in the center of the county, and the plat of War-
saw was laid out and recorde The selection was acquiesced in with scarcely a
murmur, und the feeling prevailed for a time that being in the center of a large
county of excellent lund, it must become a thriving and growing pluce. The sale
of lots before referred to was lurgely attended, the bidding was brisk and most of
the business men of the the other villages announced a determination to remove to
Warsaw. But all its prospects were blighted by the differences among the pro-
prietors, resulting as they did in the withdrawal of the lots from market and the
failure of the propri to take any further interest in the place. Chapman, the
only proprietor wko vesided in the county, when he found the other proprietors
would not ratify his sale, sold out to thewm all his interest and withdrew from the
concern, and the other proprietors scarcely ever returned to the place.

This sudden stoppage of improvements at Warsaw revived the talk in favor of
sowe other point, and the question of removal began to be agitated. Soon a power-
ful opposition to Warsaw muanifested itself, which established the clipping question
upon a formidable basis. A firm of wealthy men, Messrs. Barbee, Willard &
French, laid off the village of Oswego, on Tippecanoe Lake, with the publicly-
expressed intention of effectiug a removal of the seat of justice to that point.
They erccted mills and made other improvements, and, by the liberal use of
money, Oswego soon becume u popular and thriving village. The Oswego interest
effected o combination with some land-holders in the south part of the county,
which had the effect of arraying the setters in the south against Warsaw. These
land-holders had in view the formation of & new county out of parts of Koseiusko,
Wabash and Miami Counties, and the securing of a seat of justice in Clay Town-
ship. Thus an almost solid combination was formed against Warsaw by the people
of the south, ns well as northeast, of Warsaw, to a greater distance than three
miles. Beyond that distance, in these directions, Warsaw had but few friends.
The center only was a unit for Warsaw, and that was numerically weak. The citi-
zens, generally, of Milford, of Leesburg, and to the west of the latter place, were
for Warsaw. Butthere was an evident majority of the voters of the county favorably
disposed toward the Clippers, principally actuated by motives of self-interest, and
the project of clipping could not have failed of success if the local question could
have been brought to u square test. But the complications incident to national
politics could not be avoided, and, somehow or other, they would sadly interfere
with the arrangements of the Clippers just when success seemed ready to crown
their efforts.

Messrs. Barbee, Willard & French were Whigs, but several others of the more
prominent Clippers were of the Democratic persuasion, and were enabled to enlist
influential Demoeratic leaders elsewhere in their behalf. By means of this influ-
ence, they nearly succeeded in accomplishing their designs in the year 1839. In
that year, the Democracy were generally successful at the polls throughout the
State. Kosciuzko County gave a Democratic majority of ninety-three for Congress.
A. L. Wheeler, Esq., of Plymouth, was elected to the Legislature from Marshall
and Kosciusko, receiving a decided majority in each county. This Senatorial Dis-
triet, however, composed of the same counties, with the addition of the county of
St. Joseph, wils represented in that body by a Whig, elected in 1838—the Hon.
Thomas D. Baird, & very able and popular man.

When the Legisiature met in December, 1839, Wheeler, with the able assistance
of Judge Long, of Franklin County, champioued the cause of the Clippers in the
House, and, after & stormy contest, succeeded in passing through that body the bill
to divide the county. Baird, however, in the Senate, espoused the cause of War-
saw, and msade o series of brilliant speeches in denunciation of the scheme, and
finally succeeded in defeating ihe bill by a small majority.

Having been so nearly successful, the Clippers now felt sure of ultimate tri-
umph, and prepared for another and more vigorous effort. But the year 1840,
unluckily for them, brought uround that most remarkable political campaign in our
national history, the © Log Cubin and Hard Cider” contest, which was destined,
during its continuance, to overshadow end dwarf all other questions. In vain did

French, who, by the wey, bad remarkable telent 8s an organizer, endeavor to rally !

his Democratic and Whig Clippers in a common cause, and induce them to support
Clippers for office, without regard to political considerations. Dearly as they loved
the Clipper cause, they would drift into the political currents. Whigs would sup-
port Whigs, and D support D without regard to their status on
the local question. The prominent men of Warsaw and of Leesburg were Whigs.
The Whigs of Warsaw wanted Peter L. Runyan, Sr., for Representative on both
political end local grounds, and the Whigs of Leesburg, feeling no interest in com-
mon with Oswego, stood by the Whigs of Warsaw. A convention to nominate Whig
candidates for Senator and Representative, was held in March of that year, in
Plymouth. The Whigs of St. Joseph and Marshall were enthusiastically for Baird,
for Senator, on political and personal grounds. This suited the Whigs of Warsaw
and Leesburg, and he was unanimously renominated. In return, the Whigs of
Marshall County went for Runyan, who received the nomination for Representa-
tive. French and some of his friends were present, and protested against both
nominations, but it was wholly useless The battle cry was ‘- Harrison and Tyler,”
and naught else could receive a hearing. Warsaw was so fortunate as to be able to
suit herself with candidates both locally and politically, and a Whig nomination
then was equivalent to an election. This virtually settled the clipping question
for that year. The formality was gone through with, as usual, of presenting to the
Legislature petitions with a formidable array of signers, but they received little
attention.

In 1841, the political excitement had abated, and the people were again in a
mood to pay attention to local questions. The Clippers became more active, deter-
mined, and confident of success. But, ns the sequel shows, they were again to be
foiled by political interference. The county had mow been joined with Whitley
County, for Representative purposes. The Whigs of Warsaw and Leesburg, with
the aid of those of Whitley, again succeeded in nominating Runyan. French now
determined that he should be beaten, and, though a Whig himself, announced him-
self as a candidate, in which he had the promised support of most of the Demo-
cratic leaders. But two others also announced themselves as candidates—John R.
Blain, of Leesburg, a Whig, and Joseph Hale, of Prairie Township, a Democrat.
At the election, French led the others, receiving a solid support in the southern
townships, and the principal support of the northeast. Runyan came next, receiv-
ing the solid support at Warsaw of both parties, a fair share of the Whig support
at Leesburg, and some scattering Whig votes throughout the county. In the county,
he fell some thirty votes behind French. Blain received a respectable vote, draw-
ing his support mostly from those who would otherwise have supported French.
Hall received but a small vote in the county, all the influential Democrats support-
ing French. Whitley County decided the contest. The Democrats supported Hall
on political grounds, and the great majority of the Whigs supporting Runyan
because he had the regular Whig nomination. In the two counties, Runysn had
some thirty majority over French, and Warsaw was again vietorious.

French laid his defeat to Blain, who drew his votes from French’s district, east
of Leesburg. It is certain that if Hale had not been a candidate, French would
have received the Democratic vote of Whitley, because Runyan was known as the
regular Whig candidate.

These succe: defeats, owing mainly to the interference of national politics,
served to greatly discournge the Clippers, as it left them without friends in the Leg-
islature. They made, however, a very vigorous effort the ensuing winter, by
means of delegates to the lobby, armed with long petitions, and greatly worried the
poor inhabitunts of Warsaw. who had to counteract them in the same manner and
at great expense. The petitioning was kept up for still another year, but the
effo adunlly weakened and died out. In 1843, the County Commissioners
became satisfied that the question was settled, and put the present Court House
under contract.

The excitement lasted about four years, and, at times, ran so high that the peo-
ple of the neighboring counties became interested, and took sides in argument.
Warsaw was greatly injured in character at a distance, because the grossest false-
hoods were circulated as to the health of the plaee, and people abroad really
came o believe that it was beyond comparison the most unhealthy location in the
Western country. It was asserted and believed by many that one reason why the
place did not improve more than it did was that few people could live there long
enongh to build a house. Warsaw hus slowly recovered from this prejudice, but it
will yet require time entirely to efface the impression from the minds of those who
have never lived Lere, but believed what they heard.

GEOLOGY.

‘The State Geologist, E. T\ Cox, in his report concerning the survey made during
1575, failed to make any examination of this county, except the soundings and
temperature of four of her lakes, and these were so imperfectly made that the
rvesults are not relinble. That there are very important formations in Kosciusko
County, which it was the province of the State Geologist to examine and report, is
abundantly proved by the following, from explorations and analyses by Dr. F.
Moro, a gentleman who does everything thoroughly and scientifically :

Minerals found in Orchard Field, being on the southeast quarter of Section 30,
Town 32 north, Range 6 east, owned by Metcalfe Beck. [From a letter to Mr.
Beck. |
““Mr. M. Beek:

* Dear Sir—1 take great pleasure in handing you the result of the analysis of
soil which 1 obtained from the field upon your farm. * * ¥ Agyou may not
be able to make out the symbols, I will here explain: No. A. is ferras sulphate, or
green vitriol, chemically pure. T obtained it from those chunks of ore which we
brought to the city with us. B. was obtained by washing the earth and allowing
the finer portions to precipitate, drying, etc. This is a very fine minersl paint,
yielding nearly 50 Ibs to every 100 Ibs. Chemically, red oxide of iron. C. was
obtained from B. by the latter process. It is entirely free from sand. D.isa pure
oxide of iron—the finest paint, and used by workers in gold and silver for polish-
ing, called in commerce, ‘ coleothar,’ or ‘jeweler's rouge.’! It is absolutely free
from vegetable matter. E. is carbonized oxide of iron, a finer article, used in the
same manner. [ find in that soil per cent of vegetable matter, which would
make it produce fair, and, in favorable seasons, even good crops.”” * * #

Kosciusko County lies within the drift formation of the Bowlder Epoch, the
Upper Silurian being covered with transported material to a depth, probably, of
150 feet on the southeast, to 200 feet on the northwest of the county, the range of
stratification being from southeast to northwest with a dip of 10°.

3 Farrells put down a well near Silver Lake, which reached a depth of
121 feet, passing the following strata :

Feet.
Black loam. . 4 Sand, white.... 3%
18  Hard-pan, gray 6
15  Sand, white, fin 3
1 . 6 Hard-pan.. 6
Hard-pan,blue attop, gray at bottom 30  Hard-pan, with sand 5
Sand, fine, light. 7  Sand, fine and white, 5
Hard-pan, gray.. 8  Small bowlders....... 4}
Total 121

At this point, water rose seventy-
was not yet reached.

A well was sunk in the city (of Warsaw) by Mr. O. P. Jaques, 120 feet, the
bore passing through similar formations to those just described. The water rose
to within two feet of the surface. A well eighty feet deep at Etna Green gives
abundance of good water. From these deep wells, it will be seen that the depth
of the transient deposits is in conformity to what has been stated, and that seventy
feet of the bowlder drift over Kosciusko County is stiff, tenacious clay, with an
oceasional parting of sand, transient rock and pebbles. At some points, this clay
has become very hard—is termed ‘* hard-pan.”” It is impervious to water, and
serves as the bottom ef the many lakelets in the county.

These deposits extend over the whole of Northern Indiana, Southern Michigan
and the northwestern portion of Obio, and were brought from the great lakes by
glacial agency—great fields of ice, floating in a sea which then covered the whole
Mississippi Valley, from the Polar Sea to the Gulf of Mexico, and which have
deposited their loads of granite, basalt, spar, iron, clay, etc., over this portion of
the State. Attrition, erosion and atmospheric agenci ave d posed these
formati and the | g mixture constituting the bowlder drift has given
to this country a soil unsurpassed in productiveness.

The clay of this county is well adapted to making brick and tile, and abounds
in every township. A fine, lacustral clay abounds in some portions of the county,
and is well suited to the finer grades of stoneware.

The following analysis is from M. Dewart's fnrm,'Wubinglon township : Silica,
62.60 ; alumina, 27.98 ; oxide of iron, traces ; magnesia, .61 ; lime, .39 ; water, 8.44;
total, 100.00. This is 2 valuable clay, and is found in other parts of the
county.
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. Mineral Paint.—Various compounds of iron—red, brown, yellow, buff and dark
red—are found in large quantities in the central and southern townships. The
Inrgest deposits are found in Seward, Clay and Jackson Townships.

Bog Iron—Is found in large quantities. The course of the Tippecanoce River is
marked with deposits of this metal. Every bog, marsh, and many points of high
land, discovers its presence. Iron is found on Mr. H. Kelly’s land, in Plain Town-
ship, and on Mr. Metcalfe Beck’s land, in Wayne Township. Blue carbonate of
iron is found in Washington and Tippecanoe Townships. A few years ago, some
of the iron of this section was smelted in furnaces loeated at Rochester, Fulton
County, Mishawaka, St. Joseph County, and Lima, La Grange County, but the
expense of fuel caused the parties to abandon the enterprise. The iron produced
in these furnaces was of a superior quality, and commanded the highest price.

Peat Bogs.—Extensive beds of peat are found in every portion of this county,
which will afford abundant fuel, and by this means doubtless the iron may one day
be smelted at home, and the hydrocarbon be used for illuminating our houses.

Some of the Lakes, and their Depth.—In Kosciusko County, there are thirty-
seven depressions, which form the bed of as many lakes, some of which are small,
covering but a few acres, while others extend several miles, many of them addiug to
the beauty of the landscape.

Center Lake (joining the city on the north).—In August, 1875, Dr. G. M.
Levette, Assistant State Geologist, in company with Hon. .J. H. Carpenter and Dr.
F. Moro, made soundings of this lake. The greatest depth found was forty-two
feet. Subsequently, Dr. Moro, 0. P. Jagues and Ancil B, Ball, County Auditor,
took soundings, and found a depth of forty-nine feet, and au average depth of thir-
ty-three feet, with a bottom of light-colored clay and fine sand, marsh ooze and
mud on the south and northwest shores. This later sounding was sent to the
State Geologist, and accepted by him. This lake is supplied with springs and dis-
charges into the Tippecanoe River. August 20, 1870, in company with Edmund
G. Green and Aaron T. Ball, Dr. Moro sounded Pike Lake, northeast of Warsaw,
and found its greatest depth to be thirty-six feet, and the average twenty four

and two-fifths feet. The bottom, clay and sand, with marsh ooze on the southeast bor-
der. This lake is fed by a small stream emptying intoit from the east, and it dis-
charges into the Tippecanoe River. Eagle Lake is about two miles long, aud near

three-quarters wide, being in the shape of a crescent ; was found to he seventy
eight feet deep. It is doubtless the deepest water in the State. The water of thesc
lakes is remarkably clear, and free from mineral matter. Analysis gives carbonate
of lime, silica, alumina, magnesia and traces of iron.

Sunken Lakes—At least one has been discovered, by the sinking out of sight of a
portion of the P., Ft. W. & C. Ry. (since recovered by filling, until a firm foundation
is believed to exist), this took place where the road 1 the Tamarack ma
east of town, and it is probable that other such lake When this pie
road disappeared, clear water with fish, fi re generally
surrounded with a heavy growth of marsh grass, which is v invading the
water, and peat formations are on the increase, so that it is not improbahle that
they will ultimately give way to peat beds. The pioncers used peat for fuel, and
the day may come when it will constitute the chief fuel fertilizer, peat is
more valuable than plaster, and many of the high priced nrti

Chalybeate Water.—This is found in almost parts of the county, in springs
and wells. Sulphur, saline and saline sulphuret waters abound. A well at
Lake shows a temperature of 54 degrees, and by an is i light acid reaction
—eighteen grains solid matter to the gallon, with tr: nic matter, carbonic
acid gas, silicic ncid, lime, magnesia, soda, potash, sulphur and iron,

Fosls.—A bone from the foot of a mastodon, tound by Mr. Il Smith, whila
digging a well on the high ridge west of Warsaw—this was found twenty-six feet
below the surface, in coarse gravel. A si nged elk’s horn, six feet long.
found in Harrison Township, by Mr. And it wus two feet below the surface,
and in good preservation. Petrified moss, a few trilobites and crinoids have bheen
found, and in Washington Township some very fine belemuites and geodes have
been found. These fossils and petrifactions were sent to the State Geologist and
Franklin College. A few arrow and spear-points, tomahawks and skinning-knives
of flint, have been found. From what we have seen, it is clear that the geology of
Kosciusko County has been unfairly overlooked. A geode or belemnite, brought to
light by erosion in Kosciusko County, is as expressive and tells as much of past
history, as the same formations found in Jennings, Pike or Putnam Counties. A
generous State should make liberal appropriations for a proper, impartial geologi-
cal survey of the whole State. This done, an appreciative people would soon come
in and possess the goodly land.

of

COUNTY BUILDINGS.
COURT HOUSE.

The records of the first court show that an adjournment was taken from Lees-
burg to Warsaw, and convened the second term of court at the house of Jacob
Losier, from which an adjournment was taken to the Court House. This was u
temporary structure located on Lot 101, northeast corner of Center and Indiann
streets, built in the winter and spring of 1837—a one-story frame, 20x30 feet—
courtroom divided off twenty feet square, leaving two rooms ten feet square each,
for jury rooms. The first term of court was held here in March, 1837, Judge
Samuel C. Sample, presiding; Judges Comstock and Perrine, Associate Judges;
Richard H. Lansdale, Clerk; Isaac Kirkendall, Sheriff. The attorneys present
were G. A. Everts, of La Porte, . M. Chamberlain and John B. Chapman, of
Goshen, Kosciusko County.

During the summer of 1837, a fire caught in the leaves of the redbrush and
burnt down the Court House, to the relief of the citizens generally. During the
summer and fall of the same year (1837), a twe-story house was built on the same
ground, and continued in use until 1848, when the present Court House, in the
center of Court House Square, was completed. This buiiding is of woud, and
though inexpensive, costing only $4,200, presents a pleasing appearance. The
county offices are in a substantial two-story brick building, north of the Court
House, built at a cost of about $4,500. The first jail was built shortly after the
first Court House (that burned), it was of logs about fourteen inches squarc; the
lower story was ¢ double-thick,”’ the upper single. The only entrance to the lower
part was through a trap-door in the floor of the upper story, through which prison-
ers were let down by a ladder, which was then pulled up and the door shut down.
The building was about. sixteen feet square, and sMuated near the center of the
Court House Square. This subsequently gave way to a brick structure in one cor-
ner of Court House Square, and this in turn to the spacious, substantial stone
building, including the Sheriff’s residence, overlooking the lake from Indiana street.
The building is one of the most tasteful in architectural unity in the State; it was
compieted in 1870, at a cost of $48,000.

COUNTY INFIRMARY.

The Infirmary of Kosciusko County is-a large, fine brick building, 40x80 feet
square, two stories high. It is situated on a slight elevation near the Peru road,
on the county farm, about one and a half miles south of Warsaw. and was built in
1874. Bradford G. Cosgrove was the architect and Charles W. Chapman con-
tractor. The cost, completed, was $7,400. It is well managed by the Superin-
tendent, Oliver Dewey. There are, at the present time (June, 1879), thirty-two
inmates, consisting principally of women and children. The few that are able to
perform manual labor are required to do all they can in assisting in the labors of
the farm. The farm consists of one hundred and fifteen acres of excellent, thick
timbered land, nearly one hundred ¢f which are under a fine state of cultivation.
The unfortunates that are compelled, by accident or misfortune, to subsist on the
charities of the public are well cared for and all their actual wants are supplied.

WAYNE TOWNSHIP.

The first settlement made within the bounds of what is now Wayne Township,
was during the summer of 1834, by Peter Warner, William Kelly and John
Knowles ; they came from Wayne County, Ohio. Peter Warner settled northwest
of Warsaw, on the farm now owned by John Sloan; he built the first saw-mill in
the township, near the west line of Section 36, on Tippecanoe River.

The first store in the township was by Judge James Comstock; it was on the
northeast quarter of Section 29, Township 32, Range 6 east. The first item sold
over a counter in this township was half 2 pound of C: dish tobacco, to Benjami
Bennett, by Metcalfe Beck, then clerk for Mr. Comstock ; the sale took place on
Thursday, July 2, 1835 ; the following October, the store was removed to Leesburg.
[The foregoing information furnished by Metcalfe Beck.] June 29, 1836, the
county of Kosciusko was divided into three townships, to wit: Turkey Creek,
Plain and Wayne ; at that time, the latter contained all of what is now Towns 32, 31
and the north half of 80; and, March 8, 1838, another divide was made, and
Wayne was made to contain Town 32 north, Range 5 east, six miles square ; after-
ward Harrison Township ceded to Wayne Township one and one-half mile strip on the
west side, making Wayne Township, in ares, six miles by seven and oue-half miles.
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ARTICLE IV.

Secrion 1. Each member, at the time of signing the Constitutior, shall pay to the
Secretary the sum of 25 cents, for the purpose of defraying the expenses of the
Society, and the further sum of 25 cents at each annual meeting.

Sec. 2. Members of sixty years of age at the time of signing this Constitution,
shall not be required to pay any subsequent dues; and each younger member as
he arrives at the age of sixty years. shall become exempt from dues.

Skc. 3. Should the financial necessities of the Society require it, they may
employ some competent person to lecture, charging a price for admission, or by any
other laudable expedient raise money for the purposes of the Society.

ARTICLE V—OF MEETINGS.

Secrion 1. The Society shall hold at least one meeting annually, in the town of
Warsaw, on such day and at such place in said town, as the Secretary may desig-
nate by printed notices in some public newspaper, for the space of thirty days pre-
vious to the time fixed uponp for any such meeting.

Skc. 2. The Society may also hold semi-annual meetings in each year, at such
other place within the county as may be designated at the regular meeting held in
Warsaw, and the same shall be conducted as regular meetings.

ARTICLE VI.

Skc. 2. As the main object of the Society is the completion of a correct history
of the county, all the meetings of the Society shall have this object in view, and it
will be regarded as the duty of each member of the Society to furnish the Secre-
tary, at his carliest convenience, with a written statement, reciting all facts within
his knowledge concerning the early settlement thereof, or he may embody the
same in an address to the Society, which, after its delivery, shall be filed with the
Secretary.

Sec. 3. The Society may select any resident of this county or of an adjoining
county to deliver an address at the following meeting upon some subject pertinent
to the Society, but no expense shall be incurred for sucl address unless a price of
admission is char

Ske. 4. At the expiration of two years from the formation of this Society, it
may, if it deem its collection of facts sufficient to justify it, appoint a committee
consisting of 1ot more than five persons, of whom the Secretary shall be one, and
three of them may form a quorum, whose duty it shall be to carefully examine
und compare all the papers, documents and records in the possession of the Secre-
tary, and properly arrange the same into an historieal narration of the settlement
and progress of the county and report the same to the Society at its next annual
mecting for its action.

MEMBERSHIP.

On motion of Hon.

James S. Frazer, those knowing themselves to be old settlers,
under the Constitution requested to come forward, subseribe their names and
pay the initiation fee of 25 cents; at the same time they were requested to give
the date of their settlement in the county. The following persons complied with
the requirements of the Constitution nnd became members

Benjamin Bennett.. 1833  A. C. Cory Sept., 1833
Elkanah Huffman. Mrs. Alfr .. 188
Mrs. Regina Leedy Jacob Smith, ng., 1833
David McClary.. Rudolph Hyar 1832

Benjamin Yohn
Isanc Tibbitts.
Joseph Blodget

Mre. Elen Barnes.c..ciiusinsosss ssssse

1831
+July, 1830

.. %1827
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¢ It took about an hour to get down all the names, and it did a pergon good to
sec with what anxiety the persons entitled to do so pressed forward to have their
names recorded by the secretaries.”

OFFICERS,

It being settled who were members and entitled to vote, the follc
were elected for the ensuing year: David Rippey, I'resident: Willi:
and William Felkner, Vice Presidents; George Moon, Treasurer,
Willinms, Secretary.  Whereupon the Society adjourned to meet
Grounds at 1 o’clock P. M.

g ofticers
m (. Graves
and Reuben
it the PBuir-

AT THE FALR-GROUND.
The beautiful Fair-Ground was in excellent condition for a pic-nic, thick shade
covering almost every foot of the inclosure.
SPEECHES.

The assembly was called to order by the President, and old setilers were called

“The old nan eloquent '
He was followed by Mr
David
, John Mahemson awd a number of
ames H. Carpenter reminded the audicnce
that one of the first and suiost enie L ns had not been heard trom.  ile
referred to old Veter Warner, who built the first mill in the county, also the first
church, and out of his own funds—at the time of this meeting said to veside in
Towa. Rev. O. V. Leamon took pleasure in saying that Peter Warner was n
man. David Rippey praised him, and said that he was in needy ¢ ¢
Rev. Mr. Leamon proposed a contributian, and started it with $1, and guii
number joined him. The Society soon after adjourned. The foregoing was fur-
nished by William C. Graves.

others followed with happy ren

ISTORY OF KOSCIUSKO COUNTY.

KOSCIUSKO COUNTY.

This county was named by Ion. John B. Chap after Thadd Kosciuzk
a young Polish noble of distinguished family and large estate, who, having not
very long before been graduated from the French Military School at Versailles,
nppeared in America, and offered his services to Washington in the cause of
American freedom. This philanthropic daring it was, doubtless, attracted Mr.
Chapman as he read the narrative, and he could overlook the little episode-—a love
affuir at home, whose sequel was disappointment, and had impe}led the young Pole
toeleave liis native country; this inspired his philanthropie spirit, and his innate
love of liberty pointed to the conflict then raging in the New World, as the fittest
place to seek forgetfulness of selt in working out the good of others. In order
that he might battle for freedom in erica with a clearer conscience, one of his
earlicst acts hald been to liberate the serfs upon his ancestral estates. On reaching
America, he was cordially received by the Colenial commanders, and assigned by
Washington toa position as his Aid-de-camp. That he fought courageously through-
out the conflict; that he was the warm persoun! friend of Washington and Jeffer-
son ; that he was Commander-in-Chicf of the Polish army in the famous uprising
of Polanid in 1794 and that.he was defeated and thrown into prison by the event
of the disastrous battle of Maaieowice, nve all matters of history. But there are,
perhaps, few now living who are aware of the fict of his having left behind him
in America o testimonial of his fervent love of liberty ; so enthusiastic that it
takes the colors of poetic beauty, and as eminently characteristic of the man, as
was his famous reply to the Emperor Paul, who, on his release from prison, wished
to restore him his sword:

T have now no need of a sword, since I have no longer a country.”

And now, notwithstanding no lese authority than the poet Thomas Campbell,
bas stamped the noble Pole as among the first patriots of earth, and given to the
world those beautiful lines,

for n season, bade the world farewe
fom shrieked when Koscinsko fel

We will have to correct lis mode of spelling the name of the county, and hint
at the propriety of legalizing this change, for 1o continue to mis-spell the name of
oue whom we xo much admire, is to admit greater ignorance than can be passed by
in silence.  Read the following record: 1In the Clerk’s office, in the Circuit Court
of Albemarle County, Va., hidden away among dusty records, lies a budget of
time-stained documents, which bears the inscription—* Wills. 1819." In this
packet has slept, buried and alinost forgotten for more than fifty years, the will
and testan ont of Thaddeus Kosciuzko. It is a holograph, and genuine beyond
doubt, as attested by Mr. Jefferson himself. The chirography is clear and bold,
and the paper whereon it is inscribed is still well preserved, although bearing
unmistakably the marks of its antiquity. The will was written by Kosciuzko in
1708, on the oceasion of his visit to America during that year, when, having been
released from prison by the Emperor, Paul I, of Russia, he came to renew
his old associations, and, perhaps, again, if possible, to forget for awhile his sad
recollections of his later sorrows in Poland, in the company of such of his trans-
atlantic comrades of the Revolution as then still survived. The will reads as
follows :

I, Thaddeus Kosciuzko, being just in my departure from America, do hereby
declare and direct that, should | make no other testamentary disposition of my
property in the United States, I hereby authorize my friend, Thomas Jefferson, to
employ the whole thereof in purchasing negroes from among his own, or any others,
and giving them their liberty in my name ; in giving them an education in trades
or otherwise ; and, in having them instructed for their new condition in the duties
of morality which may make them good neighbors, good fathers or mothers ; and,
in their duties as citizens, teaching them to be defenders of their liberty and coun-
try, and of the good order of society, and in whatsoever may make them happy
and useful. And I make the said Thomas Jefferson my executor of this.

“ bth day of May, 1798. T. Roscruzko.”

On the third leaf of the holograph-will, is inscribed the following attestation :
‘At a Circuit Court held for Albemarle County, the 12th day of May, 1819,
*This instrument, purporting to be the last will and t ment of Thaddeus
Kosciuzko, deceased, was produced in open court, and ctory proof being
produced of its being written in the hand-writing of the said Kosciuzko. the same
was ordered to be recorded, and thereupon, Thomas Jefferson, the executor therein
named, refused to take upon himself the burden of the execution of the said will.
“ Teste : Jonxs CArg, (
So that it was not until almost two years after his death that Mr. Jefferson put
the will to record; in palliation for this, however, it will be remembered that
Mr. Jefferson’s advanced age forbade him assuming such a task. So much for the
memory of the noble Pole, and the way he wrote his name.
In the latter part of his life, he retired to Switzerland, where he died October
16, 1817, aged 61 years.

POSITION.

Kosciusko County lies in the northeast part of Indiana, and is south of the
Michigan State line twenty-three miles, and west from the Ohio State line forty-
five miles.

BOUNDARY BY COUNTIES,

Ou the north by Elkhart, south by Wabash and Fulton, east by Noble and Whit-
ley, and west hy Fulton and Marshall.

MEETS AND BOUNDS.

At the session of the (eneral Assembly of 1834-35, the boundaries of
Kosciusko County were defined and established as follows, to wit: Beginning at
the northeast corner of Section 3, Township 34 north, Range 4 east, thence east
with the line dividing Townships 34 apd 35, distance twenty-one miles, thence
south eighteen miles to the correcting pArallel; thence west with said parallel one
and three-fourths miles to the northeast corner of Township 31, Range 7 east,
thence south on the east line of Townships 31 and 30, Range 7 east, nine miles to
the southeast corner of Section 18, Township 30, Range 7 east, thence west through
the center of said Range 30 eighteen miles, thence north three miles, thence west,
between Townships 30 and 3] three miles, thence north six miles, to the correcting
parallel at the northwest corner of Section 3, Township 31, Range 4 east, thence
east with said correcting parallel, one and one-fourth miles, to the southwest cor-
ner of Section 84, Township 32, Range 4 east, thence through the center of Town-
ships 82, 83 and 34, Range 4 east, eighteen miles to the place of beginning.
Area, 558 square miles; bownds verified by Ellis Kiser, Civil Engineer for the
company.

ADDITIONAL—WATER.

The county is watered by Tippecance River, and numerous lakes which it
drains, and by Turkey Creek. The former rises in the northeast, and flows in a
southwestern direction, to the Wabash River. Turkey Creek rises in Nine-Mile
Lake, and leaves the county at the north. Eel River flows through the county, for
a short distance, in the southeastern corner.

The principal lakes are as follows: Nine-Mile Lake, in the northeast corner,
the largest in the county, being five miles long and over two in width. Tippecanoe
Lake, Eagle Lake, Little Eagle Lake, Pike Lake, Center Lake (joining Warsaw),
Barber’s Lake, Hoffman's Lake, Beaver Dam Lake, Silver Lake, Ridinger’s Lake,
Palestine Lake, Yellow Creek Lake, Walda Lake, Wawbee's Lake (corrupted from
Waw-wa-esse). There are also numerous lagoons and small streams. The
topography of the county is well adapted to agriculture and fruit culture. The cli-
mate is peculiarly pleasant; the heat of is modified by the
water courses and lakes, and the same modifying influence is found in winter, the
more intense cold being absorbed by the water. The railroad facilities secure easy
transit to the large cities of the East, West, North and South, and afford equal
facilities for shipping to and from those and intermediate points.

ORGANIZATION AND SETTLEMENT,

The lands lying within the present limits of Kosciusko County, were ceded to
the United States October 27, 1832, The President of the Commission, on the
part of the United States, was ex-Governor Jonathan Jennings  The agent for the
Indians was Gen. John Tipton. The principal chiefs were © Flat-helly,
se,” and his brother ** Musquabuc The treaty
the present site of Rochester, in Fulton County, on the south bauk of
River, three-quarters of a mile from where the Michigan Road crosses the
'he treaty w wtified January 21,18 The county houndary was establisher
February 7, 1 ind the county organized in April, 1836,

Geoneral Election—Judyes' Certificate—We do hereby certify the foregoing poll
book, of an election holden in Leesburg, on the 4th day of April, 18506, for the
purpose of electing county officers for the county of Kosciusko, is correct and
true, viz.: The number of votes are annexed to each candidate’s nume, and are
here enumerated: Samuel Stook G. W. Royce, Elisha Boggs, Judges; Pen-
Jjamin Johnson, John G. Woods, Cle April 4, 1836,

‘The poll-books enumerated 219 es by name, including candidates. The first
and subsequent officers will be found tabulated in another part of this werk.

The seat of justice was at Leesburg, until Commissioners, appointed for locating
the county seat, decided on W v, to which place the officers with their records
removed a few months Inter. The Court met there, for the first time, on the third
Monday in March, 1837, at the house of Jacob Lozier. The name Wnrsaw wus
given to the county seat by Hon. John B. Chapman, after the metropolis of
Poland. It will be remembered, that this city became noted, in the first place, on
account of the diet being transferred to it from Uracow in 1856, and from 1702,
when it surrendered to Charles X11, it became a prey to wars, and on down to Sep
tember 8, 1831, was the field of contest and blood. And while we do not institute s
comparison in the contests of that day, over the city of Warsaw, it will neverthe-
less appear, on reading the unt of the clipping question or the contest for
county seat, that our Warsaw was the subject of bitter controversy for & prolonged
period ; so bitter, that perhaps only the mighty arm of the lnw saved the contest-
ants from a sanguinary determination of the question; happily a peaceful end
came to all this; and the elegibility of the site has reconciled all parties, and the
county is prosperous.

Kosciusko County was hitherto attached to Elkhart County for judicial purposes
[see Acts of the Geueral Assembly, State of Indiana, A. D. 1831], and known by
the name of Turkey Creek Township. In anticipation of the cession of the Indian
lands within the present limits of this county, a large number of pioneers, with
their families, were waiting in the nearest organized counties, principally in Elk-
hart, for news of the ratification of the treaty of 1832, which wc open this
region for settlement, and when the news was received, made a general rush for
Turkey Creek Prairies. The roads were lined with ‘“movers,”’ many arrived the
same day. It is therefore manifestly incorrect to name any one as the first settler,
as some writers have done. True, it has been generally conceded t Thomas
Hall was in advance of all others, o far as the region south of the Elkhart River
setdement is concerned, but Mr. Hall located first and tarried for o time on Tur-
key Creek, just over the Elkhart County line, and did not come within the limits
of this county until after a number of families: and it is true that two white
settlers came hLere several years in advance of the settlement, before the lands were
open. These were Dominique Rousseau and Henry Ussem; they had permission
to trade with the Indians. Ossem resided ou the north side of Bone Prairie, and
Rousseau at the lower end of Little Prairie. To understand, however, that these
traders were not regarded as merchants, settled there, we have only to note the fact
admitted by the pioneers, that W. B. and 1. R. Blain are credited with beirg the
first who established a store, on the north side of Bone Prairie, which was in the
fall of 1834. They came from Greenfield, Ohio, and subsequently removed from
their first location to & lot of ground leased of Levi Lee, on account of its more
central location in the settlement; this was the first store established for trade
with the white settlers, and around it the present village of Leesburg grew. The
second store was established at the same place by Judge Comstock and Metcalfe
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H. Lansdale as such; the east room, weather-boarded, having & stick chimney,

The settlers of 1834 could not obtain & foothold upon either of the two prairies;

they, therefore, went to the woods; in the fall of 1834, they came in the foll 2z
order: Peter Warner, William Kelly, John Knowles, Arnold Cain, William C.
Graves, James Robi and James C k, all of whom located west and south

of Warsaw. The two last named located in the spring of 1835 ; they were A

and pied by R. H. Lansdale, for the clerk’s office. This building was burned
in 1838, having caught fire from the stick chimney. On the lot now occupied by
the book store of Runyan & Milice stood & one-story frame house, 16x18, weather-

in the summer of 1836, by Metcalfe Beck and Daniel Webb; in the fall of that
year numbers followed, smong whom were Charles Sleeper, John W. Morris,
Andrew R. Willie and John Pittenger. [Information furnished by W. C. Graves.]

During the flush times of 1835-26, when wild-cat money was plenty, the county
settled rapidly, end when Alfred Wilcox came in the fall of 1827, he found settle-
ments commenced as follows: Joseph L. Blood, east of Warsaw, where Thomas
Berry now resides, and on which he died; Nehemiah Dunn, on Deed’s Creek, near
where Chapman’s mill was built ; he subsequently removed to the southern part of
the State : William Groves, on the farm now owned by the heirs of his son, Daniel
Groves; he died there in 1838 ; Turner, on the farm now owned by David
Baker, and in the fall of 1838, he removed with his family to Fulton County;
James Stephenson, on the northwest quarter of Section 1, now owned by
Douglas, and died in 1838 ; William 8. Bashford, on the east side of Eagle Lake, on
the farm now pwned by Julius Boss, where he died in 1851 ; John Bashford, on the
farm south of it, and now owned by Alfred Wilcox; he removed to Marshall
County, and died in 1845 : a Presbyterian minister named Jones, st the outlet of
Pike Lake, on the tract now known ae Richhart’s brickyard ; he removed from
therein 1838; James Boggs, on the land now owned by Robert Lathrope, near the
Holbrook Schoolhouse; his house was built of hewed logs, and is still standing;
he died there in 1838. This compriseg all the settlements in the northeast part of
the township in the fall of 1837. ln the southeast part of the township, Ethel
Howe had settled on the farm owned by Charles Munson, at the time of his death,
and now owned by Munsoa’'s heirs. Howe died on this farm a few years later.
Jacob Weiss had settled on the farm now owned by the widow of George Pierce;
he sold this place to Lucius Howe, and removed to South Bend, where he died.
Henry Weiss settled on the farm now owned by Jarvis Noble; he went to Germany
to receive a legacy inherited by his wife, and never returned ; his wife lived 6n
the place until her death, several years later. Uaniel Weiss, then a single man,
lived with his brothers, and settled on the place on which he now resides; John
W. Morris on a farm now owned by James Stoner; his sons, William, Isaiah
and John, lived with him; William moved to Texas, where he still lives; John
also moved there and died a few years ago: Isaiah J. is now living in Warsaw ;
Charles Sleeper on the farm now owned by Gillam, and built the first grist-
mill in the township; the mill was situated on Clear Creek, where the Liberty
Mills road crosees the creek; the building was built of logs, and the stones were
made by John Inks, of Milford, out of ccmmon niggerhead stone, and was one of
the spun’ iest mills ever built in the county. Andrew R. Willis had settled on the
farm now owned by the widow Holstead, and died there; Pr. William Willis set-
tled at the south end of Eagle Lake, subsequently removed to the town of Man-
chester; Daniel Webb, on the farm now occupied in part by the County Farm, and
by his son, James T. Webb, who, at that time, with his brothers Ehud, John and
Thomas were boys; James Comstock, Sr., on the farm now occupied by John
Bodkin ; Comstock, in company with Uncle John Pittinger, built the saw-mill on
Walnut Creek, now owned by John A. Pittinger, and the second saw-mill built in
the township; he also built the old Court House, or so much as to inclose the build-
ing and lay the floors. ~* * % Daniel Shoup lived with and worked for
John Pittinger, the latter died on the place then occupied by him; John Cook set-
tled on the place where his son Peter now resides ; he and his wife both died there;
his sons, John W., James, Peter and Wesley, were single and lived with their
father; James Paulson, on the tract south of Pittinger's mill then and still owned
by Metcalfe Beck; * +# Benjamin Manwell lived and died on the farm
now owned by Samuel Leighty, Lis sons, Lucius and Thomas, then young, lived with
him ; John Ford gwilh his ¢ Yes, sir!”") lived on the farm now owned by Wesley
Cook, and died there; John Frush, father of William D. Frush, lived on the
Palestine road near what is called the “back-bone; " he afterward sold the place
and died on the old Sleeper farm; Joseph R. Williams, brother of Hon. William
Williams, on a tract of land now owned by Merrick Vandike; William Boggs, on
the farm he now owns; the father of Andrew and Ludlow Nye, on the farm now
owned by Daniel Ford; Samuel Wamsley, the farm he still resides on; John
Tusing, on the farm his son-in-law, Rezin Winship, now resides on, and died in
Warsaw, aged 104; * * * MMilo Jones, on the farm where he now lives;
Jacob Losure, in the east part of Seward Township ; Samuel Yarnell, on the Tippe-
canoe River, one-half mile below Peter Warner; William Williams, father of Hon,
William Williams, on the west side of Tippecanoe River, now owned by Mr. James;
George Tibbits, on the north side of the river, farm now oceupied by Martin Kinch ;
he died there; William Bradway, half-mile west of Tibbits, near the Indian grave-
yard, place now owned by Lewis Dunnuck. Of ail the persons then vesiding within
the limits of Wayne Township, who were then heads of families, there ars now
living only Jacob Losure, Milo Jones, Samuel Wamsley, William Boggs and James
Comstock, Jr. There was a young man living with and working for William J.
Pope, named David Dawson, and, in February, 1838, he and Miss Nancy Losure
were married ; this was the first resident couple married in town; Dawson finally
rettled in Harrison Township, where he died.” * * %  Of all the adults living
in the town (now city), at the time I first saw it, only two, William Williams and
Andrew Nye, are now living within its limits; * * William Williams is hale
and hearty, and bids fair for a long life; Andrew Nye is in poor health and ver-
ging on the borders of the grave; Alfred Wilcox, to whom credit is due for the
foregoing data, is in good health though a cripple.

WARSAW

This beautiful young city, named hy 1| John B. Chapman, deceased, after
the capital of Poland, noted in history first because the diet was transferred to it
from Cracow in 1656, and for the cubsequent struggles that took place there from
the time that it surrendered to Charles XII, in 1703, down to the Polich revo-
lution, which commenced November 20, 1830, and for the thousands who were
slain there. Although our Warsaw 1id not pass through such fearful ordeals, it
bore a strange similarity to that remowned city, in conflicts that, but for their
taking place in & land consecrn freedom, might have been us bloody.

The first plat of the town was filed by W. H. Knott, proprietor, October 21,
1836, and acknowledged before Jucob Rannells, Justice of the Pence; other plats
of additions to the town were filed by Richard H. Lansdule and Richard L. Brit-
ton not long after. Surveyor Christopher Lightfoot laid out the town.

the Commissioners. The retrospect enjoyed by the few that survive “he hardships
of pioneer life, is fitly expressed by the poet, R. J. Meigs, in the following lines :

“ Where iate the savage, hid in ambush, lay,

Or roamed the uncultured valleys for his prey,

Her bardy gifts rough industry extends,

The groves bow down, the lofty forest bends ;

And see, the epives like other Lowns do rise,

And domes and temples sweil into the skies.”

The difference between tken and now will afford profitable thought as we review
the settlement. The first eabin, also used for & tavern, was built and occupied by
Matthew D. Springer; it was located near the edge of what was then & tamarack
marsh, now Lot 6, in Stinson’s Addition, and was built of tamarack poles, with
puncheon floor. The house was about 20x24 ; the floor laid from the north end to
within six feet of the south end, which space was occupied by a fire-place, cup-
board, ete.  The baeck wall for four or five feet high was built of niggerhead rock ;
stakes were driven each side of the fire-place, haviug forks at the top, in which a
pole could be placed for hanging pots and kettles over the fire. The floor was
elevated abeut ten inches above the hearth and served for a seat. The range for
beds wes made by poles and forks around the walls, with hickory bark wstretched
for the beds to rest upon. The landlord and landlady officiated as hosts, cooks,
chambermafds and hostlers, and all slept in the same room and were happy.
[Description by Daniel Shoup.]

The first store was by William J. Pope, proprietor; slso of tamarack poles, and
one-story high: it was opened in the fall of 1835, and situated where now is the
northwest corner of Lake and Market streets. The second tsvern was & two-story
hewed log building, about 20x30, situated on what is now the southwest corner of
i.’nk; and]Cenlcr streets, Jacob Losier, proprietor, built in 1836. [Contributed by

. Beck,

The first blacksmith, Phillip Lash, came in 1836; the first chair shop was by
John Giselman, in 1836 ; the first furniture shop, by H. Higby, in 1837. [Infor-
mation by L. J. Morris. ]

On the east end of the lot, now occupied by the Wright House, stood a one-
story frame building, ¥136 feet, divided into two rooms, the west room being
finished for a st , &n 1 ied by Ephreim Davis and Richard
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county seat was located here on condition that half the proceeds from the sale of |
lots should accrue to the county. Thelocation refiects credit upon the judgment of \

pied by Malon F. Davis, County Treasurer, for a dwelling and Trea-
surer's office. On the west end of the lot, now occupied by the Lake City Bank,
stood & log building, eighteen feet square, one-story high, and occupied as a dweil-
ing by Clement B. Simpson, attorney. On the lot south of the Weirick House,
now occupied by the widow of Samuel M. Hayes, stood a small log building occu-
pied by William J. Pope &'Co., with a small stock of goods, and presided over by
(Hon.) William Williams as clerk, then about eighteen years of age. In the brush,
north of the cabinet wareroom of Richard Loney, stood & small frame building,
occupied by Andrew Nye as a grocery, and containing a few pounds of candy, a
barrel of whisky, a bottle of brand, one of gin and a few quarts of filberts and
almonds, a bench for customers to sit on and & small box stove. On the ground
not far from the West Ward Schoolhouse, near where James McMurray built his
residence, stood a log building cecupied as a dwelling by Jacob Baker, Esq., after-
ward Probate Judge. Oun the high grousd southi of the Pitisburgh. Fort Wayne &
Chicago Railroad Depot stood a log building, surrounded with « clearing of ‘about
one and one-half acres, occupied by Ludlow Nye, afterward Sheriff; he was brother
of Andrew and father of John R. Nye. South of Eagle Creek, on the Presly
Boydston farm, in a small cabin lived Phillip Lash and family. He had cleared a
small piece of ground that spring and planted it to corn, but the ground-squirrels
were so plenty that they dug the corn up, and, it being too late in the season to
replant, he procured some potatoes and planted a portion of the ground ; but pro-
visions became so scarce that he was compelled to dig up the potatoes and use
them to keep his family from starving. He afterward obtained some seed and
sowed the same ground to buckwheat, and finally succeeded in raising the third
crop on the same ground in one season, and was living most luxuriously on the
proceeds when I knew him. Arnold J. Fairbrother, Recorder of the County, held
his office and lived in a log cabin situated on a knoll north of the outlet of Eagle
Lake, a little south of the house built bp Adam Minear. The foregoing comprises
all the buildings and all the families then residing on or near the present site of
the city. During the winter of 183738, there were some changes made by families
moving away. [Alfred Wileox.]
An account of the subsequent changes will be found combined with the history
of her schools, churches, societies, industries, etc., before and after the incorpora-
tion.

PETITION TO INCORPORATE WARSAW.

Comes now, on this eighth day of March, 1854, Andrew J. Power and John
Rogers, and present the petition of divers citizens of Warsaw, in Kosciusko County,
State of Indiana, being more than one-third of the whole number of qualified
voters residing in the territory intended to be embraced within the limits of the
town intended to be incorporated, and file the said petition as follows, to wit:

To the Honorable Board of Commissioners of Kosciusko County, State of
Indiana. Your petitioners, citizens of the town of Warsaw, respectfully represent
that, preparatory to an application to your honorable body for an order granting
the incorporation of said town, a survey and census thereof having been made as
provided by law, the survey made by 8. R. Gordon, as follows, commencing at the
southwest corner of Section 8, in Township 32, north of Range 6 east; thence
north §3° 12/, east 194 p. 12 links; thence north 3°, west 12 p- 10 links; thence
south 3° 12/, west 23 p.; thence north 3°, west 68 p. 20 links ; thence north 82°,
east 65 p. 14 links; thence north 4° 30/, west 80 p. 7 links; thence south 83°
150 p.; thence nmorth 3° 80/ 11 p.; thence north 51°, west 53 p. 11 links;
thence north 56°, west 62 p. 15 links; thence south 4° 307, east 250 p. 15 links;
containing 236 acres, 26,% p. The census taken on the 4th day of February, 18:
shows that the resident population was at the date seven hundred and fifty-two (752)
Your petitioners therefore pray your honorable body to grant an order providing
for the incorporation of said town of Warsaw, as by law directed February 27, 1854.
The said petition having attached thereto the aflidavit verifying the facts alleged
therein, and the said John Rogersand A. J. Power, whoare signers of the said petition,
having caused an accurate survey and map to be made of the territory intended to
be embraced within the limits of such town by a practical sirveyor, showing the
courses and distances of the boundaries and the quantity of land therein, the
accuracy of which survey and map has been verified by the affidavit of S. R.
Gordon, practical surveyor, who made the suid survey and map which is annexed
thereto.  And it also appearing to the satisfaction of the Court that John Rogers
and A. J. Power, two of the signers of said petition, and who intended at the time
to make this application, have caused an acourate census to be taken of the resident
population of said territory, as it was on the 4th of February, A. D. 1854, which

| census appears to the satisfaction of the Board, exhibits the name of every head

of a family residing within such territory on the said last mentioned day, also the
number of persons then belonging to every such family, and it also appearing that
said census is verified by the affidavits of the said John Rogers and A. J. Powers,
the persons who took the same. The said map being certified by G. W. Fairbrother,
as having been subject to public examination from the 6th of February, 1854, to
this date, to wit, the Tth of Mareh, 1854, in the Recorder’s Office in said town of
Warsaw; and it also appearing that the said Recorder's Office is & convenient
place within the said territory for the examination by those having an interest in
said application, for a period of not less than four weeks, and the Board being
satisfied that the requirements of this act have been fully complied with, it is
hereby ordered and declared that the above described territory shall, with the con-
sent of the qualified voters thereof, as hereinafter provided, be an incorporated
town, by the name of Warsaw ; as specified in said application. And it is further
ordered und declared that the qualified voters resident in said territory do meet at
the Court House in said town of Warsaw, on the 25th of March, to determine
whether such territory shall be an incorporated town; and the Auditor of Kos-
ciusko County is hereby directed to cause ten days’ notice of said meeting by pub-
lication in the K ko Republican, a paper published in said territory, and
Dby posting up copies of said notice, not less than ten in number, at the most public
places in said incorporated town. Aund the Board adjourned until to-morrow
morning. NeLsox BakEr,

Samuer WALnack, } County Commissioners.

JouN McNaiw,

The city of Warsaw was organized under an act of the Legislature, entitled * An
act to repeal all general laws now in force for the incorporation of cities, and to
provide for the incorporation of cities, prescribing their powers and rights, and the
manner in which they shall receive the same, and to regulate such other matters as
properly pertain thereto.”” Approved March 14, 1867,

The election to decide whether to incorporate under city charter was held April
19, 1875, resulting in 278 votes for incorporation, and 200 votes against incorpor-
ation. The election for city officers was held May 4, 1875, resulting as follows :
Mayor, H. 8. Biggs, who has served ever since, until the spring of 1879, when Will-
iam Cosgrove was elected ; City Clerk, Charles H. Ketchum, who has been retained
ever since ; M. H. Parks was appointed Deputy City Clerk, and confirmed by the
Council, and has held thatoffice eversince ; 8. B.Clark has served as City Treasurer
continuously ; Joseph A. Wright, Marshal, 1875-76; John H. Killinger, Marshal,
1877-78; James Wynant, Assessor, continuously.

First Ward Councilmen.—T. C. Stuart has served since the organization of the
city; Levi Zumbrum, 1879; 8. W. Chipman, 1875; B. P. Wright, 1876-77; O. P.
Jaques, 1878-79.

Second Ward—D. R. Pershing, 1875-76; James H. Cisney, 1877-78; A. J.
Blair, 1875; A. T. S. Kist, 1876-77 ; Thomas J. Nye, 1878-70.

Third Ward.—Nelson Nutt, 1875-78; James McMurry, 1875; R. Hitzler,
1876-77; Charles V. Pyle, 1878 ; Daniel Deeds, 1879.

Board of Health-—Hon. James H. Carpenter, M. D.;
L. B. Webber, M. D.

City Attorney—E. J. Greene has held the p

C. W. Burket, M. D.;

since the of the

city.
City Civil Engineer—Caleb Hughes, appointed in 1878.

BOATING AND SKATING.

Sailing and rowing are not only delightful means of enjoyment, but admitted to
be among the most potent physical means in bringing about a healthy development
of body and mind, thus happily uniting pleasure and profit—to say nothing of the
romance in the re-unions of the “lads and lassies,” in which * children of a larger
growth’’ may join to advantage.

Center Lake is now presenting great attractions to the citizens of Warsaw, and,
erelong, will find a place in the tourist’s guide-book. This beautiful body of water
is something over a mile long, and about half a mile wide ; ample for yachting and
rowing for pl Even professionals may win laurels here, and the uninitiated
have but to enter into the to become i

It may not be necessary
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to enroll under long ames, ¢ The Northwestern Amateur Rowing Association,”’
“The National Asscciation of Amateur QOarsmen,” or ¢ The Metropolitan Associa-
tion of Amateur Oarsmen,” however well merited the honors of such associations;
but with those and every lover of out-door sports, it will be found profitable to take
advantage of the weather and enjoy a ride on one of those beautiful yachts, with
swollen sail and a spanking breeze, dart through the water like 2 monarch of the
wave, and then, anon, lulled by gentlest zephyrs, dream the hours away; or,
grasping the oar, with sturdy stroke, send the blood seething in its devious course,
ravishing every sense—so invigorating and beautifying is the influence. On the
sheeny bosom of its crystal waters, poetry and song will leap forth with power,
almost divine; their natal sweetness enhanced as the besutiful craft, freighted
with genial company, glides like a fairy *“'neath the moon’s silver light,”” enchanted
by the dulcet strains of the ¢ Silver Cornet Band,” until the trite realities of life
are lost in sweet illusion, and we dream ¢ ’tis fairy-land.”

The good people of Warsaw have not only dreamt this dream, but made sub-
stantial preparation for its actual enjoyment, by building beautiful yachts and row-
boats, among the most prominent of which are :

"achts.—¢ Pinafore,” owned by M. B. Funk, C. V. Pyle and others, an elegant
boat, that cost $150; * Peerless,”” W. B. Funk, cost $100; * Paul Standish,”” W.
L. Standish, cost $150; * None Such,” W. H. Eggleston, cost $75.

Row Bouts.—'* Ark,"” owned by W. L. Standish; *“ Blue Band,” E. V. Long ;
“ Continental,”” 0. P. Jaques; “ Centennial,” M. Phillipson; ¢ Flora,”” Mrs. W.

B. Funk; ¢ Ellenor,” Hart and Woggamon; ‘‘Kosciusko,” J. H. Roussesau;
‘‘Pauline,” 8. B. Frasier; ‘Venture,” C. V. Pyle; ¢ Long John,” Samuel
Weirick.

And still there’s more to follow. There are many boat houses along the shore,
and a temporary landing to facilitate the pleasure of entering and leaving the boats.
Arrangements are being perfected to construct & permanent wharf and boat land-
ing, extending into the lake on either side of Buffalo street ; snd it has been sug-
gested that a boat of sufficient size to erect a band-stand of Pagoda archi
upon, will one day be built and anchored in the middle of the lake, from whence
the grand harmonies of musie will come, mellowed by the water to those on the
shore.

It is not improbable that a carriage way will be constructed around the lake,
and embowered with trees, thus utilizing the advantages of the situation in the
most charming manner.

Skating.—Center Lake is fed by springs, and its waters are so deep that they
are always clear. ¢ The most beautiful ice of the season,”’ from twelve to fifteen
inches thick, is formed all over it. This resplendent coat of armor is to ice what
French plate glass is to the ordinary substance of that name. So pure and perfect
areits prisms, that the colors of the rainbow may be reflected by a piece of it when
held at a proper angle. On that sheeny field * the skatist”” may run, skip and
Jjump with perfect abandon. To the looker-on,

“ How blithe Iads and lassies skip and play,
As thongh "twere spring, not winter's day ;
Joined by the aged, yclept stiffened knee,
In wondrous feats of agility ! "

Skating, on such a field, becomes an enchantment irresistible, and affords equal
opportunity of developing strength, as well as grace in motion.

THE OPERA HOUSE.

The following persons met, March 25, 1873, in the rooms of John N. Runyan,
over the Post Office, and organized themselves into a company and elected officers,
to wit: A. J. Blair, President; John N. Runyan, Secretary; Thomas Woods,
Treasurer; H. F. Berst, A. T. 8. Kist and A. F. Ruch.

This company, by written agreement, were to build an opera house, with stores
below, and rooms for societies. Books were opened and the Secretary authorized to
malke assessments fur the purposes expressed in the compnet, to wit: (o erect a
building, 130 feet long by 60 feet deep, naving six stores on the ground floor and a
basement under them ; the opera-room. includi he lobby and stage 130 feet deep.
The stage is large and well supplied with sc and an elaborate curtain. The
audience-room will seat over one thousand, while the gallery will seat two-thirds
that many more. The room is well ventilated and lighted, is eusy of entrance and
exit.

The architecture of the buildin of modern style. The plan was drawn by
B. G. Cosgrave, althougi the pl < modified by the company. The original
intention was to erect a building for about 5,000, but the improvements neces-

sary to place it on a pur with similar buildings added to that araount $20,000 more,
making a total of $45,000.
The management was left almost entirely to Mr. J. N Runyan, whose artistic

taste had much to do with the comfl

table arrangement and beauty of the hall.
This expenditure shows & pr wihy effort on the part of the company, one
which is highly appreciated by the citizens, not only of Warsaw but vicinity, even
attracting parties from adjoining countie«.

POST OFFICE.

The establishment of the Post Office at Warsaw, Kosciusko Co., Ind., accord-
ing to the report by the First Assistant Postmaster General, dated April 2, 1870,
was in February, 1837, and the Postmasters as follows :

Jacob Baker, Postmaster, Warss ..established Feb. 11, 1837

George W, Stacey, Postmaster, Warsaw, ...appointed Oct., 19, 1841,
William C. Graves, “ { s July 16, 184
Silas V. Miller, st é@ June 2,18
Ernst Vordermark, 5 L i July 31, 184
Harvey W. Upson, o L ¥ April 2., 1849,
G. W. Scott, 2 # 5 Feb. 1856
Thomas L. Graves, ] 3 s April 30, 1
William €. Gordon, w (e (e July 11,1
Theo. W. Strain, o b v Aug. 20, 1
Peter L. Runyan, < 88 st LG March 29, 1861,
Presidential—
Peter L. Runyan, " ‘¢ re-appointed April 25, 1865.
Andrew G. Wood, # iz appointed Nov. 2, 184
John N. Runyan, “ “ “ March 19, 18
John N, Runyan, TR “ # Jan. 23, 187
John N, Runyan, “ “ L Feb. 26, 187
John N. Runyan, “ o s Feb. 26, 1879.

Annual statement of the business of the office, from

April 1, 1878, to April 1,
1879, reported by John N. Runyan, Postmaster:

GENERAL ACCOUNT RECEIPTS.
... $2,083 59

Amount from postage stamps sold...

Amount from ped enyelopes sol 433 22
Amount from box rent collected........oovrvvereeneenne 400 00
Amount from postal cards sold 372 71
Amount from newspaper stamps sold..... ... 117 10
Amount from paper wrappers sold 10 61
Amount from unpaid postage collected.... 5 b4
Amount from waste paper sold 192

Total ceeeenns $4,324 69

GENERAL ACCOUNT EXPENSES.

Mail messenger and expense RCCOUNL......veeercrrreerirnenss $ 336 00
Postmaster’s salary...... 1,800 00
Net p ds paid Gover 2,188 69

TR ianavasanree o satbeareiseise

Sy N VT

MONEY ORDER DEPARTMENT.

Cash balance on hand March 31, 1878. $ 76 48
1,810 domestic money orders issued. 16,426 90
Domestic fees on same........ 201 80
Three British i ional orders issued 32 10
British fees on same 125

Drafts by the Postmaster on the Postmaster, New York... 11,200 00

Total $27,938 63
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DISBURSEMENTF
8,967 domestic moftey orders pxid..

Nine domestic money orders repaid. 127 16
o nris
Commi 127 74
Balance cash on hand April 1, 1879.........cceveerrerneneerann 280
Total $27,988 53
RFGISTER LETTER DEPARTMENT.
Register letters originating in this office.......cceeeesnsenees 388
Register letters delivered at this office 910
Register letters in transit passing through this office....... 598
Total register letiers handled........oemsesseeresnnanes 1,886

DISPATCHING DEPARTMENT,

Number of pouches received with mail for this office.
Number of pouches received for transfer...........
Number of pouches sent with mail from this office.
Numbey of pouches sent by transfer from this office.

Total pouch
Number of tie sacks received at this office.
Number of tie sacks sent from this office....

Total pouches and sacks handled

““Trrasury DepArTMENT, March 20, 1879.
“Jonx N. Runvyax, Esq., Postmaster, Warsaw, Indiana:

*818—By reason of your appointment as Postmaster at Warsaw, Indiana, you
are hereby designated a United States Depositary of Public Moneys, at that place,
under the provisions of Section 3639, Revised Statutes of the United States, and
in accordance with the conditions of Department’s circular of March 12, 1879,
copy inclosed.

“‘Under this designation, you will be entitled to receive and hold only moneys
arising from the sale of ‘United States Refunding Certificates, Act of February
28, 1879," not registered ; and the commission allowed you for the sales, under
the provisions of the circular mentioned, will be in full compensation for your
services a8 Depositary.

** A blank Bond is herewith inclosed, and upon its return, properly executed, a
supply of Certificates, with necessery blanks and instructions, will be promptly
sent you. Very respectfully,

“JonN SHERMAN, Secrefary.”

The provisions of the foregoing appointment have been complied with, and the
following announcement from the Treasury Department, Washington, D. C., is made:

The Secretary of the Treasury calls attention to the 4 per cent Refunding Cer-
tificates of the United States, to be issued under the following provisions of the

7,616

Act of Congress, approved February 26, 1879, entitled ¢ an Act to authorize the |

issue of Certificates of Deposit, in aid of the refunding of the Public Debt,” to wit:

*Each Certificate will be denominated ten (10) dollars; will be made nearly of |

the form and size of a United States note, and will bear, on its face and back, the
conditions of its issue, as follows (on the face): United States Refunding Certif-
icate. Ten Dollars.
“April 1, 1879.
*‘This certifies that the sum of Ten Dollars has been deposited with the Treas-
urer of the United States, under Act of February 26, 1879.
“tJas. GiLriLLaN, Treasurer of United States.”
““G. W. ScorieLn, Register of the Treasury.”
** WasaiNgrox, D. €.

** Convertible, with accrued interest, at 4 per cent per annum, into 4 per cent
bonds of the United States, issued under the Acts of July 14, 1870, and January
20, 1871, upon presentation at the office of the Treasurer of the United States,
Washington, D. C., in sums of $50, or multiples thereof.”

(On the back). **Interest on this note will accrue as follows: For each nine
days, or one-tenth of n quarter, 1 cent; for each quarter year, 10 cents; for each
entire year, 40 cents."’

**Such Certificates will be sold for lawful money, at par, and accruing interest to
the date of purchase, by the Treasurer of the United States at Washington, and
by the Assistant Treasurers at Baltimore, Boston, Chieago, Cincinnati, New Orleans,
New York, Philadelphia, St. Louis and San Francisco, and by all National Banks,
Postmasters, and other officers of the Government, who may be authorized to sell
them ; and the Treasurer of the United States at ‘Washington, and the Assistant
Treasurer at New York, will also receive, in payment, drafts in favor of themselves,
respectively, drawn on New York, which will be collected, and the excess, if any,
returned by check to the depositors.

** The Treasurer of the United States will also accept, in payment, certificates of
deposit of National Banks, specially designated to receive deposits on this account,
but the Refunding Certificates will not be delivered, until the certificate of deposit,
issued by the bank, has been paid for by a treasury drafl, or by a deposit of  like
amount of lawful money with the Treasurer, or some Assistant Treasurer of the
United States, or until United States Bonds of equal amount are substituted in
their stead.

*‘All Collectors of the Customs, Surveyors of the Customs acting also as Col-
lectors, Receivers of Public Moneys, Postmasters of money-order offices, and all
other public offices of whatsoever character, ave invited to become agents for the
sale of these certificates. Any such officér, who.may request to be thus employed,
will be promptly designated by the Secretary of the Treasury as a depositary for
that purpose, under the provision of Section 3 , Revised Statutes of the United
States, upon his filing a satisfactory hond, will receive from the Department a sup-
ply of the certificates for sale " i ol %* *

“JoHN SHERMAN, Secretary.’

Under this class the United States has received the handsome sum of $33,000,

for which he has issued *“ United States Refunding Certificates, Act of February
26, 1879 " —indicating not only that the people have confidence in the certificates,
but that J. N. Runyan is the mnn they want to buy them of, Itis safe to say,
that his is one of the best manuged oftices in the United States. He is, emphat-
ically, **the right man in the right place.”
In connection with the the post office record, it is proper to say, that the Hon,
John B. Chapman, deceased, was the first Postmaster within the territory now
goucinako County. He held the office in his cabin near Leesburg—then in Elkhart
unty.

THE KOSCIUSKO COUNTY BAR.
REMINISCENCES OF EARLIER DAYS,

The writer in the Northern Indianian for December 28, 1878, whose notes we
here use, deservedly stands in the front rank of his profession, not only in the
county, but in the State; and it is with no ordinary willingness or confidence that
we incorporate his reminiscences with the history of the bar., He says: The
bar of the county, down to about twenty-eight years ago, embraced not only resi-
dents of the county, but also nearly all the leading lawyers of more than a dozen
of the northern counties. They ** rode the circuit” in those days, some of them
attending all the courts of the circuit, which was then very large territorially, and
some of them had occasional practice in other circuits. Nearly all had political
aspirations, were more than willing to be elected to Congress, and these were
therefore anxious to make extensive personal acquaintance with the people. Argu-
ments before juries were often made, quite as much for the ear of the spectator as
for the jurors. Witnesses and parties had votes and influence, and I think they
were treated with more courtesy and consideration than sometimes occurs in later
times. Indeed, our courts and bar have not improved in dignity and propriety
with the lapse of time. In the old days, men could not become lawyers without
the previous study of law, and mere pettifoggers were limited in their operations to
the Justices’ Courts of the out-townships. Legitimate lawyers and judges gave
them no countenince whatever. The * reform’’ of the State Constitution of 1852,
which makes a lawyer of any voter who can get an easy-going court to indorse his
moral character, has not resulted in anything but harm. In some instances,
indeed, the standard of moral character which has been adjudged satisfactory,
would not have been sufficient upon which to base & successful application to retail
whisky under the ‘ Baxter bill.”" This is not a very flattering criticism upon our
Jurisprudence, or rather upon its sdministration, but it has been often made, and,
in repeating it heve, it is set down rather #s an expression of the popular judg-
ment than an criginagl idea of the writer. It has more than once occurred in our

Supreme Court, that the Chief Justice has invited all who wished sdmission to the
bar of that high eourt, to rise and be “sworn in,” without even the indorsement
of anybody, and s acore of men who, for sught the judges knew.or seemed to care,
might have been just out of the penitentiary, or escaped from it, became, at once,
attorneys of that court! It is no pleasure to state this fact.

The earliest resident lawyer of this county was John B. Chapman, who was
one of the very firat white settlers within its borders. He was so well known per-
sonally, having died here but recently, thatlittle can be ssid of him whick would
be of interest. He d d too much ion to various speculati to possess
profound knowledge of the law ; but his energy and tirelessness in_the service of
his clients made him formidable before juries. His hot temper sometimes ren-
dered him unpleasant at the bar, and, as he was brave, it frequently led even to &
contest of blows in open court, and very often to such a war of words as compelled
the repressive interference of the court by the infliction of fines. A very amusing
instance occurred between him end Emanuel Harmon, a young lawyer of good
promise, who resided here a short time about the year 1842. In the course of a
trial where one Lash was a party in the Probate Court, before Judge Jacob Baker,
who was & Pennsylvania Dutch the ys, Chap and Harmon, quar-
eled and came to blows. His Honor vindicated the dignity of his Court by impos-
ing a fine of $100 on each of them. The circumstance awakened the muse of
William C. Graves. who recorded it in a witty parody, one verse of which ran
thus :

“ Vas it mit crimes dot Tash tid done,
Dey rushed upon der preach ;
Amezin' eity—Clerk, puts town
Von hunner tollar each !™

William C. Graves, now Cashier of the First National Bauk, was, it is believed,
the first student who came to the bar in the county. His certificate of edmission
—which by the way is such an one as any attorney may well feel proud of—is here
submitted :

“8TATE OF INDIANA, 88,

It appearing to the satisfaction of the undersigned, president Judges of the
8th and 9th Judicial Circuits of the State aforesaid, that it is certified of record in
the Elkhart Cirenit Court, that William C. Graves, Esquire, is a man of good moral
character, and on having examined him touching his qualifications to practice law,
do, by these presents, license and authorize him, the said William, to practice as
an attorney and counsellor at law and solicitor in chancery in all the Circuit and
inferior courts of record in said State. Given under our hands on the 15th day of
October, A. D. 1839. “8amuveL C. Sampre, 9 Cir.

“H. Crase.”
“8rATE OF INDIANA, 88,

¢ Before me, Richard H. Landale, Clerk of the Kosciusko County Circuit
Court, this day personally appeared the within-named, William C. Graves, who,
being by me duly sworn, on his oath says, that he will support the Constitution of
the United States, and the Constitution of this State, and that he will in all things
faithfully execute the duties of an attorney and lior at law and solicitor in
chancery, according to the best of his understanding and abilities, and further
saith not. “Wirtiam C. GRAVES.

¢ Subscribed and sworn to before me. this 15th day of October, A. D. 1839,

“R. H. LanspaLe, Clerk.

“By @. R. TaratLs, Deputy Clerk.”

C. B. Simonson, A. L. Fairbrother, W. G. T'Vault, Elijah Horton, G: W. Cornelis,
M. C. Dougherty, George W. Frasier and A. J. Power, will all be remembered by
the older citizens of the county, as resident lawyers, who have passed over the
“ dark river.”” Of these Gieorge W. Frasier attained the highest professional emi-
nence. He possessed extensive legal learning and large intelligence, and his
forensic ability was of a high order. In the prime of life, and the maturity of his
faculties, he passed away.

A. J. Power died too young to attain that professional rank, which surely would
have been resched had he lived the usual time allotted. He wasa wag, and as
such will never be forgotten by those who knew him. He had a great, warm, gen-
erous heart, snd was true (o his convictions always. His impulses were quick and
often hot,

A. J. Bair is one of those rare cases, where a man of excellent capacity and
qualifications, with regular and studious habits, nevertheless loses hope of attain-
ing professional standing, and quits.
general intelligence was also unusually varied.
as clear expression to his legal opinions as anybody; he could put his case on
paper, in the pleadings, exceedingly well.
But the moment he rose in conrt to spesk, both words and ideas deserted him.
He persevered for three or four years, hoping to wear off this timidity, but without
success. Thus the bar lost a member whom they all respected very much.

William Williams studied law late in life.
writer after settling here in April, 1845, was with Thomas G. Harris, to examine
“ Billy " for admission to the bar. Upon 2 favorable report, he was admitted, and
at once began practice. Special pleadings troubled ** Billy ' always, but when he
got his case to the jury he was formidable at the very beginning of his practice,
by reason of his speeches. In a trial of wit, he scarcely ever came out second best.

HISTORY OF KOSCIUSKO COUNTY.

William C. Hanna, dmitted
Reuben J. Dawson U]

William 8. Palmer
John B. Niles...

March 18, 1839,
March 19, 1839,

Myron H. Orton & March 16, 1840.
Thomas G. Harris. 5 4 P 21, 1840.
«r September 21, 1840,
« April 26, 1841,
0 April 26, 1841,

% October 26, 1841,
{5 October 17, 1842,
i October 23, 1843,

[ April 20, 1846,
4 April 20, 1846.
“ April 21, 1846,
o« April 21, 1846,
L April 21, 1846,
“ October 26, 1846.
“ April 28, 1847.
Daniel M. Cox. “ N ber 2, 1847.
James 8. Collins....cees veveerirsnnecesrnnenes b May 1, 1848,
Lysander C. Jacoby “ N ber 1, 1848,
Thomas §. Stanfield Y May 2, 1849,
E. B. Crocker. . May 4, 1849,
Moses Jenki s October 28, 1851,
Charles Case. ¢ September 26, 1853.
James D. Conner. “  Sey 29, 1853,
Thomas St. John.....cceeemeriiriererisreeenns ¢ September 27, 1853.

RESIDENT ATTORNEYS.

Clement B. Si d 1 October 31, 1830,
John B. Chap £ March 18, 1839,
William C. Graves... 4¢ March 16, 1840,

William G. T’ Vault,

& Sept. 21, 1840,
Michael C. Dougherty.

“ April 28, 1841.

Arnold L. Fairbrother.. . e Oct. 26, 1841,
Ei 1 Harman 55 Oct. 26, 1841.
Andrew J. Bair. . [} Oct. 14, 1841
James 8. Frazer “ April 14, 1845,
David 8. Snyder.. = April 14, 1845,
Elijah Horton o€ April 14, 1845,
William Williams.... s s o Oct. 13, 1845,

George W. Cornelius £ Nov. 20, 1847.

Admitted after the adoption of the new Constitution, November 1, 1851.

Andrew J. Power. admitted April 26, 1852,
Nathan M. Joh 4 March 21, 1853.
Charles H. Culbertson - “ April 26, 1853.
Ll March 20, 1854,

- Oct. 2, 1854,

e o Oct. 4, 1855.

George D. Copeland o Oct. 1, 1856.
Joseph H. Matloch * Oct. 3, 1855.
Wallace W. Dodge 3 ) July 24, 1856.
Charles W. Chapman. . L July 30, 1856.
Moses J. Long. % Sept. 9, 1857.
Walter Scott. 3 L} March 3, 1858.

John F. Caples. . “
Elisha V. Lon,
Joseph B. Davis
Edgar Haymond
Washington Lightfoot.

April 26, 1858,
LAk Sept. 5, 1858.
«’  Sept. b, 1858,
- April 28, 1859.
“ July 26, 1860.

A case before a Justice of the Peace may be given as an pl
8 suit in trespass for killing his client’s dog, and filed his declaration in two counts,
one for shooting a dog, the second for hanging a dog. The defendant's attorney
filed the general issue. There was a jury trial, and the whole township attended.
The only real controversy was as to the value of the dog; but, in argument, the
defendant’s attorney undertook to complain of the hardship of the case.
defendant,” he said, ** was falsely charged with having killed two dogs. There
was no proof of this. But he was compelled to litigate, whereas, if the killing of
only one dog had been alleged, according to the truth, the defendant might have let
Jjudgment go, and thus have saved costs.” This was uttered with apparent serious-
ness, and, it conld be seen, was likely to have some effect. “*Billy” evinced
annoyance for a moment. In his closing speech, however, he alluded to the mat-
ter, with well simulated indignation. He valled attention to the long ‘¢ Presby-
terian face, with which his opponent had intimated that if the complaint had been
for one dog only, the killing of which was not disputed, the expense of the trial
would have been avoided,” and added, ‘*now don't be deceived by that long face,
it looks honest, and yet, as I shall prove to you by his own handwriting, he knew
he wns lying all the time. Here (holding up the general issue) is his own plea,
in which he denies that his client killed any dog at all, and for that reason, we
were suddenly compelled to prove what never ought to have been disputed.”
“Billy” won the case, and the joke was on his opponent.

James H. Carpenter also came to the bar late in life. He had first studied
medicine and practiced it with success. He then studied law. Nothing short of
the greatest perseverance will, under such circumstances, win success in the legal
profession, so difficult is it to withdraw the mind from early channels of thought.
His success is an exception to the general result. Soon after he came to the bar,
he gave some attention to real estate speculations, with & view to making money.
He was somewhat successful at one time, and in the midst of it he had the defense
of a bastardy case which was prosecuted by the late Judge Mather. In argument,
he warned the jury that, if such complaints were sustained upon doubtful evidence,
the influence would tend to demoralize females of & certain cluss, by tempting them
to institute groundless charges of that sort for the purpose of *making money.”
Mather sdmitted the wisdom of the suggestion, though he denied the pertinency to
the pending case. *‘But,” said he, 1 know well with what & strong grasp the
passion for speculation and money-making, when unduly indulged, siezes upon the
souls of both men and women ; and as my brother Carpenter seems to see an oppor-
tunity for speculation in the making of complaints for bastardy, I shall not be sur-
prised to see him shortly engagingin the business.” Of course, the gravity of the
court was disturbed, and nobody enjoyed the joke better than Carpenter.

ATTORNEYS.
The following is the roll of attorneys admitted to p law in the Kosciusk
Circuit Court, from the orgsnization of said court, A. D. 1836, to the present date,
A. D. 1879, with the date of their admission, together with a list of non-residents,
who practiced in all the counties of the Eighth and Niuth Judicial Circuits, and the
earlier yesrs of the Kosciusko Circuit Court. Compiled by Thomas Woods, Clerk :

NON-RESIDENTS.
admitted
“

Gustavus A, Everts,
Joseph J. Jernegan
Jonsthan A. Liston.
Johu D. De Frees
Ebenezer M. Cham!

October 31, 1836.
November 1, 1836.
“ November 1, 1836.
2 b November 1, 1836.
: “ November 1, 1836.

Thomas D. Baird. 2 o March 21, 1837.
Daniel D. Pratt.. . [ March 19, 1838.
Reuben L. Farnsworth . « March 18, 1839.

John S. Hetfield.. s Jan. 15, 1861.
William G. Pipe “ May 9, 1864,
M: h “ i
fis Jognl educaton bnd been good, and.bis bl A g L Jan 8, 1aos.
Ko: wouid,cin; consultation, give William E. Mowbra; «  Sept. 9, 1865.
He was, in all respects, a sensible man. g:;:::f‘;z:?&': “ M{:Sl.: 2;: }ggg
Oliver M 1 “ March 3, 1866.
Cyrus C. Humphreys. ‘ £ SMny g, }ggg
illi i “ ept. 3, %
The first duty performed by the ?Ym'fl,"n "(‘}HC‘OES‘::“ o7 Segt. 4 1866,
John B. Kinner... " May 6, 1867.
Bishop W. Perkin - Sept. 5, 1867.
William A. Marlow. & Sept. 27, 1868.
Joseph H. Taylor... o Jan, 30, 1869.
. C d. Clemens “ May 4, 1869,
g isuimiug Samuel 8. Baker.. “ My 11, 1869,
Robert B. Encell. . o Dec. 6, 1869.
Isaac L. Ayers.. - Dec. 2, 1869,
Leigh H. Haymond. i May 3, 1870.
«The Samuel W. Cosand G Sept. 5, 1870.

Lemuel W. Royce. &5 Sept. 22, 1873.

Andrew J. Bates.. " Dec. 26, 1873.
William H. Rid gL Feb, 24, 1874,
John A. Clemans s Oct. 17,1874,
Orange O. Felkner..... “ Dec. 14, 1874.
William D. Frazer ol Jan. 5, 1875.

1 March 30, 1875.

James W. Cook....

1J. Green : “ June 9, 1875.
James V. Vangilder.....ccceereserere nncssnnses L Sept. 26, 1875.
Edward W. Higbee “ Sept. 27, 1875.

Robert Simons..

b Sept. 27, 1875.
John D. MeClaren

«  Sept. 27, 1876,

Robert Simons . Sept. 27, 1875,
Ed d W. Stephenson.....ceeereeeceennees 4 Sept. 27, 1875.
James C. Bell - “ Sept. 30, 1875.
Lemon W. Crouch . . “ Oct. 7, 1875.
Stanfield B. Frasier. “ Oct. 8, 1875.
John D. Widaman “ Nov. 13, 1875.
Isaac H. Hall... = se March 7, 1877.

2 April 26, 1877.
= June 22, 1877.
Jesse D. Chaplin . s Sept. 26, 1877.
Varnum J. Card.. - “ April 10, 1878,
Abraham Brubaker, (3 June 15, 1878.
Ralph Phinney.... . “ Sept. 23, 1878.

From the * Constitution of the Bar Association of the Thirty-third Judicial Cir-
cuit of Indiana,” we extract the following : 4

1. The association shall be known as the Bar Association of the Thirty-third
Judicial Circuit of Indiana.

2. The purposes of the Association are to elevate the character of the bar, to
promote harmony and good-will among lawyers, and generally to advance the just
interests of the profession, assist the courts in the administration of justice, and to
suggest useful legislation. 4

* * * * * * * * * * * * *

5. Applications for admission to the Association shall be made to the Committee
on Admissi who shall y i igate the moral ch of the appl
examine him concerning his learning in the law, and make report thereof to the
Association, whereupon a vote by ballot shall be taken on the question of the
admission of the applicant, and, if two-thirds or more eof the votes cast shall be in
the affirmative, he shall be admitted upon signing the Coustitution, and shall be
entitled to the good offices of the Associ in obtaining admi to the bar. It
shall also be the special duty of the bers of this C and each b
thereof, with vigilance, and by discreet and proper efforts, to aid the courts in pre-
venting admission to the bar of unfit persons.

* * * * * * * * * * * * *

9. Any money needed for the use of the Association will be raised by equal
assessment, per capita, upon the bers, to be d ined by 1

Signed: James S. Frazer, William Williams, James H. Carpenter, Edgar Hay-
mond, Elisha V. Long, Woodson S. Marshall, Hiram S. Biggs, C. W. Chapman, A.




HISTORY OF KOSCIUSKO COUNTY.

G. Wood, Samson J. North, C. Clemens, J. L. Ayers, Robert Encell, L. H. Hay-

mond," L. W. Royce, James W. Cook, W D. Frazér, E.J. Green, Stan. B.
Fraser, John D. Widaman.

Bar Docket of the Kosciusko Circuit Court, February Term, 1879.—Hon. Elisha V.
Long, Judge; Michael Lickafoose, Prosecuting Attorney ; Thomas Woods, Clerk;
Daniel W. Hamlin, Shkeriff.

Resident Attorneys, admitted on Proof of Qualification.—James 8. Frazer, Will-
iam Williams, James H. Carpenter, Moses J. Long, Edgar Haymond, W. S. Mar-
shall, H. 8. Biggs, Charles W. Chapman, A. G. Wood, 8. J. North, Commodore
Clemens, Joseph L{. Taylor, Issac L. Ayers, Robert B. Encell, Leigh H. Haymond,
L. W. Royce, James W. Cook, William D. Frazer, E. J. Green, 8. B. Frazier, John
D. Widaman.

Under the Fourteenth Rule.—** Hereafter no name shall be placed on the roll of
resident attorneys, as the same now is, except those who are admitted to practice
upon proof of qualifications, or by r dation of an ining ittee.
After the roll, as the same now is in issuing the Bar Docket, should be printed the
words, * Admitted on Proof of Qualification,” and then following shall be placed
the names of all who are so admitted. Those now admitted to practice may have
their names placed under the words, ¢ Admitted on Proof of Qualification,’ by
motion in open court, upon fi ble report by C ittee on Examinati

“In all cases when certificate of admissioa to the bar is issued by the Clerk,
the proceedings upon which such admission is made shall be made part of the pro-
ceedings. “Euisaa V. Loxg,

3 “ Judge Thirty-third Judicial Circuit.

¢ Attest: Tuoxas Woovs, (lerk K. C. 0.

Under this provision, John A. Bitner and Abraham Brubaker were transferred
from the list of admitted under the Consiitution on proof of moral character only,
to the list of those admitted on proof of qualification, having given evidence to the
Examining Committee of sufficient attainments in learning.

Resident Attorneys admitted under the Constitution on proof of moral character
only.—C. ', Humphreys, W. H. H. Dennis, . J. Conner, Samuel W. Cosand,
William L. Mutthews, S. 8. Baker, A. J. Bates, W. H. Ridenour, John A. Clemens,
Ed. W. Iligbee, L. W. Crouch, E. W. Stephenson, James V. Vangilder, Hugh Cal-
lander, Isaac H. Hall, Samuel R. Coons.

Non-resident Attorneys.—John H Baker, L. C. Jacoby, W. C. Wilson, W. G.
Sayer, James L. Cook, John D. McCluren, J. A. S. Mitchell, Capron & Bro.,
Shively & Cowgill, Withers & Morris, W. B. Hess, J. M. Burge, Walter Olds,
James O. Parks, Isnac E. Knisley, Alvah Taylor, Goodwin & Williams, N. J.
Bozarth, J. D. Conner, Collens & Adair, Combs, Miller & Bell, Shryock & Conner,
W. G. Penfield, John 3. Bender and Jesse D. Chaplin.

SCHOOLS IN WARSAW.

Their early bistory is obscure, the records, if any were kept, having disappeared.
The first authentic account to be obtained is from Mr. J. A. Funk, who taught
during the winter of 1844-45; he was employed by Mr. John Rogers for the
township, at $17 per month, boarding himself. The school-room was on Lot 218,
on Ft. Wayne street. FHe was succeeded by Clark, who taught in the old Court
House. Mr. Funk taught again, in 1850 and 1852, in the new schoolhouse, on
Indiana street, in the south part of the town, and again in 1854, at which time he
had from 140 to 150 pupils enrolled, with an average of 120 in attendance. This
was a subscription school, at $2 per term of thirteen weeks; he was assisted by
Miss Emeline Yocum. This was the first school in the county in which two
teachiers were employed. Mrs. Jane Cowan started her school about this time;
her school was afterward known as ¢ Mrs. Cowan’s Seminary.” J. L. D. Burnett
succeeded Mr. Funk in the winter of 1855-56. In 1858, the first public school
was opened. Prof. D. T. Johnson was employed as teacher, and, subsequently,
had charge of the graded school, concerning which there is nothing definite—
Prof. Johnson failing to respond afier promising to do so.
rumor, had three rooms on the first floor and one above; five teachers were
employed. The successive Superintendents reported were Brown, Viclus Butler,
D. W. Thomss, A. li. Elwood, E. 0. Miller and W. H. Wheeler, the present
incumbent.,

The first corps of teachers is found on a leaflet report for 1870, and is as fol-
lows:

Superintendent, D. W. Thomas; High School, Miss V. A. Rundles, M. A.;
Grammar School, Mrs. A. C. Wait; Intermediate, Miss E. M. Huffman; Senior
Secondary, Miss L. A. Baldwin ; Junior, Miss Ella Dresser; Primary, Mrs. S. A.
Hoibrook and Miss Florence Frasier.

Board of Trusiees.—A. T. 8. Kist, President ; Thomas Woods, Secretary ; Will-
iam Cosgrove, Treasurer. Accompanying this report is a course of study for the
several departments and the stated meetings of the Board.

The school buildings were erected in 1872-73. The statement concerning them
was kindly furnished by M. B. Funk.

The ground for the East Ward cos
‘I'he ground for the West Ward cos
The two buildings ready for seating cost..
Furnaces, seats, blackboards, grading grou

$ 400 00
675 00
15,650 00
encing 1,848 75

This school, from |

Miss Mary A. Wheeler, Pulaski, Mich.; D Grammar, Miss Lizzie B. Edmonston,
Quincy, Mich.; Intermediate, Miss Etta Stewart, Terre Haute, Ind.; Primary,

Miss Hattie Estatrook, Terre Haute, Ind.
East Ward—Intermediate, Miss Katc Bidwell, Lims, Ohio; Primary, Miss
C Grammar, Miss Nellie Wyllis, Hillsdale, Mich.; I di

o

A? Poland, William ('Brien, hn Cook and Charles Sleeper; the Stewards were
P. L. Runyan, Willlam McEiwain, Joseph Chester, John Buck, Joel Fish and
Joshua Caldwell. 5

During 1844, the first Sabbath school was organized at Warsaw, with forty
scholars, six teachers, and Joel Fish, Superintendent ; reported by the preacher as
““ @ whol, school ™’

Cora Folwell, White Pigeon, Mich.

West Ward—

Miss Mary White, Dublin, Ind.; Primary, Miss Dells White, Dublin, Ind.

The introduction to this little volume, entitled * Graded Course of Instruction
* % of the Public Schools of the City of Warsaw,” by the Superintendent, Will-
iam H. Wheeler, is, perhaps, the most d d y of *“ what i
an education” to be found anywhere, aud will, doubtless, aid in shaping the
course for many who desire to acquire a liberal store of knowledge. He says:

“The opinions that prevail as to the nature of a good education are 2s various
a8 are the estimates put upon human life and destiny. The extremes ure found in
the intense animal man, who makes his study bear upon the sourcee of animal
gratification, snd in the intensely spiritual man, who passes the life of & hermit in
bewailing the existence of a body and in attempting to erucify all those desires and
affections that connect him with the things of this world. The latter is, without
doubt, the nobler of the two; but to one who recognizes man's double nature,
neither can be regarded as entirely satisfactory to man or his Maker.

“In general terms, that education is the best which best fits man to make the
most of all his life relations. In other words, he is best educated who makes him-
self the best son, the best brother, the best husband, the best father—the most

ful artisan or , the most useful member of society—the best citi-
zen, the most enlightened patriot—the most intelligent lover of his race and of
God. In pursuit of such an education, the studies of our schools serve as efficient
means toward an end, but they are not the end sought.

“Those who make arithmetic, grammar, geography and history, natural
science, classics or metaphysics, the end of their study, will never attain a good
education. All these have some intrinsic value. The necessities of trade and of
commerce make arithmetic and navigation valuable in themselves. Our social
relations make knowledge of the rules of speech very desirable. Knowledge of
geography and history is essential to one who would become an intelligent citizen,
more especially in this land, where the citizen is responsible for the conduct of
public affairs; added to this, the knowledge of other times and of other lands,
much of which is locked up in forms strange to us, may be made available through
the study of the ancient classics. The principles of chemistry are of value to those
whose lungs and whose stomach are vast laboratories, as well as to one who would,
from the hard soil, bring forth the materials to be wrought over into bone and muscle
and strength. So, in each department, study has some value in itself, and the more
one knows of books the better, if he stops not with the books, and makes not the
acquisition of their contents the end of his study. What others have written and
said and done may help us toward the end of study—tbe ability to write, to say
and to do for ourselves. Books are as needful to the mind as is food to the body;
and useless, unless digested and made part of ourselves—nay, sometimes worse
than useless, as undigested food is often the source of positive injury. The proper
question for each teacher to ask is, not how much have my pupils swallowed, but
how much have they digested—not how full are they, but how much strength have
they gained—not how many rules have they committed, but how many principles
have they mastered—not how far have they traveled, but how much have they
observed by the way—not how much more do they know, but how much better
have they become? The higher and better uses of all studies are their indirect
uses—the benefits that flow through their proper prosecution, in greater power of
attention, enlarged comprehension, quickened curiosity, greater self-control, and
wider and more far-reaching influence over others. We are told that knowledge
of self is the best knowledge. The best self-knowledge is consciousness of power
in all departments of our being. He who is conscious of the most of this power,
has the best education, no matter what his merely scholastic attainments may be.

1 have thus far spoken of books as a means to a good education ; but there are
other means to this end, which no good teacher will overlook or lightly esteem.
The teacher is studied more than all the books used in our schools ; and order, neatness,
cleanliness; punctuality, truthfulness, self-respect, self-control, obedience to rule, kind-
ness, forbearance, courtesy, considerateness, affability, politeness, sympathy and live,
wrought into the life of the teacher, so as to be recognized, at all times, as u part of his
very being, will do more toward improving the character and developing the power of
the student, than all other agencies combined.

¢ The absence of any of the qualities named above, does seriously impair the
influence of the teacher, however great it may be in other respects, and the very
best instruction in matters treated of in books, cannot atone for the lack of good
personal influence.”

We have italicised the lines in the preceding paragraph, in order to call atten-
tion to the fact, that if those qualifications are essential to the good teacher, they
are equally essential to the student—the future citizen. With this code of qual-
ifications exemplified, we will soon discover the greatest improvement in society
that the world has yet seen.

In addition to the usual duties of superintending the schools, Prof. Wheeler
has, during the years 1878 and 1879, conducted classes in the following branches :
Ancient history, English literature and civil Government, and has two reading

1 in

Totalicsvssnszvnsosssssssassasessssasssadsosassssasssssonsonsass $18,018 15
The old building used for a High School was sold for $1,000. The new build-
ing erected on the same ground, belonging to the city school corporation, being
Lots 181, 172, 173 and 174.
The building cost ready for seatin,

creneenenn$15,824 23
Furnaces, seats, blackboards, fenei

e.;.;-eos oost 2,700 00
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in due form—of ¢ Warsaw Publie School, 1876-76,”

The next report—the fir
exhibits the following :

Board of Fducution.—N. N. Boydston, President; H. W. Upson, Secretary;
J. D. Thayer, Treasurer; O. W. Miller, Superintendent.

Teachers—Center S:hool.—Mrs. C. A, Haas, High School ; Mrs. 8. C. Long,
Grammar A ; Miss Emma Hayward, Grammar B; Miss Mollie Neff, Grammar C;
Miss Sarah L. Hodge, Intermediate; Miss 8. A. Holbrook, Primary.

ast School—Mrs. H. F. Miller, Intermediate; Mrs. M. H. Frasier, Primary.

West School—Mrs. Celestin Grant, Intermediate ; Miss Ella Fetters, Primary.

Following tlis we find rules and regulations and a course of study, with a
decided upward tendency in the requirements as well. Supplementary to the
High School is a Normal class for the instruction of those preparing to teach.

The names of the tenchers and Superintendent fur the year commencing
September 9, 1877, are as follows:

Superintendent, W. H. Wheeler; Miss Lizzie . Horney, Principal of High
School; Charles A. Sturgis, Grammar A ; Miss A. M Crawford, Grammar B ; Miss
Mary.A. Wheeler, Grammar (; Mise Etta Harris, Grammar D ; Miss Etta Stowart,
Intermediate; Miss Hattie Estabrooke, Primary.

Last Ward—Miss Belle Wilson, Intermediate ; Miss Alice Smith, Primary.

West Ward—Miss Nellie 8. Wyllis, Grammar; Miss Mary A. White, Inter-
nediote ; Miss Della White, Primary.

For the school year commencing September 0, 1878:

W. H. Wheeler, Superintendent; Charles A. Sturgis, Principal of the High
School ; Miss Nellie S. Wyllis, Grammar A ; Miss Mary A. Wheoler, Grammar B;
Mies Lillie B. Edmonston, Grammar ss Etta Stewart, Intermediate; Miss
Hattie Estabrooke, Primary.

East Wurd—Miss Stella Sturgis, Intermediate; Miss Cora Folwell, Primary.

West NWard—Miss Agnes Mclntyre, Grammar; Miss Mary White, Inter-
mediate ; Miss Della White and Miss Mamie Taylor, Primery.

The whole number of pupils enrolled in the schools during the school year
1877-78 was 683. The average attendance during the year was 528.

The whole number of pupils enrolled during the school year 1878-79 was 713,
and the average attendance during the year was 609.

The first *“ conmencement exercises,’”’ at which the first class received diplomas
from this school, were held at the Opera House in May, 1878. The members of
the Graduating Class were Miss Belle Weimer, Miss Alice Carpenter and Miss Mary
Shaffer.

The second annual commencement exercises were held at the Opera House May
8, 1879, when a class of eight members graduated, to wit, Melville P. Frasier,
Minnie M. Berst, Will S. Encell, Rose A. McCauley, Edgar E. Hendee, Zuls
McConnell, Charles A. Egner and Anns Gray.

The schools are now well supplied with maps, globes and apparatus, and are in
s flourishing condition. A large number of students from abroad are in attend-
ance.

The report for 1878-79 shows the following: Teachers, Central Building—High
Bchool, Miss Lizzie L. Horney, Richmnond, Ind.; A Gramwmar, C. A. Sturgis,
Sturgis, Mich.; B Grammar, Miss M. A. Crawford, Normal, Il.; C Grammar,

in Shakespeare and one in Dickens. Thus familiarizing the student
with thoughts of our great writers, and aptly leading them to inmitate them in
delineating life with its morals, and to emulate the good deeds of men.

METHODIST EPISCOPAL CHURCH.

Rev, Richard Hargrave preached the first sermon in Warsaw, in a tamarack
pole cabin, probably erected by Matthew D. Springer, on the site now occupied by
the residence of Eheed Webb. This incident was obtained from Mr. Hargrave.

The first Quarterly Conference met at Warsaw, then known as the Mission,
embracing all of Kosciusko County, on the 26th day of January, 1839. Rey.
George Beswick was Presiding Elder, and Thomas P. Owen, Missionary in charge.
The Local Preachers were Peter Warner, J. Ockerman, Alexander McElwain and
Edwin Cone; the ®xhorters were John Cook, T. Blake, John Wood, Robert War-
ner, Aquilla Belt, William Devenny, Joel Martin, Alexander Richhart, George
Warner and George Hartshorn; the Stewards were William Alexander, H. Bowdle,
R. H. Lansdale and James McLeod ; the Class-Leaders were Daniel Webb, John

| Frush, Daniel Groves, John Doke, David Hayden, L. D, Warner, Isaac Kern,

Charles Ketcham, Henry Edgell, E. 8. Blue and Aquilla Belt. The places of meet-
ing, in those days, were Warsaw, Warner's, Bowdle's, Groves’, McNeal's, Cone’s,
Webster's, Blake's, Syracuse, Sparklin's, McCloud’s, Leesburg, Dunham’s, Hall's
and Belt's. The salary of the ministers was fixed by a law of the Church—the
amount for a single man being $100; a man with a wife, $200 ; and so much for
each child of a certain age; also an allowance for house rent, table expenses,
horse feed, fuel, etc., by & committee appointed for the purpose. The report was
subject to the decision of the Quarterly Conference. Rev. Thomas P. Owen was
allowed $70 for table expenses; he labored one year; being in feeble health, was
assisted by Joseph Ockerman, a local preacher, to whom was paid $16. Mr. Owen
received, from the society, $31.06; other support he received from the Missionary
Treasury of the Church.

The first camp meeting was held in the latter part of June, 1839, on what was
called Groves’ Camp Ground. At the Annual Conference, in the fall of 1830, this
charge was named Warsaw Circuit, and attached to South Bend District, with Rev.
Aaron Wood, Presiding Elder, and Elza Van Choi, Pastor in charge—embracing
the same territory as formerly.

The Recording Steward’s book, shows that the Pastor in charge received, this
year, $39.93, and the Presiding Elder, $4.25, of which sum the Warsaw society
paid $4.25, this being the first record of any contribution in that direction made
by Warsaw. This year, William McGinley, Local Preacher, and Samuel Wamsley,
Exhorter, were added to the official list.

In the fall of 1840, 8. K. Young was Pastor in charge; some time during the
spring of 1841, Rev. 0. V. Lemon appears to have been employed by the Presiding
Elder, Rev. 0. Wood. to assist Brother Young as a junior preacher. This year,
the amount paid by the entire circuit, was $94.34, which was apportioned between
the Presiding Elder and two preachersg Warsaw circuit paid (this year) $5.25.
This year closed with & camp meeting, held in Peter Warner’s Camp Ground, in
the early part of September, 1341. 0. V. Lemon was in charge of the meeting.
Their labors were signally blessed to the good of the people. Warsaw was attached
to Fort Wayne District. Rev. Burrus Westlake, Presiding Elder. This year,
Brother Lemon was allowed $75 for table expenses; and received, for his year's
labor, the sum of $163.86, and the Presiding Elder received $20.50.

In 1843, the circuit was divided ; Rev. Elihu Anthony was appointed Preacher
in charge, and brother Westlake, Presiding Elder. In the division, the following
members constituted the officiary of Warsaw Circuit at the close of the year:
Local Preachers, P. Warner, A. McElwain, William McGinley, Edwin Cone, William
Palmer and Joseph Fallersbee; Exhorters, Josepl Chester, A. Belt, 8. Wamsley,

The next preacher sent to this circuit was Nelson Green, a young man ; helived
among the people, and huw study was mostly on horseback, going from one appoint-
ment to another. There was a general religious awakening; the meetings were
held in the Court House (which stood on the site now occupied by the Baptist
Church) ; many whd had been enemies for years were made friends through the
influence of the Gospel ; Warsaw, at this date, could write on her banner, All for
Jesus !

1t was near the close of this year, that the first efforts at building & new church
in Warsaw were made. James Stinsin donated a lot, the same now occupied by
the church. The plan was matured, the contract let, the timbers procured during
the winter and early spring of 1846, and the building raised ; but it stood in that
c:ndition until it was the snbject of remark throughout the county.

The following 1s an exhibit of those who haveserved the Church in the ministry
from and after the date of the first Quarterly Conference held at Warsaw :

PASTOR IN CHARGE. DATE.
Rev. Thomas P. Owen J ry 26, 1839
Rev. Elza Van Choi e : 1840
Rovi B, Ki-Xonng icicess masies cosnartivsssiacossesnomsar e irnenomn | 1841
Rev. 0. V. Lemon 1841-2
Rev. Elihu Anthony 1843

Rev. Nelson Green
Rev. Enoch Holstock......
Rev. Ancel Beach
Rev. Abraham Carey.....
Rev. George M. Beswick
Rev. C. 8. Burgner .
Rev. Samuel Lamb.
Rev. J. B. Birt..,
Rev. Abram Stoner (three-fourths of a year) .
Rev. J. 8. Helfield (one and one-half years)...
Rev. William R. Kestler (one and one-quarter years).
Rev. Thomas Stabler..
Rev. 8. M. Campbell
Rev. J. J. Cooper.
Rev. E. F. Hasty.
Rev. Thomas Comstoc!
Rev. A. Marine

L1838
1860
1862

Rev. F. T. Simpson .
Rev. W. 8. Birch..
Rev. W. 8. Birch.
PRESINING ELDER.

Rev. George Beswick .
Rev. Aaron Wood ...
Rev. Aaron Wood (in the spring
Rev. Barnes Westlake (fall)
Rev. Barnes Westlake......
Rev. Barnes Westlake.
Rev. W. II. Good (spring) ..
Rev. Barnes Westlake

Rey. Philip May
Rev. Philip May
Rev. C. M. Holliday
Rey. 0. V. Lemon
Rev. 0. V. Lemon
Rev, 0. V.
Rev. J. M.
Rev. W. L.
Rev. W. L.
Rev. J. B.
Rev. J. B. Demott
Rev. Jacob Colelazer.
Rev. Jacob Colelaze
Rev. J. V. R. Miller
Rev. J. V. R. Mille
Rev. J. V.
Rev. J.
Rev. J.
Rev. J.

Rev. William Wilson ..

Rey. William Wilson 11868

Rev. L. W. Monson............ 1870
Rev. L. W. Monson 187i-2-4
Rey. N. H. Philips (spring) J1874-8
Rev. John M. Welch (spring) 1878

The present church was finished in the spring of 1868, at a cost of $22,919.75,
and its capacity is rated at 700 sittings.

The Sunday school has 400 scholars enrolled. 'The Superintendent, Joseph A.

Funk, has filled that position since 1849 except twelve months during which he
was in the Legislature, and in California.
The present membership of the Church is 383, and the number of probationers
67.
We return thanks to Joseph A. Funk for the data from whick this sketch is
prepared.

FIRST PRESBYTERTAN CHURCH.

The First Preshyterian Charch of Warsaw, Kosciusko Co , Ind., was organized
by Rev. J. Wolff, November 7, 1840, by authority of Logansport Presbytery, with
the following members: William Williams, Mary Williams, Peter Hover, Isaac
Lucas, Cathavine Lucas, Priscilla Davis, Mary McFadden, Eliza Nye, Eliza Vaa,
Curen. William Williums and Peter [{over were elected Ellers.

May 16, 1843, Samuel L. Andrews, Isaac Lucas and Thomas Logan were chosen
Elders, and Rev. J. Ogden Pastor. g

In December, 1843, Rev. L, G. Weeks took charge of the Church, and served
as Pastor until 1848,

In May, 1849, Rev. Thomas Bascom became Pastor, and served two years.

In 1844, Daniel and Nancy Pittenger united with the Church by letter, and to
theirhe:nergy and zeal the Church is largely indebted for their present houfe of
worship.

Rey. J. N. Swan supplicd the Church for about one year, beginning in August,
1854. On the 13th of August, same year, Elders Robert Cowen and John Sloan
united with the Church by Ietter, and are still in the Church.

During the summer of 1855, Rev. W. 8. Wilson was called to the pastorate, and
served until June, 1857,

During 1866, the church was built (on the south side of Market street, near
High), at a cost of about $1,300.

Rev. C. P. Spinning was a supply for one year, beginning in September, 1867.

In December, 1868, Rev. C. F. Beach supplied the Church, and continued in
that relation one year and a half.

In June, 1870, Rev. J. E. Taylor took charge of the Church, and remained
about eix months, when Rev. Jacob Little (nearly eighty years of age) efficiently
and gratuitously ministered to the Church until the advent of Rev. G. W. Wilson,
in August, 1871, and who was installed Pastor February 20, 1872, and served the
Church until April 1, 1877. Since that time, Thomas Boyd, a student of the
Northwest Seminary, at Chicago, has supplied the pulpit, much to their edification
and instruction.

The Session is composed of the following Elders: Robert Cowen, John Sloane,
R. C. Smith, A. J. Bair, 8. W. Chipman and De Wit Harris.

The present membership is 126. The Trustees are 8. W. Chipman, J. M.
Reed, D. P. Nichols. The Sunday school numbers 125; the Sunday-school teach-
ers number 16; S. W. Chipman, Superintendent; J. F. Shoemaker, Assistant
Superintendent.

The Presbytery of Fort Wayne met at Warsaw, Ind., April 15, 1879, Rev. J.
Mitchel, Moderator. During the session, Thomas Boyd, a licentiate of the North-
west Seminary, submitted a call from the Presbyterian Church of Warsaw, asking
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him to become their Pastor, ai s of $1,000 per snnum, signed by the com-
mittee appointed, to wit.: A: J. Bair, Chairman; S. W. Chipman, R. C. Smith,
John Slosne, Robert Cowen, De Wit Harris, Wooden 8. Marshall, D, P. Nichols,
W. D. Fraser, A. J. Mershon snd John M. Reed. The opening sermon Was

In 1852, Warsaw was made a permanent mission, and attended by Rev. John Ryan,
of La Gro, Wabash Co., Ind. New missions, with increased duties, mude it nec-
essary for him to commit this post to other hands, and he was succeeded by Rev.
Francis Lawler, who visited Warsaw during three years, and by Revs. John Force,

0,

by Rev. W. J. Eesick, of Elkhart. The y of jon and
llation was then conducted. The questions previous to ordinati were by the
Moderator, Bev. John Mitchel. The charge to the Pastor wsa given by Rev. H. L.
Vannuys, of Goshen. The charge to the people was given by Rev. W. H. MoFar-
1and, of Fort Wayne.

Mr. Boyd was born in Fayetts County, Penn.,, in 1847. His parents were
Joseph snd Elvira A. (nee MoMillan) Boyd, born in Pennsylvania, and were of
Irish descent,

yd gradusted at Wooster University, Ohio, in 1873 ; was admitted
to the bar by the Supreme Court of Illinois in 1875; he practiced law one year,
and then entered the Presbyterian Theological Seminary of the Northwest, at
Chicago, in 1876, and graduated there in the spring of 1879. Thus we present &
brief outline’of & young man whom the congregation had engaged to serve them
for some time prior to his graduation and ordination, and who has been found
worthy of their admirstion snd esteem to such a degree that the con; ion is

1y i ing since his installation as Pastor, an unmistaksble evidence of
his ability, and having found his proper sphere.

CHURCH OF CHRIST.

1In 1849, Elder John Gordon moved from the Church at Jelloway, Knax Co.,
Ohio, to Warsaw, and being desi of ing & church he ind d Isaac Butler,
living in Marshsll County, to come and preach in Warsaw. He continued to
preach at intervals for a year or more, and, in 1851, organized a church with eleven
members. John Gordon was selected as Elder, and continued in that office until
his deuth, September 17, 1877, Often when none but his family were present, Elder
Gordon would break the loaf in commemoration of the Savior's death. The meet-
ings being held st Elder Gordon’s house, were kept up regularly until 1865. The
Church solicited the Christian Missionary Board to assist them, and Elder Robert
Howe, Becretary of the Indians Christian Missionary Society, and M. N. Lord, of
La Porte, were sent, and held a series of meetings, and many were gathered into
the fold.

In the spring of 1865, Elders M. N. Lord and Willism McElvaine organized a
Church, when John Gordon and Noah Watts were selected as Elders, Jacob Nye
and H. B. Stanley, as Deacons. J. B. Marshall was chosen Pastor and began his
ministry May 1, 1865. In the early part of this year, the society purchased s
house of William Cosgrove, formerly owned by the Presbyterians, for which they
paid $400. They also purchased a lot &No. 305, originsl plat, city of Warsaw)
of John Gordon, at $500, and then moved the house at an expense of $250, and
have continued to occupy it.

In December of this year, Elder Noah Watts died, in the triumph of a living
faith. Subsequently, A. F. Leamon was chosen as Elder to fill the vacancy caused
by the death of Elder Noah Watts. Elder Marshall continued with the Church as
its Pastor until May, 1867. During his ministry, seventy-two were added to the
church membership.

In October, 1867, the Church called Elder W. 8. Windfield, who preached for
them one year; and October 31, 1868, Elder A. F. Leamon was set apart for the
ministry. The brotherhood accepted him as their Pastor.

In 1870, the Church again employed J. B. Marshall, who labored with them
one year. In April, 1870, the Church selected and set apart E. V. Peck and Hudson
Beck as Elders, and Ephraim Reynolds and Isaac Barr a8 Deacons. During 1871
and 1872, they had no regular preaching. In 1878, the Church ecalled Elder M.
M. Gleason to preach for them, and he served until June, 1875 ; during his minis-
tration, forty-four were added to the fold. In October, 1875, Elder W. R. Lowe
was called to the pastorate, and has served the Church ever since ; during his time,
one hundred and twenty-five have been added to the Church. Since 1865, the

llowing Elders have assisted the Pastors of this Church in p d ings :

of Valparaiso, Shaffer, Sieglack and Rademacher, of Columbia City, Steiner and Zun-
valler, of Plymouth, successively, until the year 1876, when Rev. F. Wiechman became
Pastor, and, under his management, two lots were purchased of J. D. Widaman, on
West Market street, at a cost of $800, and the corner-stone of the present hand-
some brick church wes laid on the 4th of July of the same yesr, Right Rev.
Joseph Dwenger, D. D., Bishop of Fort Wayne, officisting. The building was rap-
idly pushed to pletion, and was dedicated to the service of God on the 10th
of June, 1877. Its dimensions are 84 feet long by 40 feet wide, with seating
capacity of 400, and cost $8,000.

Father F. Wiechman also attends Wabash and North Manchester. Services are
held once & month, st which time he also teaches the Sunday school, and on the
ather Sundays it is taught by Mrs. T. Leighton.

The Chureh is under the jurisdiction of Right Rev. Joseph Dwenger, D. D.,
Bishop of Fort Wayne.

EPISCOPAL CHURCH.
[sT. ANDREWS.]

Monday evening, April 22, 1861, the Rev. Edward P. Wright, Rector of Trin-
ity Church, Michigan City, visited Warsaw and held services in the M. E. Church.
This was the first Episcopal service held in the county. The Right Rev. George
Upfold, D. D., Bishop of the Diocese, held service May 17, 1861, and on the 18th
of that month, baptized Luells, infant daughter of Walter and Susan R. Scott.
May 25, 1861, a meeting was held for the purpose of organizing a parish. Dr. J.
W. Quayle was Chairman, and Edward Murphy, Secretary. Articles of Association
were adopted and signed by Walter Scott, James W. Quayle, Oliver Musselman, H.
W. Upson, ~amuel A. Wright, E. V. Long, Ebenezer Hazzard, William B. Funk,
Moses J. Long, Henry Mortimer and Henry Gilbert. A meeting was then held
for the election of Wardens and Vestrymen; the following were chosen : Dr.
Henry Gilbert, William C. Graves, Dr. James W. Quayle, Walter Scott and Edward
Murphy. At the first meeting of the Vestry, held May 28th same year, Walter
Scott, was elected Senior Warden, and James W. Quayle, Junior Warden.

The Second Presbyterian Church wes rented, and, June 23, 1861, the fourth
Sunday after Trinity, the Rev. Louis P. Tschiffely visited the parish and preached.
An election was tendered to him, which he accepted, taking effect October 1, 1861,
when he took charge of the parish. October 20, & Sunday school was organized,
with eight scholars.

April 27, 1862, the Bishop made his first officiel visitation; he preached and
administered communion. This was the first time the Holy Eucharist was admin-
istered in the parish. Four persons were confirmed.

December 3, 1862, the Rev. L. P. Tschiffely was advanced to the Priesthood, at Ft.
Wayne, and thus became ex-officio Rector of St. Andrews, and continued to serve
until July 12, 1865, when he retired. No services were held from that time until
March 17, 1864; when Rev. Albert 5. Wells officiated, and, Janunary 1, 1865, Rev.
Abraham Reeves, Deacon, became Minister in charge of the parish.

May 12, 1865, the Rt. Rev. Bishop Kemper visited the parish and confirmed
seven candidates. In May, 1865, the building that they occupied for worship was
sold, and the congregation then assembled in Union School House until June,
1866, and from that time until November, services were held in the Baptist
Church. In the spring of 1866, Hon. William Williams donated to the parish a
lot, on condition that & church be erected upon it ; and arrangements were made
for the erection of & wooden building 25x50 feet, with recess chancel 15x10, and
vestry-room 10x10. The building had been erected and was being lathed when—
June 21, 1866—a tornado swept over the town and laid the church in ruins ; loss
$1,000. In November, 1866, through the kindness of Auditor W. B. Funk, the
use of the Court.room was obtained for church purposes. January 30, 1866, Rt.
Rev. J. C. P. Talbot, D. D., LL. D., who succeeded Rt. Rev. Bishop Upfold to the

Robert Howe, W. McElvaine, M. N. Lord, W."J. Howe, J. N. Aylesworth, W. P.
Aylesworth and Knowles Shaw. Since 1865, there have been two hundred and
ninety-three added to the Church, eighty-five ismissed by letter, eigh d d

piscopate of the Diocese, visited the parish and confirmed two; he again visited
the parish March 3, 1867, and confirmed five.
August 80, the Rev. Abraham Reeves resigned the parish, to take effect
Samber1

and forty-six expelled and left without letter. The present membership iz one
hundred and forty-four.

The present officers of the Church are: E. V. Peck, Elder; John R. Weiss and
Joseph Mort, Deacons, and A. F. Leamon, Clerk.

The Sunday school has an average attendance of seventy-eight. A. F. Leamon,
Superintendent ; Nanie Peck, Assistant.,

The foregoing data furnished by A. F. Leamon.

FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH.

This organization was begun by Rev. Edward Desborough, deceased, with the
following members: 8. B. Clark, Hester A. Clark (his wife), L. P. Howe and
Elizabeth his wife, [saac Brady, Daniel Weiss, Sarab Bates, Mrs. Ruhanna Losure
and Mrs. Jane Knowles.

This society was constituted January 11, 1851, and first held religious services in
the N. 8. Presbyterian Church. In the following fall and winter they built their
first house of worship, on the hill upon a lot donated by Hood & Brittain, pro-
prietors of that part of Warsaw. The house had about three hundred sittings.~

The following persons served as Pastors according to the dates opposite their
names :

Daniel Thomas, from Nov. 6, 1852, to Sept. 24, 1854, deceased.
«

Ira Gratton, May 6, 1855, “ July 8, 1858, “

M. A. Kerr, “  QOct. ..., 1858, * Oet. ..., 1861, “

R. H. Cook, «  Feb. 1, 1862, * March 10, 1864. 4,
John Certer, «  July 17, 1866, * March 10, 1867,

J. B. Hutton,  * Sept. 8, 1867, * Sept. 6, 1868, resigned.
D. L. Clouse, « June 9, 1870, *“ Nov. 21, 1870, “

A. L. Seward, «  Nov. 81, 1870, « Jan. 22, 1871.

F. Moro, «  June 22, 1871, “ May ..., 1873, retired.
C. A. Claxk, «  May 26, 1878, ¢  Qct. 25, 1873.

A. B.Soyder,  ** April 12, 1874, * June 6, 1875.

J. B. Tuttle, «  Fab. 18, 1876, ** Feb. 13, 1878.

A. A. Hopkins, ** April 14, 1878, « Oct. 14, 1878, excluded.

They have no Pastor at this time. - .
,- The first Deacons were 8. B. Clark, L. P. Howe; Clerk, Isaac Brady. The
mt Deacons are 8. B. Clark, J. J. Morris, A. J. Bates; Clerk, Charles Rigdon ;
rer, T. A. Goodwin; Trustees, M. W, Mumaw, William Miller, John Miller,
David Winant, H. B. Avery, W. W. Holl ; Organist, Rosa Conrad. The member-
ship is about one hundred and ninety-five.
The Sunday school numbers one hundred and fifty. The Superintendent is
8. B. Clark ; Secretary, David Winant; Treasurer, Dora Brown ; Librarian, Homer
Jupes. The present church edifice was begun in the summer of 1864, and dedi-
December 16, 1866, and cost about $8,000. It has a seating capacity of four
hundred. There i3 & church debt of $800. The church burned Sabbath, August 20,
1871, and was rebuilt in the same walls, and again occupied December 21,1871.  The
rebuilding cost about $2,600.

CATHOLIC CHURCH.

The history of the Catholic Church in Northern Indiana is closely allied to the
early settlement of the State. Early in 1820, Rev. Father Stephen Theodore
Badin, of Bardstown, Ky., traveled Indisna from end to end, preaching and locat-
ing missions. * There were few Catholics in any one place, and his mivistrations
were from house to house, and the extent of his journeys is evidence of his pious
geal. As the population increased, snd the facilities for travel and transportation
multiplied, cansls and railrosds usurped the ox-wagon routes, and with these
+ public works "’ came members of the Church. They were mostly Irisk, and set-
tled along the lines of these thoroughfares, thus forming the nucleus of the many
large and flourishing congregations. They were true to their faith, and smong
the first acts of these settlers, when their numbers and means permitted, was to
erect a church. Among those early settlements are Fort Wayne, Columbia City,
Pierceton, Plymouth, Velparaiso and Warsaw. The latter remsined longest with-
out & church edifice, although, until the year 1876, rejoicing in the attendance of
missionary Iabors. During the last thirty-five years, divine service was held

1y in the houses of some mewbers of the Church. During the days of
ding railrosds, service was held in *shanties,” or boarding-places for the
laborers ; but in that humble manner, their hip w btl i
God, to whom their prayers were offered, s though
cathedral.

88 as p g to
made in the most elegant

The brick church: September 8, the bricklayers began work on the new
church on Lot No. 197, in Warsaw.

Sunday 2, 1868, the first services were held in the new edifice, the Bishop offi-
ciating.

October b, 1866, Walter Scott, who had been connected with the parish since
its organization, was admitted a candidate for Holy Orders. From September 8, 1867,
until January 5, 1868, he officiated as Lay Reader, and also from February 9 to
March 1. March 8, he was made Deacon in Trinity Church, Ft. Wayne, and
remained as Minister in charge of the parish until May 3, 1868, when he removed
from the parish. Rev. Robert Ryall officisted during the summer and fall of 1869.

The ladiee completed the church in February, 1869, and, November 28, Rev.
Walter Scott accepted the rectorate of the parish; he resigned in November, 1871.

April 20, 1878, Lay Services were begun by John 8. Irwin, M. D., of Fort Wayne.
October 11, 1874, Rev. A. Kinney Hall was appointed Missionary in this parish ;
began service June 11, 1875, served in connection with the parish, which was
vacant, until Rev. A. E. Bishop officiated during the summer of 1876. W. F. Dick-
insom, M. D., a candidate for Holy Orders, acted as Lay Reader during the winter
of 1876-77, and until May 1, 1877, when he was admitted to Desconship in Trin-
ity Church, Fort Wayne. Rev. W. F. Dickinson remained in charge of the parish
uniil May, 1878, when he removed to Pennsylvania. By appointment of Bishop
Talbot, Rev. W. 8. Speirs, A. M., late Assistant Minister in Christ Church, Hamil-
ton, Diocese of Niagara, Province of Ontario, Canada, assumed charge of the par-
ish, and was elected Rector in June, 1878, and is still in charge, also officiating at
Columbis City, one Sunday each month. In February, 1879, there were forty-two
communicants. The average attendance in Sunday school is seventy. Hon. E. V.
Long is Superintendent, and A. P. Wood, Assistant Superintendent.

FOUNDRY PLOWS.

This industry was begun by D. P. Kenson and @. R. Thralls, about 1855, in the
old frame building on Lot No. 278, being the northeast corner of Main and Lake
streets, The place was familiarly known as « Buzzard Roost.” The novelty of
such a place in those days doubtless attracted the old crones of the neighborhood,
who spent so much of their time there that they were compared to buzzards at
roost. The establishment uaderwent some changes in hip, b 3
sold out to Willism Sarber, and he subsequently sold to Kenson, and it was after-
ward run by Kenson & Gallegher; then Kenson & Beatty, who sold to Thomas
Carty and he to I. J. Morris, and the latter to Joseph Carty, who now operates in
8 building s few rods east of the old site, with two moulders and & helper, the
proprietor doing the machine-work.

Chris Smith runs the Warsaw Foundry and Machine Shop.

THE WARSAW MARBLE WORKS.

In 1856, A. J. Mershon erected a marble-shop on the north side of the public
square, in the city of Warsaw, and continued as its proprietor for two years, when
e sold it to P. S. Underhill. In 1858, Mr. Mershon purchased his former estab-
lishment, which he conducted until 1860. and sold out to D. Lamaroux. In May,
1¢62, & copartnership was formed by D. Lamaroux and M. C. Furlong. In the
following fall, Mr. Lamaroux disposed of his interest to R. H. Hitzler, who was
succeeded in the firm, three years later, by B. Hessel. In 1869, the shop was
removed to the corner of Market and Washington streets, where the business has
since been conducted.

In 1878, Mr. Furlong purchased the interest of Mr. Hessel, and associated
with him his son, G. W. Furlong, since which the business has been conducted by
Furlong & Son, and known as the Furlong Marble Works. The material used
comprises Vermont, Italian and Tennessee marble, American and Scotch granite.

WAGON AND CARRIfGE MANUFACTORIES.

The shop of Trish Brothers was established in 1856, by Louis Trish, deceased.

After his death, his sons John L. and Fred became proprietors, and have since

the business under the firm name above. The shop is a two-story frame,

located mear the corner of Washington and Center streets. They manufacture
carriages, buggies, farm and spring wagons, employing from four to five men.

The establishment of Willism Conrad was & branch of the firm of Whitten &
Conrad, South Bend, Ind., begun in 1857. Mr. Conrad came to Warsaw February
10, 1861 ; bought the property where his residence now is, and insugurated his
business with & capital of about $3,000. quently, the p hip was dis-
solved, Mr. Conrad remaining in Warssw. In 1872, he built his present work-

a1 Fl hi

shops, and, in 1878, i d imp and steam power, and has,
sinoe that time, manufactured his spokes and hubs. The work formerly done by
twenty men can now be done by fifteen, and has a finer appearance. r

The capacity of the works is about pine wagons and one buggy or carringe per
week. The capital invested is about $12,000, including premises and machinery.
The amount paid out annually for timber, all obtained in this county, principally
in Monroe, Clay, Jackson and J eofferson Townships, is about $5,000, and the
amount paid for wages annually is $6,000.

CHAPMAN'S MILL.

The building was begun in 1857, and completed in February, 1858, by Col. C.
W. Chap It was & hant mill, and did, perhaps, more work during the
first three years than ever since. The manufacturing capacity is 100 barrels of
flour per day of twenty-four hours, but has only averaged about three hundred
barrels per week. The custom work has avernged 60,000 bushels per year. The
owner conducted the mill until about three years ago, and then rented it to Will-
jam McSherry, who died about eighteen months later, when William G. Chapman
became the manager for the unexpired time of McSherry’s lease. 1n October,
1864, the mill was sold to J. D. Thayer for $13,000, and he has expended $10,000
additional on it : it has now four runs of stones, and ie rented to Keller & McCahill.

COOPERAGE.

The cooper-shop of Daniel Deeds, at the west end of Center street, was estab-
lished by Mr. Deeds in 1858, opposite his present location. 1In 1866, the shop was
destroyed by fire, when its proprietor erected his present establishment, where he
has successfully plied his trade. He manufactures his own staves, of which he
uses from 150,000 to 200,000 annually in the manufacture of slack and tight work,
consisting of flour and apple barrels, kegs, etc. He also manufactures and sells
from 100,000 to 175,000 hoops annually, employing from three to nine men,
according to the requirements of his trade.

' FLOURING-MILL.

The Warsaw City Flouring-Mill was established in 1858, by N. D, Heller and
N. W. Galentine, under the firm name of Heller & Galentine, and was then known
as ““the Lake City Flouring-Mill.”" They remained its proprietors for two years,
at the end of which time they sold the mill to James Porter. Two years later, Mr.
Porter sold it to James H. Carpenter, who subsequently sold it to William Cos-
grove, by whom it was operated for a time, and transferred to John Cond, by
Wwhom it was sold to its present owners, J. H. Shoup & Co., in 1873.  Messrs.
Shoup & Co. began operations January 1, 1874, and have continued to conduct
the establishment successfully since that time. They have four runs of stones, and
have & manufacturing capacity of 100 barrels of flour per day. 'The capacity of
the elevator is 6,000 bushels. Their market is found chiefly in New York, Phila-
delphia and Baltimore, although they conduct an extensive trade in the home
market. Between August, 1878, and April, 1879, they bandled between 30,000
and 85,000 bushels of grain.

AGRICULTURAL IMPLEMENTS.

The first manufacturing of machinery of this class was by Isaiah J. Morris
and Joseph Carty about 1864. The specialty was wood mills and cutting-boxes,
and occasionally a saw-mill. This was continued about two years, when Morris
sold out to Carty, and then became agent for agricultural implements exclusively,
having been engaged in that business as early as 1859, He was probably the first
man in the county who opened an agricultural implement store.

FURNITURE—UNDERTAKING.
[R. €. Ssrra.]

This establishment is located on the northeast cormer of Main and Lake
streets, once familiarly known as * Buzzard Roost.” The present proprietor pur-
chased the premises in March, 1867, and remodeled the building, and, in company
with R. H. Hitzler, stocked it with furniture. They continued in business until
June, 1872, and dissolved. Since that time, Mr. Smith has conducted it as a
coffin factory and undertaking blish The impr in the l
ism of the coffin and casket have kept pace with other branches of manufacture,
until now it would almost seem & luxury to be laid away in such style. Mr.
Smith is engaged in manufacturing some of the choicest work known to the art.
The Globe-end Casket, silver mountings; the Gem Casket, white marble finish, for

hild gantly lined throughout, with hinges and lock to the lid, silver name-
plate and mountings; and also has on hand the Stein Patent Casket, eloth and
velvet finish, satin lining, the royal purple finish and satin inside, a superb class
of goods. His stock of habiliments for the dead are most becoming. This indus-
try has strong claims on the community, furnishing as it does, the means of pay-
ing @ rich tribute to departed friends.

WAGON AND CARRIAGE FACTORY.

John Trish began this industry in 1870. The building is & two-story frame,
24x66 feot, located on Washington street. The classes of work manufactured
comprise farm and spring wagons, carringes and buggies. The average amount of
work completed during each year, is sixty-five wagons and buggies. The average
number of men employed is five.

PLOW AND CULTIVATOR HANDLES, WHEEL RIMS, ETC.
The firm of Lesh & Matthews was formed at Pierceton, Kosciusko Co., Ind.,

"in 1870. At that time they handled hard wood lumber by wholesale, obtaining it
Kosciusko and adjoini

dj g ies, and they operated along the railway commu-
ions; their busi d to over $75,000. They continued there two
years and removed to Warsaw, and, in 1876, added the manufacturing business, as
now conducted. Their preparations in this place involved an expenditure of about
$38,000, having purchased three-fourths of the block joining the railway, and
bounded by Market and Columbia streets, and erected their mill 70x100, four
stories high, and equipped by the most approved hinery. The out-building
are of ample dimensions. The amount of work turned out annually has reach:
$65,000. The force employed has averaged thirty-five men; the pay-roll runs
about $250 per week, nearly all of which is expended in Warsaw, thus making
quite & number of workmen fi ially easy, and di ing a hand; sum in
the community.

The sum expended for material which amounts to 1,500,000 feet of lumber, is
about $40,000. The material is obtained in Kosciusko, Wabash, Whitley, and Mar-
shall Counties, chiefly. The market is found chiefly in the West. They are enter-
prising, courteous gentlemen. ;

BUNG FACTORY.

The establishment of William L. Standish was located in Warsaw about the year
1870, and employs from fifteen to twenty persons (men and boys). Itisa branch
of Ar g Brothers & Co., P d bung facturers and cork works,
Pittsburgh, Penn. The capacity of the works is about sixty barrels of bungs per
day ; a barrel contains 1,700, ascertained by weighing ; this is estimated on the
medium size. Sacks and barrels are used : the former cost $8 per 100, and the
latter $14. The sacks hold as many as the barrels. The bungs are made of white
popler, sbundant in this county, and in which Mr. Standish recently invested
$10,000. The cooperage is purchased in Monroeville, Ind., and put upon the
premises by a man employed by the week. The men are employed at $1 per day,
and the boys at nominal wages. >

The power is a neat steam engine, by which the saw-mill and other machinery
is run. As a bung is the next thing to nothing at all in amount of wood, and bungs
for all kinds of barrels, such as syrup, molasses, vinegar, cider, beer, wine, liquor,
oil, ete., are in constant demand, this is the ¢ little giant’’ among the industries.
There's * millions in it.”” Mr. Standish is a wid ke i man, and this
establishment is the mesns of utilizing the forests of this kind of lumber in
Kosciusko County.

WARSAW WOOLEN MILLS.

The mills were insugurated in 1872. The Articles of Association and certifi-
cate of organization were recorded March 27, 1871, Book (Original

per) :
It is hereby certified that the undersigned desire to and hereby do form an incor-
porated company, to wit, -
1. The name of said imcorporated company shall be the Warsaw Woolen
Mills.




iI. The business of the compeay will be the manufasture of woolen yarms,
woolen goods, and of goods partly woolen and partly cotton, or other. materisl.

II1. The capital stock of the company will be forty thousand dollars, which
will be divided into shares of fifty dollars each, making eight hundred shares.

IV. The duration of the company shall be fifty years.

V. There shall be seven Directors of the company to manage its business, and
Theodore V..Horton, Francis M. Horton, James H. Cisney, Thomas Woods, Andrew
J. Bair, Silas W. Chipman and Charles W. Chapman shall be such Directors for the
first year.

VI. The operations of said company are to be carried on st the town of War-
saw, in the county of Kosciuske and State of Indiana.

In testimony whereof, we have executed this instrument in duplicate, placing
opposite to our names respectively, the number of shares of stock of said company,
for which we do severally subscribe, on this 17th day of December, A. D. 1870.
f{:r convenience, the aubscribers are given in groups, designated by the number of

res ibed—stated at the heading

The following persons subscribed for twenty-two shares each : C. W. Chapman,
James H. Cisney ;-and the following for ten shares each: Samuel H. Chipman, S.
W. Chipman, Thomas Woods, William Conrad, E. Hays, A. T. 8. Kist, J. A. Funk,
James H. Carpenter, Hendee & Glessner, Weight & Shoup, A. J. Mershon, T. H.
Prickle, J. B. Dodge, George Moon and Furlong & Co. ; Andrew J. Bair for twenty
#hares, and the following for five shares each: W. 8. Marshall, Ancil B. Ball, D.
Williams, J. S. Frazer, Edward Moon, W. G. Piper, Reub Williams, T. Daven-
port, W. Lightfoot, H. F. Berst, W. Williams, John K. Leedy, Isaac Wolf and
Samuel Wallace. The following for three shares each: John Sloan, Ruch & Shef-
field, Deny & Brother, Williams & Hossler, William Kirtley, Brown & Millice,
Edgar Haywood, M. Philipeon, E. Hatch, John N. Runyan, S, W. Oldfather, Levi
Zumbrum, J. Ruder, L. T. Wheeler, A. W, Thomas and Samuel Sechrist. The fol-
lowing for two shares each: W. P. Foster, P. Thomss, D. 8. Bitner, J. P. Quick,
A. D. Pittenger, John Harp, John Carter, H. S. Biggs, H. Smith, J. Boss, E. P.
Stickney, J. J. Morris, William Hass, Samuel Weirich, 0. P. Jaques, John R. Nye,
E. L. Burgess, Nelson Antt, Smith & Hitzler, William Hass, H. Lathrop and F. J.
Zimmerman ; and the following for the number affixed to their names: W. B.
Funk, six; P. Marvin & Son, four; D. W. Hamlin, four; T. V. & F. M. Horton,
four hundred ; and the following for one share each : Washington Vannater, H.
M. Dresser, C. W. Burkett, James W. Phillips, John B. Skinner, L. W. Bennett,
P. L. Runyan, Jr., B. F. Vanator, Thomas Goodall, Thomas J. Nye, Thomas Han-
negan, John Jacobs, John H. Ebersole, Philip Winters and George Streb.

The foregoing was duly acknowledged before Charles W. Chapman, s Notary
Public, in and for said county, March 18, 1871.

The building cost about $16,000, the machinery about $22,500. They were
operated by the Woolen Mill Company for the first two years; then by W. G.
Chapman & Co. for two years, The old company failed for want of sufficient
capital. The mill is now owned by C. W. Chapman, 8. W. Chipman, Thomas
Woods, A. J. Bair and John N, Runyan. It is in good condition, lacking only the
experienced operator with sufficient capital to make it & success.

THE LAKE CITY MARBLE WORKS

was established in January, 1874, by H. B. Avery and F. A. Hessel, under the
firm name of Avery & Hessel. In February, 1876, the interest of Mr. Hessel was
purchased by George B. Richhart, since which time the establishment has been
conducted under the firm name of Avery & Richhart. The building is located
near the corner of Lake and Market streets.

Much of the material used is ““round work,” which comes from the dealers
turned and polished. They use the several varieties of American marble, as well
a8 Scotch and American granite, and find their principal market near home.

PLANING AND SAW MILL,

A. W. Thomas, corner of Center and Columbin streets, was established in 1876,
In the same year, he added molding machinery and sundry saws, including
scroll, jig, rip and cut-off siding saws, and a single-surface matcher for flooring
and siding ; also, turning-lathes shaper. He has on hand about 200,000 feet of
lumberin logs. He saws about 1,000,000 feet of lumber annually, which is made
into flooring, brackets and inside work. The force employed averages ten men;
during the busy season, double that number. He has a branch mill about four
miles east of Warsaw. The sum expended annually for wages is about $10,000.

ROUSH & CASE'S MACHINE SHOP

was established in 1577 by If. Roush. The building is a substantial brick, one
story, containing a blacksmith’s forge and two lathes. Messrs. Roush & Case
manufacture iron fence, stairways, etc., and make a specialty of repairing agri-
cultural implements, wood-working machinery, mill-spindles, etc , and deal in gas
and steam fittings. The shop is on Lake street, near Center, and is known as the
** Lake City Steam Iron Works.”

CENTRAL LAKE ICE.

In the fall of 1875, Mr. O. P. Jaques purchased the greater portion of Center
Lake, and erected an ice-house for retail purposes, at the foot of Buffalo street, and
in the fall of 1876 built the foundation of the first wholesale house on the east side
of the lake. He soon after took into partnership Mr. 8. W. Oldfather, who has
since been identified with him in the wholesale trade, the firm being Jaques & Old-
father. There is perhaps no other locality, in or out’of the State, that surpasses
Warsaw for its natural advantages in ict business. Its geogruphical advan-
tages in this respect are certainly unsurpassed, having the most direct railroad
transporlation to the Soutlern cities. The beautiful lake from which this com-
pany obtain their ice is fed by springs, and very deep, so that its waters are always
clear, and no garbage is allowed to be throwa into it. These facts, being known
abroad, have created a large demand for this Juxury. To meet this demand, the
company have built eight Inrge ice-houses, snd provided steam-elevator power for
putting away the ice. The houses are severally 30x95 feet by 30 feet high.
During the ‘“ice sesson,” from 90 to 120 men are employed daily for ten hours
each day, at $1.26 per day. The load is about twelve tons to the car. To facili-
tate loading, they have constructed a side-track to the ice-houses, and can readily
load a car in from twenty to thirty minulcs. The force in operation is capable of
cutting and stowing into the houses an uvernge of one car-load every five minutes.
In addition to these buildings, Mr. Jaques has now two houses for retail purposes,
at the foot of Buffalo street, This trade is rapidly extending, and a decided advan-
tage to the city of Warsaw and the railway company, as & very large amount is
being shipped aunually.

“THE GRAVEYARD.”

The reconciling grave ; it swallows distinction first, that made us foes, that all
alike lie down together.

“The scepter, learning, physic must
All follow—and coms to dust.”

This piece of ground, containing two acres, was deeded by Richard L. Britton
to the County Commissioners March 9, 1848, ¢ for the purpose of providing a pub-
lic burying-ground near the town of Warsaw, in said county of Kosciusko, for the
accommodation of the citizens of said town snd county.” The deed was recorded
May 6, 1867, Book 10, page 4.

The first person buried in this yard was Mrs. Vica Webb, consort of Daniel
Webb. She died June 12, 1837, aged thirty-six years and seventeen days.
Her husband, Daniel, died December 29, 1866, aged seventy years and four
months.

These grounds were used not only by the citizens of Warsaw and vicinity, but
by others from remote parts of the county, and even from distant parts of the
State. The result*was that the population became very dense; it was difficult to
bury without trenching on & former grave. This is explained to prevent any one
from supposing that because the yard became so full in so few years, that, there-
fore, sickness and desth was the chief business, and that Warsaw was a place of
great mortality. .

OAEWOOD OEMETERY.

This is destined to become one of the most attractive places for burial to be
found anywhere in the Northwest. The ground is undulating, with graduai slopes,
and a fine growth of trees covers the most of it. Bounded on the north and west
by Pike Lake, whose gentle tide utters s whispering murmur of times that
were, while its crystal bosom is emblematical of the fit preparation we should
bring when we enter ‘“the great beyond.” The Bard of Avon utters a truism
when he says:

“The es of dying men
Enfores ttention; ke desp harmony ;
are

Is it not well, then, amid the overwhelming testimony in favor of reconecilia-
tion, while we live to go live that the grave shall have no sting, no victory? Thia
shell be ours if we live righteously.

The tract now known as Oskwood Cemetery is described in the Records as
follows :

“ Commencing sixty-three rods north of the southeast corner of the west half of
the northwest quarter of Section 9, Township 32 north, Range 6 east; thence west
seventy rods, to Pike Lake; thence northeast, with the meandering of said lake,
to the line dividing the east and west halves of said northwest quarter ; and thence
south with eaid line, to the place of beginning—containing thirty acres. Also, a
strip of land four rods wide, running north and south, as an extension of Card
street, in Jennings, Boydstons & Boss’ Addition to the town of Warsaw; and run-
ning from the northern terminus of said street; and thence north until it inter-
sects the south line of the tract of land first described and conveyed by this deed.
And the said grantees agree to make and maintain the fences necessary to inclose
the real estate herein conveyed. The said last-mentioned strip, as well as the
thirty-acre tract, conveyed by Jacob and Louisa Boss to James McManay, Hiram
S. Biggs and Caleb Hendee, Trustees of the town of Warsaw, and their successors
in office, of Kosciusko County, ind., for the sum of $2,000. This instrument was
acknowledged before Reuben Willinms, Clerk of.the Kosciusko County Circuit
Court, in and for said couaty, the 30th day of May, 1874.”” (Deed Record No. 40,
pages 280, 281.)

The monumental architecture is very attractive, and although but few have died
and been buried there since the grounds were opened, the number of monuments
is large, on account of the number who have been transferred from the old yard.
The grading that has been done has been wisely made to conform to the surface,
preserving the beauty of the undula‘ions, and at less expense than where trans-
formation is attempted. The grand drive is a handsome road about thirty feet

HISTORY OF KOSCIUSKO COUNTY

wide, encircling the whole, with roads circling within, and some beautiful avenues |
and circles, tastefully arranged. The design and a large part of the work is hy |

Hon. Joseph A. Funk—too well and favorably known to need any but the mere
mention,

Jacob Boss, one of the grantors, was the first person buried here. The family
lot reserved by him is eligibly situated.

GRAIN AND SEED SHIPPED.

The first grain shipped from Kosciusko County, Ind., was in 1846, by old Jack
Chambers, who, with three yoke of oxen and & wagon loaded with oats, worked kLis
way across the country to the Pash-po Hotel, on the Michigan road, not far from
Plymouth ; here he found a cash market for his onts, and came back in triumph
with the money. It was deemed a stretch of commercial enterprise for which he
was made the hero of the hour, and “muchly interviewed” to know how he
found it out, or what made him think of it. (This statement is from Metcalfe
Beck’'s address to old settlers, at Warsaw, September 3, 1873.)

8. W. Oldfather, the pioneer in the shipment of grain by rail, came to Warsaw,
September 10, 1866, and formed a partnership with Allen Saine, and operated
under the name of Saine & Oldfather, buying grain, seeds and produce. This
partnership continued until the death of Mr. Saine, about sixteen months after-
ward, when Mr. Oldfather conducted the business, the widow Saine retaining her
interest in the business for a time, and sold out to Mr. Oldfather; he then confined
his operations to grain and seeds. In those days, the mode of elevating the grain,
ete., was by driving up onto an elevated bridge, which was not only very inconvenient,
but liable to become dangerous. This first place of business was in connection
with a warehouse near the Pittsburgh, Ft. Wayne & Chicago R. R. depot. As the
business increased, the want of more convenient facilities induced Mr. O. to pur-
chase the ground where his elevator now stands, about June 8, 1871, and erected

the commodious brick structure, 40x80, two stories high, of brick, with strong |

frame within, adapted to storing grain, at a cost, including machinery, ground,
corn-crib and corn-sheller, of over $10,000, and has a capacity of storing 30,000
bushels. The arrangement is so complete that the entire business of the steam
elevator is done by three men, and the incidental expenses for repairs, since 1871,
has been less than $25. The first grain was handled in the new elevator, corner of
Lake and Jefferson streets, July 27. During this year, he constructed 300 feet of
side-track, at his own expense, to bring the cars alongside the building. They can
load a car in from seven to ten minutes, He has railroad-track scales located on
the side-track, built at his own expense, at a cost of $661, and has a capacity of
60,000 1bs.; also truck and hopper scales, all of Fairbanks’ Standard, the whole
costing over $1,000.

T. D. Thayer has become one of the best-known operators in this section of the
country. From July, 1878, to April, 1879, his shipments have been: Wheat, 75,000
bushels, average price paid per bushel, 90 cents; corn, 2,000 bushels, average
price; 25 cents: clover seed, 1,000 bushels, average, $3.50. The market is found
in Baltimore, Philadelphia and New York. The capacity of the elevator is about
15,000 bushels ; its estimated value, about $5,000. Mr. Thayer is also purchasing
agent for Peter Wright & Sons, of Philadelphia, Penn., the largest exporting house
in the United States; salso for Newcomer & Co., Baltimore, Md. The grain pur-
chased for these companies will average over 1,000 car-loads of 400 bushels per
annum, and the average price paid, about 94 cents.

The trade in wheat runs an average of 90,000 bushels per year. The amount
bought and shipped during the year ending May 1, 1879, is : Wheat 93,820 bushels ;
clover seed, over 5,000 bushels; flax seed over 6,000 bushels. The average price
of wheat per bushel, during last year, was 90 cents; timothy, $1.50; clover, $3.75;
flax seed, $1; Hungarian, $1; millet, $1; corn, 25 cents. No corn is shipped ;
what is surplus is fed to stock for the market. Small quantities of the seeds
enumerated were handled by Mr. Oldfather; a good market could be found if the
seeds were offered. Farmers will do well to give attention this branch of industry.

MASONIC.

Warsaw Lodge, No. 73, of Free and Accepted Masons, was the first organized
Masonic Lodge in the County of Kosei t was organized in the year 1848,
and chartered early in 1849. It has initiated a large number of Masons, and at
one time consisted of over one hundred and thirty members. The organization of
new lodges in the county, one of which is in the city of Warsaw, has depleted its

bership. It now ists of eighty-seven members. The following have been
its principal officers for the years named :

1848, U. D.—William Parks, W. M.; F. A. Harris, 8. W.; William B. Barnett,
J. W.; Jonathan Moon, Secretary; Robert Graves, Treasurer; J. W. Stapleford,
8. D.; Clark Yager, J. D.

1848, Charter Members—William Parks, F. A. Harris, William B. Barnett,
Jonathan Moon, Robert Graves, J. W. Stapleford, Clark Yager, John W. Morris,
Jeremiah Stephenson, C. M. A. Burse, George Moore, John Knowles, S. D. Bowls-
ley, Nelson Millice, Solomon Ayres.

1849, Charter officers.

1850—Frederick A. Harris, W. M.; Charles W. Chapman, 8. W.; William Parks,
J. W.; William B. Barnett, S. D.; Robert Graves, J. D.; W. C. Graves, Secretary ;
Jokn Stapleford, Treasurer.

1851—W. B. Barnett, W. M.; John W. Pottinger, S. W.; William C. Graves,
J. W.; William Williams, Secretary; John K. Leedy, Treasurer; C. W. Chapman,
S.D.; George R. Thales, J. D.; John Evers, Tiler.

1854—William B. Barnett, W. M.; J. W. Pottinger, 8. W.; Nelson Watts, J. W.;
Nelson Millice, Treasurer; John Evers, Secretary; G. R. Thales, 8. D.; John Tay-
lor, J. D.; Reuben Kehler, Tiler.

1856—W. C. Gravés, W. M.; W. McGrew, 8. W.; Simon Hartman, J. W.; N.
Millice, Treasurer; C. W. Chapman, Secretary; C. H. Culbertson, S. D.; R.
Kehler, J. D.; John Evers, Tiler.

1856—W. C. Graves, W. M.; W. MoGrew, S. W.; Simon Hartman, J. W.; John
Bybee, Treasurer; M. A. Pierce, Secretary; R. Kehler, S. D.; John Evers, J. D,;
N. C. Hartman, Tiler.

1857—C. W. Chapman, W. M.; W. McGrew, S. W.; Simon Hartman, J. W.;
John Bybee, Treasurer; J. S. Hetfield, Secretary ; W. C. Graves, S. D.; W. Cos-
grove, J. D.; N. C. Hartman, Tiler.

1858—C. W. Chapman, W. M.; George Moon, 8. W.; J. M. Silver, J. W.; J. B.
Dodge, Treasurer ; George D. Copeland, Secretary; W. C. Graves, S. D.; William
Cosgrove, J. D.; N. C. Hartman, Tiler.

1859—C. W. Ch W.M.; T. D port, 8. W.; L Silvus, J. W.; J. B.
Dodge, Treasurer; George D. Copeland, Secretary ; W. C. Graves, 8. D.; I. Dreis-
bach, J. D.; David Berky, Tiler.

1860—T. Davenport, W. M.; George Moon, 8. W. ; William Cosgrove, J. W.; J.
B. Dodge, Treasurer; A.J. Power, Secretary; W. C. Graves, 8. D.; 8. Hartman,
J. D.; E. 8. Blackford, Tiler.

1861—George Moon, W. M.; C. W. Chapman, S. W.; O. H. Aborn, J. W.; W.
Cosgrove, Tr ; D. T. Johnson, S y ; W. C. Graves, 8. D.; N. C. Hart-
man, J. D.; John R. Wheeler, Tiler.
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W. Chapman, 8. W.; O. H. Aborn, J. W.; W.

1862—George M.on, W. .. ; C.
T ; D. T. Joh , Secretary ; J. M. Leamon, 8. D.; O. F. Hol-

, I 5
brook, J. D.; J. R. Wheeler, Tiler.

1868—T. Davenport, W. M.; 8. Hartman, 8. W.; J. M. Leamon, J. W.; Will-
iam Cosgrove, Treasurer: D. T. Johnson, Secretary; O. H. Aborn, 8. D.; I J.
Morris, J. D. ; J. R. Wheeler, Tiler.

#1864—0C. H. Aborn, W. M. ; J. M. Leamon,
Cosgrove, T ; D. T. Joh , 8
Hitzler, J. D. ; N. C. Hartman, Tiler,

1865—James M. Leamon, W. M. ; John R. Wheeler, S. W.; W. C. Graves, J.
W.; W. Cosgrove, Treasurer; A. B. Ball, Secretary ; Ed. Burgess, S. D.; 0. C. Hol-
brook, J. D.; N. C. Hartman, Tiler.

1866—W. C. Graves, W. M. ; J. R. Wheeler, 8. W. ; L. J. Morris, J. W. ; Ancil
B. Ball, Secretary ; W. Cosgrove, Treasurer: O. H. Aborn, 8. D. ; £ugene Sheffield,
J. D.; N. C. Hartman, Tiler.

1867—W. C. Graves, W. M.: J. R. Wheeler, S. W. ; Sylvester Webster, J. W.;
A. B. Ball, Secretary ; W. Cosgrove, Treasurer; J. M. Leamon, S. D.; William
Hull, J. D.; James Blue, Tiler.

1868—J. R. Wheeler, W. M. ; S. Webster, S. W.; E. A. Sheffield, J. W.; W. C.
Graves, Secretary; A. B. Ball, Treasurer; T. C. Stuart, 8. D.; Samuel Boughter,
J. D. ; James Blue, Tiler ; John Davis, Chaplain.

1869—W. C. Graves, W. M.; A. B. Ball, 8. W.; James Blue, J. W.; Edward
Moon, Secretary ; C. W. Chapman, Treasuver ; E. A. Sheffield, Tiler.

1870—T. Davenport, W. M.; William G. Piper, 8. W.; James H. Carpenter, J.
W.; Edward Moon, Secretary ; W. C. Graves, Treasurer; F. L. Forbes, 8. D.; Noah
Speyer, J. D.; E. A. Sheflield, Tiler.

187 illiam G. Piper, W. M.; W. C. Grant, 8. W.; A. B. Ball, J. W,; Edward
Moon, Secretary; C. W. Chapman, Treasurer; D. W. Thomas, S. D. ; F. L. Forbes,
J. D.; E. A. Sheffield, Tiler.

1872—William G. Piper, W. M. ; F. L. Forbes, 8. W.; John Grabner, J. W.;
Edward Moon, Secretary ; W. C. Graves, Treasurer; E. Phillipson, 8. D.; Andrew
J. Bates, J. D.; C. C. Stoner, Tiler; M. C. Furlong, Chaplain; F. Gottsman, S.;
Isaac N, Barr, S.

1873—William G. Piper, W. M. ; John Grabner, 8. W.; E. Sheffield, J. W.;
Edward Moon, Secretary; W. C. Graves, Treasurer; E. Phill pson, S.D.; A.J.
Bates, J. D.; C. C. Stoner, Tiler; Jacob Colelazer, Chaplain.

1874—E. A. Sheffield, W. M.; T. C. Stuart, 8. W.; G. W. Harter, J. W.;
Edward Moon cretary ; W, C. Graves, Treasurer; A. B, Ball, S. D.; H. C. Mil-
lice, J. D.; D. Wynant, Tiler.

1875—E. A. Sheffield, W. M.; C. W. McKay, 8. W.; A. J. Bates, J. W.; W. C.
Graves, Treasurer ; Edward Moon, Secretary ; Thomas G. Terry, S. D.; R. Hitzler,
J. D.; C.C. Stoner, Tiler; Elder and Wynant, Stewards,

1876—W. C. Graves, W. M.; A.J. Bates, S. W.; W. H. Elder,J. W.; S.Webster,
Secretary ; Edward Moon, Treasurer ; A. B. Ball, 8. D.; H. C. Millice, J. D.; C.C.
Stoner, Tiler. 5

1877—W. C. Graves, W. M.; C. W. Chapman, S. W.; John Grabner, J. W.; M
Phillipson, Secretary ; Edward Moon, Treasurer; A.J. Bates, 8. D.; H. C. Millice,
J.D.; C.C. Stoner, Tiler; M. C. Furlong, Chaplain.

1878—Andrew J. Bates, W. M.; M. Phillipson, W.; H. C. Millice, J. W.;
Edward Meon, Treasurer; W.C. Graves, Secretary ; iam H. Elder, 8. D.; Mar-
tin L. King, J. D.; William A. Dannar, Tiler; M. C. Furlong, Chaplain,

1879—A. J. Bates, W. M.; M. Phillipson, S. W.; H. C. Millice, J. W.; W.C.
Graves, Secretary ; Edward Moon, Treasurer ; William H. Elder, 8.D.; M. L. King,
J.D.; Solomon Hopper and A. T. 8, Kist, Stewards ; William A. Dannar, Tiler; M.
C. Furlong, Chaplain.

Leke City Lodge, No. 371, is the offspring of Warsaw Lodge, No. 78. The dis-
pensation was granted October 22, 1867; their charter is dated May 27, 1868.
The charter members were O. H. Aborn, L. P. Pentecost, E. M. Goodwin, J. W.
Dunlay, T. B. Felkner, J. D. Thayer, J. M. Leamon, William Conrad, W. 8. Hull,
E. G. Burgess, A. P. Jackson and M. R. Rizer.

The first officers were: J. M. Leamon, W, M.; O. H. Aborn,S. W.; J. D. Thayer,
J.W.; W.8. Hull, 8. D;; J. A. Cammins, J. D,; William Conrad, Treasurer; L. J.
Pentecost, Secretary ; James Blue, Tiler.

The following brothers have served in the capacity and according to the date
given:

December, 1867—J. M. Leamon, W. M.; O. H. Aborn, 8. W.; J. D. Thayer,J. W.

December, 1868—J. M. Leamon, W. M.; J. D. Thayer, S. W.; A. Loehenberg,
J.W

8. D.; J. R. Wheeler, S. D.; W.
'y; Joseph L. Thrales, 8. D.; R.

December, 1869—0. H, Aborn, W. M.; W. 8. Hull, S. W.; Metcalfe Beck, J. W.

February 7, 1870, 0. H. Aborn resigned and a special election was held March
7, 1870, to fill the vacancy; J. D. Thayer was elected W. M.,

December, 1870—J. D, Thayer, W. M.; L. M. Leamon, 8. W.; William Conrad,
J.W.

December, 1871—William Conrad, W. M.; Hudson Beck W.; J. B. Webber,
Ww.

e
" December, 1872—William Conrad, W. M.; Hudson Beck, S. W.; J. B. Webber,
J.W.
December, 1873—Hudson Bech, W. M.; J. B. Webber, 8. W.; William H. Haz-
zard, J. W.
December, 1874—J. B. Webber, W. M.; W. H. Hazzard, S. W.; A, B. Raner,
W

" December, 1875—J. B. Webber, W. M.; A. B. Raner, 8. W.; George R. Moon,
Vlv)'ecember. 1876—A. B. Raner, W. M.; George R. Moon, 8. W.; W. H. Eggles-
'on'DJe'e;l'ber, 1877—1J. D. Thayer, W. M.; W. H. Eggleston, S. W.; Levi Hetrich,
1"’I’)‘ecember, 1878—W. H. Eggleston, W. M.; J. H. Davisson, 8. W.; William
Haas, Jr., J. W,

The present officers are: W. H. Eggleston, W. M.; J. H. Davisson, 8. W.; Will-
iam Haas, Jr., J. W.; J. M. Leamon, S. D.; George McCaulley, J. D.; M. Beck,
Treasurer; William Conrad, Secretary; W. H. Wheeler and G. W. Green, Stew-
ards; A. F. Ruch, Organist; A. B. Raner, Tiler.

Metealfe Beck has been Treasurer since 1871, and the Lodge will no doubt con-
tinue to elect him from year to year as long as he will serve.

ROTAL ARCH MASONS.

This branch of the Masonic fraternity, usually known as a Chapter of Royal
Arch Masons, has an organization in Warsaw, known as * Warsaw Chapter, No.
48, of Royal Arch Masons of the State of Indiana.” This Chapter comprises
within its jurisdiction the Masonic Lodges of Milford, Leesburg, Webster, Pierce-
ton, Atwood and Warsaw. Master Masons only are eligible to become Royal Arch
Masons. A Dispensation to work in the Chapter degrees was first granted by the
Grand Chapter of the State of Indiana on the 23th of October, 1862, upon petition
of the following Royal Arch Masons: T. Davenport, George Moon, C. W. Chap-
man, B. Becker, J. M. Leamon, Jeremiah Stephenson, J. T. Donahoo, I, R. Walton
and J. W. Pottenger. ;

The first officers under this dispensation, chosen in 1862, were: T. Daven-
port, H. P.; J. T. Donahoo, K.; George Moon, S.

The following have served as principal officers in said Chapter, end under the
;l[mmr granted May 1, 1883: T. Davenport, H. P.; 4. T. Donahoo, K.; George

oon, 8.

1864—T. Davenport, H. P.; J. T. Donahoe, K.; C. W. Chapman, 8.

18656—T. Davenport, H. P.; W. B. King, K.; J. M. Leamon, 8.

1866—T. Davenport, H. P.; Edward Moon, K.; William Cosgrove, 8.

1867—C. W. Chapman, H. P.; W. C. Graves, K.; O. H. Aborn, 8.
1868—C. W. Chupman, H. P.; W. C. Graves, K.; J. R. Wheeler, 8.
1869—W. C. Graves, H. P.; T. Davenport, K.; E. Moon, 8.
1870—W. C. Graves, H. P.; T. Davenport, K.; J. M. Leamon, 8.
1871—W. C. Graves, H. P.; J. M. Leamon, K.; W. Cosgrove, 8.
1872—W. C. Graves, H. P.; J. 8. Todd, K.; W. Cosgrove, S.
1878—W. C. Graves, H. P.; J. 8. Todd, K.; W. Cosgrove, S.
1874—W. C. Graves, H. P.; T. Davenport, K.; W. Cosgrove, S.
1875—J. D. Thayer, H. P.; William Conrad, K. ; G. W. Wilson, S.
1876—J. D. Thayer, H. P.; William Conrad, K. ; D. S. Welch, S.

1877—James M. Leamon, H. P.; E. A. Sheffield, K. ; J. B. Webber, 8.
1878—William Conrad, H. P.; E. A. Sheffield. K.; William Cosgrove, 8.
1879—W. C. Graves, H. P.; E. A. Sheffield, K.; W. Cosgrove, 8.

The present membership is sixty-three.

WARSAW ENCAMPMENT, No. 10.
It is dambtless true that throughout all the divisions of the Masonic Frater-
nity, nothu.g 3an exceed in pathetic devotion to the principles of the Order, the
manifestations in the *“Blue Lodge;” yet these graces acquired in the higher
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branches—ihe accumulation of wisdom in the lore that tends toward sublimity, |
not found in the every-day walks of the Brotherheod—are hallowed by the high

tions brought oatin the Encsmpment. Hence, the Brotherhosl petitioned

the E for the privileges enjoyed and received the authority,
oouched in the follo s

“We, the Grand Encampment of Knights Templar snd appendant Orders of

the State, do by these p X and
Abraham Reeves to be the first Grand C der, William Cosg
first Generalissimo, and Edward Moon to be the first Captain General of an
Encampment of Knights Templar and sppendant Orders, to be by virtue hereof
formed, constituted and holden at the town of Warsaw, county of Koaciusko, and
State aforeeaid, which shall be distinguished by the name, style or title of Warsaw
Encampment, No. 10, and said Grand Commander, Generalissimo and Captain
General, and their successors in office, are hereby respectfully authorized and
directed, by and with the assistance and concert of & majority of Sir Knights,
poeing the said E p daly to be summoned and present upon such
oceasion, to elect and install the officers of said Encampment, as vacancies happen
in manner and form as is or may be p ibed by the itution of this Grand
Encampment ; and further, the said E P is herel d with full
power and authority to assemble upon proper and lawful occasions, and to consti-
tute Knights of the Red Cross—dubbed Knights Templar, create Knights of
Malta, and to admit members, as also to do and perform all and every such acts
snd things pertaining to the said Orders of Knighthood, as has been and ought to
be done for the honor and advantage thereof, conforming in all their proceedings
to the Constitution of the G 1 Grand Ei for the United States of
America, and the Regulations of this Grand Encampment: otherwise, this Warrant
and the power thersby granted, to cease and be of no effect.

*‘Given under vur hand and the seal of our Grand Encempment, at Shelby-
ville, this second day of April, in the year of our Lord one thousand, eight
hundred and sixty-seven, and in the year of our Order, seven hundred and forty-
nine,

“H. G. HazeLrig, Grand Master,
“Tromas Newsnv, D. G. Master.
“D. P. WHepoN, G. Generalissimo.
‘Gro. N. Hawx, D. Capt. General.
“WiLrtam Hicker, G. Recorder.”’

The following officers were elected at the stated conclave in Warsaw, and were
installed into office in 1866, viz.: Abrabam Reeves, E. C.; J. T. Langenbaugh, G.;
Jobhn R. Wheeler, C. G.; Thomas Comstock, P.; William C. Graves, S. W.; T.
Davenport, J. W.; William Cosgrove, Treasurer; O. H. Aborn, St. B.; John Terry,
Sw. B.; Joseph B. Dodge, Warder; T. B. Hymer, Sentinel.

1867—Abraham Reeves, E. C.; William Cosgrove, G.; Edward Moon, C. G;
Thomas Comstock, P.; Theodore Davenport, 8. W.; C. W. Chapman, J. W.; W. C.
Graves, Treasurer; O. H. Aborn, Recorder; H. B. Hymer, St B.; John Terry,
Sw. B.; John Wheeler, Warder; George Moon, Sentinel.

1868—C. W. Chapman, E. C.; William Cosgrove, G.; George Moon, C. G.;
Thomas Comstock, P.

1869—J. R. Wheeler, E. C.; William Cosgrove, G.; William C. Graves, C. G.;
Theodore Davenport, P.

1870—C. W. Chapman, E. C.; Willism Cosgrove, G.; T. Davenport, C. G.;
William C. Graves, P.

1871 —T. Davenport, E. C.; William Conrad, G.; C. W, Chapman, C. G;
William C. Graves, P.

1872—Theodore Davenport, E. C.; William Conrad, G.; James H. Carpenter,
C. G.; William C. Graves, P.

18783—T. Davenport, E. C.; William Conrad, G.; James H. Carpenter, C. G;
W. C. Graves, P.

1874—VWilliam Conrad, E. C.; James H. Carpenter, G.; H. G. Mayer, C. G.;
William C. Graves, P.

1876—William Conrad, E. C.; James H. Carpenter, G.; C. W. Chapman, C.
G.; W. C. Graves, P.

1876—James H. Carpenter, £. (.; William C. Graves, @.; Joseph 8. Baker,
C. G.; A. H. Sheffield, P.

1877—William C. Graves, E. ('; J. D. Thayer, G.; I. B. Webber, C. G.; C.
H. Winton, P.

1878—John D. Thayer, E. C; A. H. Sheffield, G.; I. B. Webber, C. G.; W.
C. Graves, P.; AL F. Ruch, 8. W.; John H. Davisson, J. W.; William Conrad,
Treasurer; Ed. Moon, Recorder.

ODD FELLOWS.

Kosciusko Lodge, No. 62, I. 0. O. F.; located at Warsaw, Kosciusko Co., Ind.
A charter was granted for this Lodge, on the petition of A. B. Crihfield, George
Moon, James Frazer, Joseph A. Funk, John N. Cosgrove and Lyman L. Lattimer,
;t the Semi-annual Communication of the R. W. Grand Lodge of Indiana, January

, 1849,

On the Tth of February, 1849, D. D. G. M. J. E. Hollister instituted the same,
the charter members all being present. The officers for the first term were:
George Moon, N. G.; John N. Cosgrove, V. G.; J. A. Funk, Secretary, and Dr.
A. F. Crihfield, Treasurer.

The first meeting was held in the third story, or attic of a frame building on
the corner of Market and Buffalo streets, owned by H. P. Buir, and occupied by
the Sons of Temperance. About the 1st of January, 1850, the third story of
Moon & Cosgrove's brick, on the corner of Center and Buffalo streets, was secured
and finished off, beautifully frescoed-and ornamented by Brother W. J. Folger,
of Mishawaka, which furnished & comfortable home until 1858, when this place
was decided to be too small to comfortably sccommodate the increased and increas-
ing membership, A stock or loan association was formed, in the interests of the
Lodge; a lot purchased on the corner of Market and Buffalo streets, and arrange-
ments made for building what was known as the Empire Block, in which a spacious
hall was secured and owned by the Lodge (including, in the building, a b
and store-room 90 feet in depth, with offices in second story and the third story,
44x90, being divided between another party and the Lodge, the Lodge taking the
front part, 44x45, over two fronts), and was furnished in modern style,
beautifully decorated and artistically arranged, and will be remembered as &
splendid home in which the grand lessons of the Order were inculeated, touching
many a generous nature, warming into active life manly and noble virtues
long dormant; imbuing their minds more fully with the great cardinal doctrine
that ll'mdorliu 0dd Fellowship—* The Fatherhood of God and the brotherhood of
man.

Great prosperity attended their labors. Their indebtedness for real estate and
building was liquidated earlier than was icipated ; but the fi ity were
‘doomed to struggle yet more, and on the morning of the 81st of January, 1871,
the block in which the hall was situated was discovered to be on fire, and in &
few short hours all was swept away.

The labor of years and self-sacrifice, in a pecuniary point, many of the broth-
ers having declined to receive benefits during sickness, for two years. They were
insured for $4,500 in *the Home,”" of New Haven, and which failed within & week
from this time, depriving them of that benefit, and causing the loss of the money
paid for insurance. Some years after, however, they received about $774, as their
pro rata dividend of the assets of the company ; and yet, although houseless and
homeless, the Lodge never failed to meet. On the next regular night, they met in
the art gallery P. G. H. C. Milice (in Moon's Block), and continued to meet there
on his invitation, until a room was fitted up in Buir & Long's Block. In those
trying days, however, willing hands and brave hearts were equal to the emergency.
The smoke and ashes of the recent disaster had scarcely blown away, until, Phce-
nix-like, a new building arose, with grander proportions than formerly, and on the
30th day of October, 1873, a new hall was dedicated; its dimensions are 44x76

“feet, and the furnishing attracts universal admiration. The Lodge now carries
$9,000 insurance, divided among seversl of the most prominent companies. On
the 23d of March, 1876, the building was discovered to be on fire, and was rescued
from destruction by the extrsordinary exertions of the Fire Department. The

There has been paid into the Treasury of the Grand Lodge,
oz $1,897 24
328 62

as dues, the sum of.
Paid for the relief of widowed families.
Paid for the relief of sick brothers........
Paid for burying the dead
Paid for educating the orphans. .......ccccveeeeenrcsesincenenanns

Paid for other charitable purp > 817 75
Total $7,980 47

Eleven widowed families have been assisted, and benefits paid to 205 brothers.

The present resources of the Lodge are:
Real estate, valued at. g
Building (at cost)....

$ 3,000 00
. 11,892 68
. 700

Lodge-room.

Furniture and fixtures in [)
Outside claims... 1,424 27
Total $16,516 96
The liabilities—bonds di 6,861 69
The annual income from rents.... 832 00 i
from which it will be seen, that while their work of benevolence steadily goes on,

dehiad

their i is also diminishing. -
The records of twenty-two years of the early history of the Lodge were con-
sumed by the fire in 1871, and much of interest to the historian is therefore lost.
Kosciusko Lodge has been instr i ization of

1 in the f¢ and
eight new Lodges, located in this county, to wit: Pierceton, No. 257 ; Jubilee, No.
268 ; Sevastopol, No. 403 ; Lake City, No. 430 ; Leesburg, No. 432; Milford, No.
478; Atwood, No. 498, and Claypool, No. 515; and, as the fond parent follows
each child leaving the parental roof, with solicitude for its future good, so Kosciusko
Lodge with outstretched arms of sympathy longs for their prosperity, and rejoices
to know that so many of them have risen to such degrees of excellence.

Death has claimed many bright and honored lights: J. N. Cosgrove, P. G. and
N. G., Dr. A. B. Cribfield, Dr. N. M. Johnson, John Reese, Llihu P. Davis, David
Car, Levi Kehler, Audrew S. Pouer, P. G.; Samuel R. Gordon, P. G.; Thomas
King, William Creswell, Nelson Baker, J. 8. Patterson, Julian A. Robbins, Lot
Mable, N. Wats, William Mayner, James Wooden, P. G.; Benjamin Frary, Moses
Emerson, N. B. McDonald, J. W. Bradshaw, Jr., Robert Smith, George W. Frasier,
P. G.; James E. Benham, E. W. Rigdon, B. G. Cosgrove, P. G.; David Neff, P. G.;
John T. Morris and William Kelly.

The Degree of Rebecca, the beantiful degree in the brotherhood, uniting with
them sisters, was brought to pass by Hon. Schuyler Colfax. And, although but in
its infancy, has been the means of enriching the joys that flow from the fountain
of benevolence; and it has done more toward securing to woman her rights,
socially, than any other instrumentality ; there was a time when the law would
turn & widow out into the world with a pittance of her dead husband’s property.
It is high time to remove this blot from our statute books. When an Odd Fellow
is to be buried, it is the law that every brother must attend the funeral When an
Odd Fellow’s wife dies, howis it ? There is no law on the subject, and the practice
is for most of the Order to stay at home and attend to their own business. Is this
evincing brotherhood ? 1Is it right? Is it paying proper respect to a brother Odd
Fellow ? perhaps to a Daughter of Rebeeca? If brothers are buried with full
ranks and every mark of respect and affection shown, is it not proper that equal
respect should be shown to the wife of the brother, and especially the sister—the
** Daughter of Rebecca?”

The Secretary of the Odd Fellows’ Mutual Aid Association, Mr. John W.
McQuiddy * rises to explain,” by citing & comparison in the manner of calculating
the death-rate; it is in effect a life insurance company within the fraternity.

The present officers of Kosciusko Lodge, No. 62, are: Noble Grand, William
C. Stephenson; Vice Grand, L. W. Boyce; Secretary, T. J. Quick; Treasurer,
John N. Runyan; Permanent Secretary, William Conrad; Past Grand, Al F. Ruch;
Representative, Al F. Ruch.

_The fraternity is strong in this region, and the sublime precepts it inculcates
are taking deeper and deeper hold on the hearts of men outside of the Order, as
well as ennobling its members.

Lake City Lodge, No. 430.—This Lodge was instituted on the 3d day of January,
1874, under the special direction of D. D. G. M. Charles H. Ketcham, who was
assisted by P. G. M. Joseph A. Funk, William Cosgrove, John S. Wynant, Hiram
S. Biggs, Richard Loney, A. S. Milice, A. T. Skist, H. C. dilice and John Fogle.
The dispensation was of the same date, and granted by Grand Master Richard
Owen.

The charter members were James H. Carpenter, H. W. Upson, Ancil B. Ball,
W. G. Piper, D. R. Pershing, Joseph 8. Baker, Charles Wall, Hudson Beck, W. B.
Funk, Edward Moon, Samuel Seachrist, Levi Zambrum and E. A. Sheffield—thir-
teen in all. The charter members appeared and answered the usual questions
asked by the acting Grand Master in accordance with the formula of the Grand
Lodge, and the proclamation of the formation of the Lodge was made under the
name of Lake City Lodge; when they proceeded to the election of officers, result-
ing as follows: H. W. Upson, N. G.; Joseph S. Baker, V. G.; G. W. Piper, Record-
ing Secretary; Samucl Beck, Treasurer; Kdward Moon, Permanent Secretary;
David R. Pershing, Sitting P. G., who were then severally installed in due form.

There being no suitable room to be had in which to hold lodge meetings, and
having no regalia, etc., the Trustees of Kosciusko Lodge proffered the use of their
beautiful lodge hall with regalia and accouterments, and the use of that hall upon
certain conditions, which were accepted, and they occupied that hall one year and
nine months, when, for reasons of economy, a committee was appointed to secure
a suitable hall to themselves, consisting of Past Grand D. R. Pershing, W. G. Piper,
and Z. C. Bratt; they secured a room which was neatly fitted up, and the needful
regalia and accouterments purchased. They first occupied the hall, September 25,
1875.

The Trustees are Hon. James H. Carpenter, A. B. Ball aud E. A. Sheffield.
The Representative is O. G. Hanna. The present officers are: James W. Cook,
Noble Grand; Ephraim Davis, Vice Grand; Eugene A. Sheffield, Past Grand;
James H. Carpenter, Treasurer; C. G. Hanna, Secretary. Their hall is in Loney’s
building, Buffalo street. This Lodge is in a flourishing condition. = Its membership
comptises many of the best men in the county.

KNIGHTS OF PYTHIAS.

The first meeting was held in H.C. & W. C. Milice's Art Gallery, January 18, 1874,
and was called by H. C. Milice and J. Silbers, the only members of the Order in
Warsaw, for the purpose of ascertaining who would come into the Order and
enable them to organize a lodge. They were met by the following gentlemen: P.
L. Runyan, Jr., J. W. Curtis, H. D. Hetfield, C. W. Graves and Cal. Wiltsheir, and
a petition for membership was circulated and signed at this meeting, and the meet-~
iug adjourned to meet one week from that night, at 7:30 P. M.

J. W. Curmis, K. R. & 8.

The ensuing meetings were preliminary, the friends being engaged in finding a
sufficient number of suitable persons for membership who would, according to the
intention of the first meeting, become members and enable them to organize; this
was accomplished. The society was instituted May 22, 1874. There were present
George Pfleger, Deputy Grand Chancellor; Laz. L, Barth, Vice Chancellor; Her-
bert S. Fassett, Prelate ; Paul Beckwith, Master-at-Arms : Wilbur Gorsuch, Assist-
ant Master-at-Arms ; W. H. Longley, Past Chancellor; D. M. Conley, Inside Guard ; |
Roy Babcock, Outside Guard ; J. H. Bradley, Keeper of Records and Seals, and A. |
A. King, Commandant, all of Crusade Lodge, South Bend.

The new Lodge is known as Forest, Lodge No. 46, Knights of Pythias. The
dispensation bears the same date as the institution. The charter is dated
July 29, 1874. The charter members were: H. C. Milice, Past Chancellor ; Reub
Williams, Chancellor Commander; P. L. Runyan, Jr., Vice Chancellor; N. W.
Mumaw, Keeper of Records and Seals; J. W. Curtis, Master of Finance; C. W
Graves, Master of Exchequer; W. D. Frazer, Prelate; H. D. Hetfield, Master of
Arms; J. B. Thompson, Ianer Guerd: W. H. Wright, Outer Guard.

The foregoing, with titles affixed, were also the first officers. With the follow-
ing is & lete list of the charter members: L. C. Wiltshire, W. H. Walton, J.

damage amounted to about $500, which was promptly adj 1 by the i
companies. It is worthy of note, that, during the day of calamity, this Lodge
did not ask aid from abroad, but helped themselves. The obligations and duties,
arising from our bond of union, were cheerfully and faithfully performed ; and it
may be said, truly, that the Lodge is composed of men of moral excellence and
business sagacity.

The financial report (not intended for the public, but given by * the merciless
pen of the reporter’) shows what has been done to ** smooth the rugged journey
of life,” in keeping want from many s household—albeit¥tis but®e—sthe of the

that has been sccomplished. Eternity, alone, will unfold the fiimmed of their
mission in the relief of distress.

S.sSilber. I Ayres, C. D. Sapp, C. A. Chapman, E. Philipson, G. W. Furlong,
S. G. Hershberger, George W. Morris, J. Peterson, C. H. Ward, W. M. Kist, H. F.
Berst, J. W. Crouse, R. S. Rutter, L. L. Sapp, 0. H. Matthews, C. W. McKay, C.
W. Card, C. L. Bartol, N. H. Boydston, J. F. Eglin and A. T. 8. Kist. The officers
of the Grand Lodge also written on the charter, July, 1874, were : Samuel Oyler,
V. G. P.; H. H. Morrison, G. C.; William 8. Wood, V. G. C.; James W. Smith,

G. B.; W. M. Johnson, G. G.; J. 8. Higgins, G. I. 8.; Wilson Adams, G. 0. 8.;
N. C- Potter, G. R. S.

The Trustees for Forest Lodge No. 46, Knights of Pythias, were
ston, C. W. Card and C. W. McKay. The present officers are: J. B.

N. N. Boyd-
. Thomp
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Past Chancellor; W. H. Wright, Ch C der; C. A. Chap Vice
Chancellor Commander; Frank Nutt, Prelate; J. A. Moon, Master of Exchequer;
M. M. Burket, Master of Finauce; George M. Thomas, Keeper of Records and
Seals ; B. Q. Morris, Master of Arms; L. B. Weaver, Inner Guard; William Min-
turn, Quter Guard ; Trustees, H. C. Milice, C. W. Graves, C. D. Sapp; District
Deputy Grand Chancellor, M. W. Mumaw ; Representative, C. L. Bartol: They
have a fine hall in the Opera House Block.

HISTORY OF NEWSPAPERS.

The first attempt to publish a paper within the borders of Kosciusko County
was made by Charles L. Murray ; it was called the Kosciusko Republican, and pub-
lished at the then flourishing village of M three miles north of Warsaw.
Its first number was issued in 1845, and in politics it was Whig of the strictest
kind—political parties being then divided under Whig and Democrat. At that
time, the strength of those parties was very nearly equal, and it took hard work
for the Whigs to carry the day by more than a hundred votes. It will, therefore,
be readily perceived that a hewspaper representing the majority must necessarily
be strongly partisan. At the.time the Republican was projected, the Harrises were
striving, and at one time with good prospects of success, to make the town of
Monoquet (named after the Indian village of that name in its vicinity) a manufact-
uring point, and an eye was also kept open for the purpose of securing the county
seat. In the autumn of 1846, Mr. Murray sold the Kosciusko Republican to Messrs.
Bair & Runyan, who removed it to Warsaw, continuing its publication under the
same name,and advocating the same principles as their predecessor. Mr. Runyan
soon retired, and the publication of the paper was continued under the supervision
of Mr. Bair, often under very discouraging circumstances, as we can bear witness, as
at that time the writer was learning the “art preservative ” under his iuition.
The paper was successively conducted by A.J. & H. P. Buir, then H. P. Bair
alone, till the time of his death. Billy Williams and G. W. Fairbrother then
became proprietors and conducted it for a year, when it passed into the hands of
John Rogers and Reub Williams. The paper was then published by the firm of
Rogers & Williams, the latter officiating as publisher and Rogers as editor. The
Jjunior member of this firm, Reub Williams, fulfilled his part of the contract until
starvation stared both in the face, when he retired, leaving Rogers to battle with
“nothing to eat,” as best he could—-he being the oldest and cousidered the best
qualified to struggle with the grim, gaunt monster. Rogers conducted the paper
by issuing two or three weeks in succession, getting out a half-sheet now and then,
and often missing & week, until he got into difficulty with the Odd Fellows. * *
He pitched into the Lodge with a will, and they retaliated by withdrawing their
support from him, causing a suspension of the Republican altogether.

In the year 1848, T. L. Graves purchased from the Goshen Memocrat, a press

' known at the time as the *old sen-serpent '—called so from the fact that every

ornament connected with the eastings was in the shape of a serpent.  Mr. Graves
brought the “sea-serpent’” here, and «u paper called the Warsaw Democrat was soon
after issued, with D. R. Pershing and Dr. A. B. Crihfield as editors. At the time
that Rogers and the Odd Fellows were having their dispute, Reub Williams and
George W. Fairbrother started the Northern Indianian, with George W. Copeland as
political editor and George R. Thralls as loeal editor. The original cost of the
entire office, including type, presses, etc., with a keg of ink, and two bundles of
paper, was just $428, and from this small beginning, has grown the present well-
equipped, extensive steam printing establishment of that name. During the first
year of its existence, it did not miss a single number, and although its publishers
were ofttimes put to ‘‘ their wits’ ends " to lay it before its readers regularly each
week, they succeeded ; it being the first paper which had ever started in the county
that accomplished this feat.” At the close of the first volume Mr. Fairbrother
decided to remove to the West, and with many doubts and n ngs Reub Will-
iams became proprietor (Copeland removed to Goshen). George R. Thralls became
editor. From that time until the /ndianaian was sold to C. G. Mugg, it was n success.
After that Reub Williams, its present editor, was prevailed upon to start another
paper, and, in December, 1859, the Lake City Commercial was started by Reub
Williams and G. W. Elliott, and at once a bitter personal warfare sprang up between
the two papers, which lasted until their consolidation in September, 1860, under
the supervision of Mr. Williams. Upon the breaking-out of the war of the rebel-
lion, Reub Willinms relinquished his connection with the /ndianian, and was
succeeded by Messrs. Carpenter & Funk, who sold the establishment to F. T. Luse,
who published it until 1864, when II. C. Rippey became its proprietor, and early
in 1806, it again passed into the hands of its present editor, Reub Williams. In
July, 1868, a partnership was formed between Reub Williams and Quincey A.
Hossler, which continued until 1875, During the latter portion of this time they
purchased the Fort Wayne daily and weekly Gazette, which they conducted until
July, 1876.

As a country newspaper, the /ndianian has been a great success. No country
town in the United States has a newspaper so large, that is all published at home.
Its circulation in the Western States is something wonderful, fully 600 copies being
sent to actual subscribers West of the Mississippi. It is now under the sole con-
trol of its original founder, Reub Williams, and will, in all probability, so remain, as
he has a number of sons who are learning the business, and will soon be of such
aid to him as to enable him to confine its publication wholly to his own family.

From a part of a ‘“Song of the Indianian,” by the gifted Minnie R. Rizer, we
extract the following expressive truths:

*“And I have grown in power with years,
As all who work will grow;

I've borne good 116wa to many & heart,
And mada the fuce to glow ;

I'vo been whero ignorance held sway,
And lit a quenchlass fire

Upon the watch-tower of that mind
Whose aim is to inspire.

My mission is to spred the light
Of wisdom where I ronm—

In cotor hail, I help to make

cheerful, happy home ;

And in my going-forth each week,
Bright gems of thought I bear

Upon my broad, expanded wings,
For all & goodly share.’

The Warsaw National Union.—The Warsaw Frperiment was started in the early
part of 1859, by C. G. Mugg. Mr. Henry C. Rippey purchased the office and
changed it to the Warsaw Union in 1860, and continued the publication of the
Union for near a year, when his course was deemed unsatisfactory to the Democ-
racy of Kosciusko County, and the office passed into the hands of E. V. Long and
Dr. T. Davenport, the former becoming its editor, and John Foulke publisher.
Under this management the Union was conducted until May, 1864, at which time
F. J. Zimmerman became proprietor and . publisher, with £. V. Long as political
editor. The office was situated in the third story of Thrall's brick building, on
Center street, and consisted of one Washington hand-press and a small assortment
of type and other material, the whole valued at.$650. F.J. Zimmerman pub-
lished it until January, 1866, when he sold it to A. G. Wood, who subsequently
leased the office to two printers, Young and Capp; it, however, reverted to Mr.
Wood, when 8. 8. Baker and M. L. Crawford became publishers, during 1867,
Mr. Wood being editor, and continued under this management until April, 1868,
when it was purchased by the present proprietor and editor. At this time, the
Union was a seven-column folio sheet, unattractive and mengerly sustained, the
oflice having been removed to the third story of White's brick, opposite the Wright
ITouse, where it continued until May, 1870, when it took up the line of march to
the third story of Haymond's Building (the present Post Office Building). The
paper had now grown in size and improved in appearance, and settled to a solid
basis.

In May, 1874, the office was removed to its present home on Buffalo street,
opposite the County Office Building. Here it is issued every Friday.

The Warsaw National Union is the organ of the Democratic party of Kosciugko
County; is now in its h vol hand: i lumn folio, with
greatly increased facilities. Its editor and proprietor, Mr. F. J. Zimmerman, is
noted for untiring industry, and is ambitious to make his paper a necessity in
every h hold ; himself a p ical printer and self-made, everything about him
has the air of utility.

The Reveille made its appearance in January, 1867, published by the Pierceton
Press Association, and was edited by Messrs. Beck, Jamison, Perkins and Galleher,
successively. Beck brought the press from Bourbon, Marshall Co., Ind.. where it
had been used in the publication of a paper (name unknown), and sold to W. B.
Galleher in 1868, who made it a Republi paper and published it for a few
months, when, failing to make the required payments, the Association took it back
and sold it to W. M. Kist, who changed the name to the Independent, made it neu-
tral in politics, subsequently failed and sold the press and material to 8. S. Baker,
of Warsaw, who removed it to Wabash County and used it in the publication of
a Di ic paper, entitled the Wabash Democrat.




HISTORY OF KOSCIUSKO COUNTY.

Pierceton was without s paper for one year, when the Palladium wss sigrted,
under the management of the Foster Brothers ; but this gave way in s short time.

In May, 1877, J. F. Snyder started the Free Press, a five-column qusrio; the
home matter was printed at the office of the Northern Indianian, Warsaw. This
ran until September, 1878, when he removed to Decatur, Adams Co., Ind., where
he published the Adams County Union, a Democratic journal. 3

January 8, 1879, the Jndependent, a five-column paper, published by Foster &
Brother, Pi , made its app Tt is neutral in politics and religion.

The Warsaw Republican.—This paper was founded by Quincey A. Hossler, who
learned his trade as a printer in the Northern Indianian office, and, from 1868 to
1875, was proprietor of that paper, in company with Reub Williams, and subse-
quently, with that gentleman, purchased the Fort Wayne Daily and Weekly Gazette,
which they conducted until July, 1876, when Mr. Hossler returned to Warsaw,
and, on the 13th day of January, 1877, issued the first number of the Warsaw
Republican, which he has conducted with flattering success, having now a circula-
tion of 1,800, & circulation seldom reached by a county paper. The paper is
neatly made up—eight d, politically, strietly Republi giving forth
no uncertain sound. By avoiding Ompari , invectives and scandals,
it has become a fireside visitor, and eminently a newspaper in which local and gen-
eral news abound.

» P

KOSCIUSKO COUNTY MEDICAL SOCIETY.

This Society was incorporated January 21, 1847. Section 1 of the Act
reads as follows:

““ Be it enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Indiana, That R. Willard,
F. W. Taylor, John Jackson, L. C. Johnston, William Parks, A. B. Crihfield, R.
M. Kendall, Edward Parks, G. W. Fosdick and George W. Stacey, and their asso-
ciates, together with such as may hereafter be associated with them, be and they
are hereby created a body corporate and politic, with the succession of thirty
years, by the name and style of the Kosciusko County Medical Society, and by
that name sue and be sued, plead and be impleaded in all courts of law and equity;
may have a common seal, and the same to alter at pleasure ; shall be capable of
holding personal or real estate, by gift, grant or devise; may sell, dispose of and
convey the same, provided the value shall not exceed twenty thousand dollars, and

the same shall be devoted exclusively to the object of promoting and elevating the |

science of medicine and its collateral branches; provided, that no part of said
funds or income thereof shall at any time, directly or indirectly, be employed in
banking : nor shall said Society issue certificates of deposit, drafts or any other

i of indebtedness calculated or intended to circulate as currency, under the
penalty of an absolute forfeiture of this act.

“8gc. 2. That they shall have power to form and ratify a Constitution and
By-Laws for the government of said corporation, the management and regulation
of its fiscal concerns, and admission of b and ap ent of its officers,
together with such powers as are necessary and proper for the efficient direction
and management of its concerns.”

This act is decidedly unique, and, with six sections, was spread upon their
records, and the organization was instituted May 4, 1847, with the following pre-
amble :

“‘Pursuant to previous notice, a meeting of the members o: the medical pro-
fession residing in the county, who, previous to this, were members of the * Union
Medical Society of Northern Indiana,” was held at the Court House in Warsaw, at
2 o'clock P. M., for the purpose of organizing the ‘Koscinsko County Medical
Society,’ agreeable to the provisions of the Charter granted by the General Assem-
by of this State at their last session.”

On motion, Dr. George W. Stacey was chosen President, and Dr. G. W. Fosdick
Secretary pro tem.

“On motion, the Society proceeded to elect permanent officers for the ensuing
year, which resulted as follows: President, Dr. Rowland Willard ; Recording
Secretary, Dr.George W. Stacey; Treasurer, Dr. Andrew B. Crihfield : Committee
to draft a Constitution and By-Laws, Drs. Jackson, Fosdick and William Parks;
Committee to draw Bill of Prices and Code of Ethics, Drs. Stacey, Crihfield and E.
R. Parks; Board of Censors, Drs. John Jackson, G. W. Fosdick and Rowland
Willard.

¢ On motion, the Society adjourned, to meet at Leesburg, in this county, on the
first Tuesday in June next, at 1 o’clock.

“RowLAND WILLARD, President.
““G. W. Stacey, Rec. Secretary.”
¢ LeesBura, Kosciusko Co., June 1, 1847.

**The Society met pursuant to adjournment, and adopted a Constitution and By-
Laws, with the usual provisions, and heard addresses by Drs. Fosdick, Stacey and
Willard, and, on motion, adjourned to meet at Oswego om the first Tuesday in
August, at 10 A. M., with the announcement. that addresses on some subject con-
nected with the science of medicine may be expected at the meeting from Drs.
Stacey, William Parks and A. B. Crihfield.

“On motion,

** Resolved, That the minutes of the organization of this Society be published at
the office of the Kosciusko Republican, in pamphlet form.

“ RowrLAND WILLARD, Pres't.
“G. W. Sracey, Rec. Sec'y.”

The charter members were Rowland Willard, F W. Taylor, John Jackson, Z.
C. Johnson, Willinm Parks, A. B. Crihfield, R. M. Kendall, Edward R. Parks, G.
W. Fosdick and George W. Stacey.

The following became members soon after the adoption of the Constitution: A.
C. Jackson, W. S. McBride, W. W. Martin, Daniel Whitinger, William E. Sarber,
E. S. Higbee, Russell Brace, Matthew Roche, J. K. Leedy, G. W. Parks, Theodore
Davenport, D. Bowmen, S. C. Gray, L. B. Boggs, J. A. Chandler, L. E. Terry and
Henry Gilbert.

At a meeting held in Warsaw May 6, 1851, in the Presbyterian Church, were
present, Drs. Willard, Drace, Sarber, Stacey, Crihfield, Leedy, William Parks, E.
R. Parks and Dr. Latta, from Goshen. The minutes of the last meeting were read
and adopted. The President read his annual address; subjeet, ‘“ The Use of
Strychnia.”” J. . Frazer, aad Rev. J. E. Conrs’ were admitted honorary mem-
bers. And a form of certificate of membership, with the following inscription at
the head : *“Tu tua fac cuves—ceters mitto Dro.”

*Take care to do your duty—Ileave the rest to God.”

The Society also adopted a seal; and they issued a license to practice medicine
and surgery in the State of Indiana to those who submitted to an examination.

The following names appear as members in 1876, approving the Constitution,
with the following pledge :

¢In order the more effectually to secure the objects of this Society, we, who
hereunto subscribe our names, do agree with and to each other, that we will faith-
fully observe all requirements of the Constitution, code of ethics, fee-bill, and all
other regulations adopted for the government of the Society, and all requirements
of the State Medical Society, to which this is auxiliary; and that we will, in no
case whatever, knowingly consult with, or extend the courtesies of the profession to,
any one who is not a graduate of some reputable medical college, licentiate, or
some other regularly organized medical society, or in any other way countenance
or encourage quackery in any of its forms or pretensions; for the faithful perform-
ance of which, we de hereby individually pledge our truth, our honor, and our
professional stending.”

T. Davenport, U. J. Ward, J. H. Long, 8. C. Gray, I. B. Webber, C. M. Bonnar,
F. Moro, C. F. Peck, J. J. Jarrett, J. H. Davison, Thomas Commack, F. M. Pea-
man, W. P. Seymour, J. R. Becknell, C. W. Burket, E. H. Makemson, M. J. Bolan
and —— Lirn.

The resident physicians are: Dr. T. Duvenport, graduated in Albany, N. Y., in
1851; Dr. C. W. Brket, graduated ai Ohio Medical College in 1866; Dr. I. B.
Webber, graduated at the College of Medicine and Surgery, Cincinnati, Ohio, in
the spring of 1870; Dr. J. M. Bash, graduated at Indians Medical College in 1874;
Dr. J. H. Pavison, graduated at the College of Physicians, Baltimore, Md., 1876 ;
Dr. F. Moro, graduated at Jefferson Medical College, Philadelphia, Penn., 1849, and
also at the Eclectic College, Cincinnati, Ohio, in 1847; Dr. A. Wooley, graduated at
Fort Wayne Medical College, Indiana, 1877; Dr. 8. C. Gray, graduated at Fort Wayne
Medical College, Indiana, 1879; Dr. W. P. Seymour, received his degree from Phila-
dmh Medical College, Pennsylvania, in 1851; Dr.J. M. Byler, graduated at
Hahnemann College, Chicago, 111, 1876 ; Dr. Marie J. Parks, graduated at seventh

t of the Eclectic Medical College, New York City, in 1870-71; she is
now Mrs. Furlong, though she i in the practice of her professi

AGRICULTURAL SOCIETY.

County Agricul 1 Society was organized June 2, 1855, and
elected the ing officers: Presid Dsavid Rippey; Vice Presidents, M. A.
Bierce, 8. Hoppis and John Makemson ; Secretary, George Moon; Treasurer,

Samuel H. Chipman; Council, William Bussing, H. W, Upson, H. F. Hall, G. R.
Thralls, R. Willard, E. Huffman, H. I. Stevens, J. G. Lord and A. Wilcox.

This orgenization was for the purpose of inaugurating county fairs, and, after
the full considerstion of the subject, it was decided to hold a fair the following
year; they met, therefore, June 7, 1856, and re-organized, with the following
officers: President, David Rippey; Vice Presidents, James Wooden, M. A. Bierce
and C. Hughes ; Secretary, J. A. Funk; Treasurer, H. W. Upson; Couneil, G. R.
Thralls, William Bussing, W. C. Bogges, George Moon, C. W. Chapmsn, E. Horton,
E. Huffmagn, P. L. Runyaa, Sr., and R. Willard.

The first fair was held in the Court House and Court yard in Warsaw, in the |

fall of 1856, and was not only well attended, but exhibited an unusual degree of
skill in many deparuments of agriculture and housewifery, and was & financial suc-
cess also. y

A committee on purchasing fair grounds, consisting of P. L. Runyan, Sr, C.
W. Chapman and G. R. Thralls, was appointed to take into consideration the pro-
priety of purchasing fair grounds. The Society met pursuant to adjournment and
heard the report of the committee, in favor of a tract of land ewned by A. T. S.
Kist, containing six acres, being in the northeast coruer of Section 7, Town 32,
Range 6 east, and immediately south of the Tippecance River bridge, the same
now occupied by N. D. Heller. These grounds were purchased, fenced, cleared
and temporary building erected at a cost of about $800, and were occupied as fair
grounds until the year 1861, when it was decided that more room was needed ;
the Society, therefore, proceeded to negotiate for ten acres, in a tract of eighty
acres, owned by Abner Baker, which they purchased for $1,000, May 18,
1861, and, on the same day, sold the old ground, without the improvements, for
$ The buildings and fence were removed to the new grounds, which were
cleared, and substantial additions made to them and the stock-sheds, so that it has
a capacity of 120 head ; they also erected two temporary buildings, a fine-art hall
and a room for agricultural products. The Society held their first fair on the new
grounds October 2, 3and 4, 1861, under the management of the following officers :
James Wooden, President; W. J. Elliott, S Davis and H. I. Stevens, Vice
Presidents; M. J. Long, Treasurer; W. B. Funk, Secretary ; Councilmen, P. L.
Runyan, Sr., A. D. Pittenger, J. G. Long, S. Murdock, W. McGrew, T. G. Berst,
J. D. Highway and Adam Simmons.

The Society constructed a speeding track of one-third of a mile circuit on the
new grounds. This fair was remarkably well attended ; the citizens of the county
generally took great interest in it. The premium-list amounted to $2,500. Itwas
ns ﬁ;:ggcial success. Since that time, the premium-lists have ranged from $2,500 to

3,300.

In 1874, it was felt that the grounds were not large enough to accommodate a
time track of sufficient dimensions to attract fine horses from a distance, conse-
quently the Society (upon the assurance of a number of gentlemen who took great
interest in training fast horses, that they would take the additional stock),

ppointed a i to purch ground sufficient to give a half-mile track,
which was done, the committee purchasing five acres adjoining from the late Dr.
Jacob Boss. An excellent half-mile track was constructed, which has proven of
great advantage to the Society since then. But the stock to pay for these improve-
ments was never sold, and the indebtedness reported in the Secretary’s report is
thus accounted for.

Since then, the track has been made more convenient by the erection of a
judges’ stand and other improvements necessary, and is now a favorite track for
training and speeding horses.

ANNUAL REPORT TO THE INDIANA STATE BOARD OF AGRICULTURE, NOVEMBER, 1878,

Name of Society, Kosciusko County Agricultural Society, President, Joseph B.
Dodge, Warsaw, Ind.; Secretary, William B. Funk, Warsaw, Ind.; Assistant Secre-
tary, Marsh H. Parks; number of acres in Fair Grounds, 15; how owned—fee
simple, stock ; value of grounds, $4,000 ; of improvements, $1,000 ; entry of horses,
190; cattle, 120 ; hogs, 35; sheep, 12; poultry, 42 ; total live stock, 413 ; mechan-
ical department, 68 ; agricultural department, 136; horticultural, 26; textile
fabrics, 60 ; total, 1,032 ; total receipts, $1,539.70 ; disbursements, $1,582; indebt-
edness, $1,500 ; number of members, 100.

Kosciusko County has a large number of fine hogs, of which the best specimens
are usually exhibited at the fairs, but owing to the prevalence of the hog cholera
during 1878, but few were on exhibition.

The fair for 1879 will be held on the 24th, 25th, 26th and 27th days of Septem-
ber. The premiums offered for the fair of 1879 will exceed those offered in former
years by several hundred dollars.

WARSAW LADIES’ BENEVOLENT SOCIETY.

This Society organized in October, 1878, with the following officers: Mrs.
Hiram Biggs, President; Mrs. Hudson Beck, Vice President ; Mrs. Hattie Frazer,
Secretary ; Miss Mary Leighton, Treasurer. The following committee was appointed
to divide the city into wards, to suit the management of the Seciety: Mrs. S. E.
Loney, Mrs. H. P. Lamson and Mrs. Reuben Williams. This Society is repre-
sented by members of nearly all of the churches, and contributed to by the citi-
zens at large. It is designed to minister to the truly needy, without causing them
to feel «“ the cold charity of the world,”” sometimes called, also, ** soulless corpora-
tions.” The crowning beauty of the management is, that none of the operators
want to be known or published as engaged in this heaven-born work, and it was
with difficulty their names were obtained. This much of apology is demanded,
perhaps, even in performing the duty of historian, in parading their names.

“THE WARSAW SILVER CORNET BAND.”

The first band in Warsaw was the *“ Warsaw Sax Horn Band.” The members
of this association met at the office of Frazier & Power on the evening of Septem-
ber 7, 1856, and organized by calling Samuel R. Gordon to the chair, and appoint-
ing Jumes H. Carpenter Secretary. Joseph A. Funk, James H. Carpenter and
Thomas Woods were appointed to draft a Constitution and By-Laws for the govern-
ment of the Band. H. W. Upson, Thomas Woods, W. G. Chapman and George W.
Scott were appointed a committee to procure instruments for the Band.

Sepremser 11, 1855-— The association met pursuant to adjournment, S. R.
Gordon in the chair, and James H. Carpenter Secretary.

The Committee on Constitution and By-Laws made their report, which, after
some amendments, was adopted, and the society proceeded to elect the officers pro-
vided for, resulting as follows: President, Samuel R. Gordon ; Secretary, James
H. Carpenter ; Treasurer, Joseph A. Funk.

The following persons signed the Constitution and By-Laws: Samuel R. Gor-
don, J. W. Gilmore, Thomas Woods, H. W. Upson, W. G. Chapman, James M. Mil-
lice, N. W. Richhart, J. L. Thralls, A. J. Frazier, G. W. Scott, George D. Copeland,
James H. Williams, E. 0. Milice, J. A. Funk, W. 8. Hemphill, George R. Thralls,
George W. Fairbrother and T. C. Hacker.

Article I. of the Constitution declares that this association shall be called the
 Warsaw Sax Horn Band.” The amount paid for instruments, including trans-
portation, was $238.25. They employed Prof. Rush Bronson to instruct them. He
gave them two courses of thirteen lessons each, and presided at a concert given
about the middle of the second term. They made great progress, and were so
well pleased with their teacher that resolutions of thanks were passed and pre-
sented to him. Their usual place of meeting was the Court House. The last
meeting of this organization was June 10, 1856. At that time, J. A. Funk was
Treasurer, and Thomas Woods, Secretary. Acknowledgment is made to J. A.
Funk for this record.

The ‘“ Warsaw Silver Cornet Band’ is a r i ining bers of
the old band, with some additions, and took effect about the 1st of May, 1860, by
electing the following officers : President, W. B. Funk; Secretary and Treasurer,
P. L. Runyan, Jr.; Leader, Prof. R. Bronson; Director, Prof. H. Lathrop; who,
with the following, were the members: J. R. Walton, James Millice, E. O. Millice,
E. G. Burgess, W. B. Funk, A. C. Funk, W. F. Powers, J. L. Thralls and James
H. Williams.

The Band purchased new instruments, in part, at a cost of about $500. The
new organization was fully enthused with the idea of excelling, and such was their
performance that they attracted special attention, and their services were sought far
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88,8 t~ken of respec: sua in ./ 1siderstion of his genial compenionship during his
twelve years' residence among them, the Band presented to him a fine silver E-fiat
cornet. (. B. Grospitch was installed his successor as Leader.

The re-organization was, doubtless, instrumental 4u their purchasing new uni-
forms—consisting of navy-blue frock-coats, with caps and plumes, millitary regula-
tion style, after the New York Seventh Regiment; also an entire new set of
German-silver Instruments, from Isaac Fiske, Worcester, Mass. Their elegant

i and splendid insir added to their masterly performances, gave
them rank among the most prominent bands in the State.

The music used by this band during the ensuing ten years was procured by H.
Lathrop, Band Director, from F. Galloway, of England, an old musical associate,
and for thirty years Bandmaster in Her Majesty’s Seventeenth Infantry.

In process of time the Band again found it desirable to don new uniforms, and
this time resolved to not be outdone iy style or quality, and accordingly secured
the services of Capt. E. 8. Murphy, a military tailor (formerly of Philadelphia),
in the employ of Funk Brothers, Warsaw, tc manufacture entire suits for the fif-
teen men comprising the band ; the whole, including epaulets and chapeaux, at a
cost of $900 in cash. %

In sddition to fine instruments, fine music and fine clothes, it became necessary
to deport themselves as well as other bands in marching and evolutions, and a
Drum Major was chosen in the person of Prof. W. H. Mershon, a gentleman well
fitted for the position, and an accomplished musician.

TOURNAMENTS,

Contests for prizes have ever been in vogue, and a great source of emulation.
In August, 1871, the Band attended a Firemen's and Band Tournament at Lima,
Ohio, and entered the contest with five bands for the first prize, $50 in gold, which
was awarded to them! July 4, 1877, they accompanied the Warsaw Fire Depart-
ment to & Band and Firemen’'s Tournament st La Porte, Ind., and again took
the first prize offered for the best band performance, the Howe Band of Peru being
their principal contestants; the prize was $100. In July, 1873, by special invita-
tion, they accompanied the Editorial Association and their families, o
Indiana, on their excursion to Duluth, over the lakes, returning via Ck
tour of three weeks, visiting many noted places, enjoying a continuous ovation,
infusing new pleasures wherever they went. In August, 1877, they accompanied
the Warsaw Commandery of Knights Templar to the tri-annual conclave, held at
Cleveland, Ohio; and in the grand parade of this Order commanded special atten-
tion on account of their fine appearance and the execution of their musie, receiv-
ing special notice in the city dailies, where but five or six bands were mentioned
out of sixty-seven in the procession.

PITTSBURGH, FORT WAYNE & CHICAGO RAILWAY.

The first shovelful of dirt was cast for the construction of the Piitsburgh,
Fort Wayne & Chicago Railroad at Warsaw, Kosciusko Co., Ind., in June, 1854,
at the east end of Jefferson street, south of Lot No. 193, in the prescuce of Hon.
William Williams, A. T. Skist and others.

The first passenger train going east left on the morning of the first Monday in
November, 1856. It started just west of the crossing of Buflalo strect. The pas-
senger station was then located on Lot No. 19, in a building owned by William
Boydston.

The information concerning this road was furnished by Mr. D. .
connection with the road began when they first reached Pierceton, M
The town was surveyed January 1, 1854, and the first station ag
Bainbridge, was appointed October 1, 1854, and served wuiil Apvil 1, 18
D. P. Nichols succeeded him, and continued there in thai acity until J
5, 1878, The first station-hiouse used for g 0. WS A one-
story frame, 20x30 feet, built at a cost of
there September 1, 1854, The name of the en
the Plymouth ; the first freight left there in Oc
load; it consisted of general merchandise, and w el

The road was then controlled by three companies, as the name above written
indicutes, and was subsequently consolidated. The rond was completed to Warsaw
in November, 1854, and soon after a station was established where the present
building is located ; it was a cheap building, and consumed by fire in the fall of
1875; within thirty days thereafter, the present building was erected, and cost
about $600. ¢ The wires’’ were distributed as usual, with the train. The first
train arrived at Warsaw about the middle of September, 1854, The first freight
left here soon aft George Moon was the first agent; he was succeeded by D. S.
Bitner, he, by W m Cooper, and on the 5th of Jan , 1878, D. P. Nichols
became the agent, and now holds that position. He has been in regular service
over twenty-four years, and is undoubtedly ¢ the right man in the right place.”
E. K. Redrup has been operator here for eleven years.

The general officers at the time of the location of the road were George W. Cass,
of Pittsburgh, Superintendent of the Western Division, and iI. A. Gurdner, of
Fort Wayne.

The expense of keeping a section of five miles of road is about $
month. The expense of running a local freight train, about $ per u
The road is now operated by the Pennsylvania Company. The offi
Thomas A. Scott, President, Philadelphia, Penn.; J. N. McCullough, First Vice
President, Pittsburgh, Penn.; William Shaw, Second Vice President, Pittsbhurgh,
Penn.; Thomas D. Messler, Third Vice President and Comptroller, Pittshurgh,
Penn.; J. D. Layng, General Manager, Pittshurgh, Penn.; Hon. John Scott, Gen-
eral Counsel, Pittsburgh, Penn.; W, H. Barneg, Treasurer, Pittsburgh, Penn.; John
E. Davidson, Assistant Comptroller, Pittsburgh, Penn.; J. P. Farley, Auditor, Penn-
sylvanin; J. P. Henderson, Cashier, Penunsylvania; J. H. Frederick, Paymaster,
Pennsylvania ; C. P. Mackie, Secretary, Philadelphin, Penn.; William Stewart,
General Freight Agent, Pittsburgh, Penn.; C. 8. Cole, Assistant Freight Agent,
Pittsburgh, Penn.; F. R. Myers, General Passenger and Tiekel Agent, Pittshurgh,
Penn.; O. H. Booth, Superintendent Telegraph, Mansfield, Ohio.

See foot note, information by A. T. Skist.
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CINCINNATI, WABASH & MICHIGAN RAILROAD.

Line of road—Anderson, Ind., to Goshen, Ind., 114 miles; consolidation, June
18, 1871, of Warsaw, Goshen & White Pigeon and Grand Rapids, Wabash & Cincin-
nati Railroad Companies. Road opened May 21, 1876. Rolling-stock—Locoro-
tives, 7; cars—passenger, 7; baggage, mail and express, 3; freight (box), 48;
platform, 15; coal, 40; 108. Total revenue cars, 113; also, 12 service cars
Operations for the year ending December 81, 1876, not reported; information
refused. Gross earning for 1875, $192,138.26 ; operating expenses, $76,850 ; net
earnings, $115,288.26. Financial stafement, December, 1876: Capital stock
authorized, $2,250,000 ; paid in, not reported. Funded debt (at the rate of $16,-
000 per mile, as the road is completed), first mortgage , 7 per cent bond, dated
July 1,1871, payable July 1, 1891, $1,824,000. Cost of work to date not reported.
(**Poor’s Manual of Railroads in the United States,” 1877-78, p. 501.)

The present officers of the Company are: J. H. Wade, President; 8. C. Bald-
win, Vice President; W. 8. Jones, Secretary and Treasurer ; N. Beckley, General
Manager ; Owen Rice, General Freight and Ticket Agent. Board of Directors—
J. H. Wade, G. H. Wade, Jr., 8. C. Baldwin, L. H. Clarke, W. S. Jones, H. B. Payne
and H. Chisholm, Cleveland, Ohio; J. H. Defrees, Goshen, Ind.; C. W. Chapman,
Warsaw, Ind.; C. Cowgill, C. E. Cowgill, H. Caldwell, of Wabash, and N. Beckley,
of Elkhart. Officers named by Owen Rice, General Freight and Ticket Agent.

The first train left Warsaw, going, north, August 9, 1870. A. T. Skist was the
first freight and ticket agent; William M. Kist was the first express agent. The
first station was on the east end of Lot No. 200, in a building built by Samuel E.
Loney. The first freight-house was on Lot No. 7, at the east end of Market street,
and known as “ Kist's Warehouse.”

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF WARSAW.

This Bauk is the eighty-eighth bank in the United States, organized under the
Nuionsl_Bmking Act of 1868, of which there are now two thousand. Its Articles

and near, so that, by concerts and services during the Pr: of
1864, they realized the handsome sum of $800.
This organization continued until 1868, when, on account of removals, it

became neceseary to recruit to fill ies, and & re-organi was deemed
expedient, which d in electing the following officers : President and Leader,
Prof. R. B ; 8 y and T , W. B. Funk; Director, Prof. H.
Lathrop.

The following persons were added to the organization : W. H. Mershon, A. F.
Ruch, C. B. Grospitch and F. A. Manchester. Shorﬁwar this re-o i

rganization,
Prof. R. Bronson, the founder of the Band, removed to ton Harbor, Mich., and,

of A bear date August 14, 1863. It was authorized to commence the
business of banking by a certificate of authority from the Comptroller of the Cur-
rency at Washington, under date of September 22, 1863. It commenced business
on a capital of $50,000, on the 30th day of September, 1863.

Its first Directors were Samuel H. Chipman, William C. Graves, Thomas 8.
Stanfield, Simon Hartman, William G. Chapman, John Makemson, Andrew J.
Steph Silas W. Chip Sted A. Chaplin. It first officers were Samuel
H. Chipman, Presidentyand William C. Graves, Cashier, who have each continued
to-serve in tH same capacity to the present time. In addition to the above, its
present officers are Charles W. Graves, Assistant Cashier, and A. 0. Catiin, Teller-
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Its general conduct and g have been satisfactory to its stockhold
and its customers. By several of those accidents which cannot be avoided by the
most prudent bank it bas ined losses to the amount of nearly 839,000 dur-

boiler of boiling coffee was pressed into service, and, presto! the valves were in
working order, and “Down brakes!™ rang in the air, a stream of water poured
into the fire, and, in incredibly short time, *Old Protection’ was master of the

ing its career. All this loss was occasioned by the failure of corresp banks
in New York and Chicago. Yet it long since paid up those losses out of its profits;
and has, in addition, paid dividends to its stockholders out of the profits to the
amount of $71,000, since its organization to the present time, April, 1879, and
accumulated a surplus fund of $15,000. Its horized circulation of National
Bank Notes is $48,600. It pays annually over $1,000 taxes to the General Govern-
ment on deposits and circulation, besides a lurge sum for revenue stamps, and
beﬁidas the State, county and municipal taxes on its stock in the hands of its stock-
holders.

It has been enabled to accomplish all these results notwithstanding the severe
restriction placed upon busi by the National banking act, by the aid of a lib-
eral deposit account, which has always largely exceeded the capital stock.

Its pregent Board of Directors, elected in January, 1879, are the following : Sam-
uel H. Chipman, William C. Graves, Charles W. Graves, Silas W. Chipman, Aaron
.('!.h M:rnhon, Edgar Haymond, William G. Chapman, M. P. Chaplin, Stedman A.

aplin.

LAKE CITY BANK.

This instituti d b May 14, 1872, as a private bank. The
firm consisted of James McMurry, John H. Lewis and J. B. McMurry. The first
President was James McMurry. * The first Cashier was J. B. MeMurry. The orig-
inal capital was $60,000, which was increased to $80,000. The bank did & very
satisfactory business.

STATE BANK.

November 1, 1875, the Lake City Bank was re-organized and incorporated asa
State Bank, under an act approved February 7, 1873, the following persons being
the charter stockholders: James MeMurry, John H. Lewis, Hudson Beck,
Edward Moon, Richard Loney, Metealfe Beck, J. B, Lichtenwalter, H. B. Stanley,
Albert Tucker, John Grabner, Moses Wallace, Benjamin Yohn, Henry Bernst,
Washington Bybee, Hiram Hall, Christian Sarber, Jackson Glessner, Milton Hire,
William Zimmerman, Jacob Weirick, John R. Black, William Benford, C. C.
Reynolds, Levi Hetrick, Rachel Wallace and Samuel C. Gray. Board of Directors—
Moses Wallace, H. B. Stanley, John Grabner, M Ife Beck, Christian Sarber, J.
B. Lichtenwalter, Hiram Hall, Albert Tucker and Hudson Beck. Hudson Beck
was chosen President, and John H. Lewis, Cashier, and now fill those positions.

e ization adopted & code of By-laws, to which they rigidly adhere, thus
securing harmony of action, and safety to all.

THE WARSAW FIRE DEPARTMENT.

Until the fall of 1858, the citizens of Warsaw had scarcely ever felt the need of
an organization of this kind, the occasional fires having been ‘extinguished by “a
hand-to-hand conflict,” in which pails of water did valiant service. The town,
however, was building up rapidly with frame structures, and one or two fires,
which had been particularly troublesome to manage, led to the discussion as to the
practicability of effecting an organized fire department, and the probability of
being able to procure the necessary apparatus. Notice was given, calling a meet-
ing of the citizens at the Court House, and specially inviting the leading business
men to be present. A large turn-out was had, the subject pretty thoroughly can-
vassed, a committee appointed to interview the corporation Trustees, to know what
they would do toward equipment, and the meeting adjourned. The Trustees had
no money, and were not willing to take the responsibility of contracting a debt for
this purpose. Amidst this apparent discouragement, * Where there's a will
there’s n way " was pretty freely quoted, indicating that they ¢ didn’t mean to
give it up 80,”’ and they set to work to find a way. A joint-stock company was the
means suggested that promised success, and a committee appointed to wait upon
the citizens and nscertain what amount of stock they would take at $5 per share,
The result was that, in & very short time, a sufficient sum was pledged to purchase
a second-hand engine.

A permanent organization was effected on the evening of February 16, 1859,
when the following officers were elected: Foreman, Peter Marvin ; First Assistant
Foreman, William B. Boydston ; Second Assistant Foreman, A.T. Skist ; Secretary,
William 8. Hemphill; Treasurer, Dr. Joseph P. Lesslie; Company Engineer, Brad-
ford G. Cosgrove; Chief of the Fire Department, Joseph A. Funk; and thirty-
eight members enrolled. The name chosen was “Independent Protection Engine
Company No.1,” and they were ready to respond to the alarm of fire as soon as
it could get “ the tools to work with.”

An old hand-engine was heard of *“up in Michigan,”” which had seen its best
days and plenty of hard service, and long since set aside for one of later style. Tt
was o regular old * side-sweeper,” but, like “the Deacon’s onions, full of power
when hard pressed.” Mr. Marvin was sent to Adrian to examine her and report,
His report being fayorable, the purchase was made, and, on the 10th of March,
1859, after putting the machine in as good order as possible, it was tested. [t was
the first time many of our people had seen water thrown from a fire-engine, and the
first time to handle an engine. Some had over-estimated its powers ; others under-
estimated Those of the first class were disappointed, while the latter were
Jubilant. There were about three hundred feet of leather hose, the worse for
wear, and it became apparent that mare and better hose must be had. Accord-
ingly, an nssessment was made, which, however worthy, was a heavy tax on the
boys, the majority of whom had no property of any kind except their clothing. A
couple of hundred feet of new hose was purchased; the boys rigged themselves
out in red jackets. drilled once a week during the season, and on parade felt like
veterans. False alarms were sounded at all hours of the day and night, and were
always responded to promptly. The company leased a strip of ground now occu-
pied by Col. Ch 's building, ite the First National Bank, and erected a
frame building for their engine. An episode in their early experience, rather
funny, but showing their grit, is thought worthy of a place. One bitter cold night
in November SM), 1859, the alarm was sounded, and dense smoke and terrible
flames went rolling up from the frame building on Center street now occupied by
J. W. Royster's cigar store. The fire had a big start when discovered, and was
considered beyond control. But the company was promptly on hand, when, to
their surprise, as roon as the water touched the frosty cylinders, they froze solid.
The ion for a few was terrible to behold, and there were enough
“I told you so’s”" floating around to put the fire out. One of the cooler members,
who had *‘been there,’’ gave the word, and a rush was made for the kitchen of
the Wright House, where & hot breakfast was about to be served, and the large

The fire was extinguished ; although nearly half of the building was
burned, it made no progress after the water began to pour. Protection stock went
up, but a most ex dinary spectacle in the d lized lition of hose

ented itself. There was scarcely five feet along the entire line that had not
g;:t and been wrapped with bed-quilts, sheets, silk and linen handkerchiefs, calf
and sheep skins, ete. This incited a subscription at once, and = sufficient amount
waa contributed to finish the engine-house and ‘procure the needed supply of hose.
The homely old engine proved to be worthy of her name, and many a time since
has the company, with their *old tub,” done good service. The supply of water
in those days was not always equal to the demand, and had to be procured under
very di g i In S ber, 1860, when a stable, belonging

could do was to prevent the flames from spreadin to surrounding buildings. This
was no easy task, as the block was sur ded e buildings, on which
burning frag: were ly falling; some of those to the rear of the block.
were destroyed, but those fronting on Market street were saved, as if by miracle.
This was the first battle for the hook and ladder company, and nobly did they
acquit themselves. The value of an abundant supply of good hose was fully
demonstrated, as the supply of water in the neighborhood was exhausted while
the conflagration was raging; but the steamer was able to send a steady stream
from the cistern on the corner of Washington and Center streets, through that long
stretch of hose, until all the surrounding buildings were out of danger.

Again, on the evening of February 1, fire broke out in a building belonging
to William Conrad ; the department soon stayed proceedings.

“The Never Fails.”—On the 13th of February, 1871, some of the former mem-

g n Bep
to 8. H. Chipman, on Fort Wayne street, was burned, the only way that water
could be procured was by taking the engine to Dr. Davenport’s residence, on
Detroit street, and pumping and carrying the water in pails, through the house,
and filling the engine-box (which held about eight barrels), and then hauled to
the fire and applied to the best advantage, and so repeating the performance while
the fire lasted.

The first very serious conflagration in Warsaw occurred on the 24th of January,
1861—the burning of the Chapman Block, on Center street, south of the public
square. The block was destroyed, yet so efficiently was the old engine handled
that the fire was not allowed to extend beyond, although the Thomas Building, on
the east side of the alley, was badly scorched. This was a hotly-contested battle—
80 hot that the paint on the engine, which stood about two rods off, was blistered,
the paint fairly boiled, and the clothing of those who were at work on her had to
be kept saturated with water, and most of them were badly scorched about the face
and hands. Ina few deys after this fire, the Corporation Trustees purchased the
stock of the Company, and it passed into their control, whereupon the Company
dropped the word ‘Independent’ from their name, and it was thereafter known
as ‘‘ Protection Engine Company No. 1,” and * Hose Company No. 1" being a
part of the organization.

In response to the call for troops at the beginning of the rebellion, in April, 1861,
thirty-nine members of the Fire Department enlisted. This almost disorganized the
company. They added by recruits, however, and sustained the reputation of the
company. Of the men who enlisted, five rose to the rank of Lieutenant, seven to
the rank of Captain, two to Major, two to Colonel and one to Brigadier General.
Three were killed, viz., Col. Joseph P. Lesslie, Capt. Julian A. Robins and Cyrus
Bair. S8ix others died in the service, or afier returning home.

On the 8th of June, 1866, a fire broke out in the old frame building which stood
on the east twenty-two feet of the lot now oceupied by the Wright House Block. The
supply of hose was limited and very poor, bursting about as fast as it could be
attached ; wrapping and tying were resorted to, as before, and men went down on
their knees and pressed the holes with their hands, and the progress of the flumes
was disputed, inch by inch, until the supply of water at the corner of the public
square was exhausted, and the engine had to be shifted one square south, and, not
having hose sufficient to reach the fire, the water was thrown through the open
hose into the cistern opposite the Wright House, and the engine moved back. In the
mean time, the fire had spread to the east, enveloping the Kirtley House, Bennett’s
grocery and Berst's livery stable, whieh then stood on the corner of Indiana and
Center streets, the fire endangering the new Baptist Church on the opposite corner,
which was saved by great exertions. The fire spread, also, to the west, destroying
a couple of small frame houses, and a new, two-story frame house next to the Wright
House.  This latter building had just been enlarged and refurnished ; the greater
portion of the furniture was saved. Lane’s jewelry store, on Buffalo street, was the
wext to go; but, before the fire had a fair start, the next building north was torn
down, which, with the persistent efforts of the Department, checked the spreading
of the flames in that direction. Everything was * licked up by the flames” from
where Lathrop’s saloon now stands to South Center, and east on Center to Indiana
street. The testimony of strangers then in town was that the Company was supe-
rior, a8 a working organization, to any they had ever seen. The destruction of so
much property was a heavy blow to the prosperity of the town, and it is probable
that much of it might have been saved by a judicious investment in hose. It
showed the danger in erecting light, frame buildings in the business portion of the
town, and, also, the need of str hening and fully equipping the Fire Depart-
ment. Before this month closed, a new supply of hose was procured, and the
Lake City Hook and Ladder Company No. 1 was organized.

The first record of a call for a meeting to be held was for July 2, 1867, and
singed by C. W. Card, Foreman, and P. L. Runyan, Jr., Secretary ; but the records
have been burned (in 1871). They had an excellent truck built by Martin & Sons,
of Warsaw, which was completed and accepted November 16, 1867, and, on the
12th of the following December, the Company was fully organized, equipped and
ready for service.

In the spring of 1868, the Board of Trustees determined to thoroughly equip
the Department, and contracted with the Silshy Manufacturing Company for a
steam fire engine, first-class in every respect except size ; also, a new hose-cart and a
large supply of new hose. These were received and tested, to the satisfaction of
the Board, June 29, 1868, A substantial brick engine-house was erected in 1867,
and, with a well-organized Hook and Ladder Company, and the old reliable Pro-
tection Company No. 1 took charge of the steamer well contented. In their hands
* Kosciusko No. 2" (which they soon became expert in handling) is almost will-
ing to challenge the world for quick and effective work.

About the time Protection No. 1 took charge of the steamer, a company under
the name of *Young America No. 2, organized, with L. C. Wiltshire, as Fore-
man; Clinton Walton, First Assistant; Joe A. Brewer, Second Assistant; G. E.
Runyan, Secretary, and M. L. Crawford, Treasurer. The members, numbering
thirty-five, were young, ranging from sixteen to twenty-one years. They kept
up their organization something over a year and did good work; many of
them, however, removed from town and the organization was abandoned.

January 14, 1871, about midnight, a fire was discovered in-the back part of
Card’s storeroom in Empire Block, a ‘three-story brick, 90x132 feet, fronting on
Buffalo street. The lower floor was divided into six large storerooms; the sec-
ond floor into offices; the third floor contained the town hall and lodge rooms,
occupied by the Odd Fellows, Masons, Grand Army of the Republic and Good
Templars. There were no fire-walls in the building but one, and it had been
pierced by a hall, which extended from north to south through the entire building
on the second floor. The fire was fed by a quantity of oils and varnish stored in
the room where it originated, and as it burned through the second floor the draft
in the hall swept it through the entire building. All that the fire department

bers of Pr Company organized “The Never Fails, No. 2. James Milice,
one of the old charter members, was elected Foreman ; George Pratt, First
Assistant; Joseph A. Wright, Second Assistant; W. B. Funk, Secretary, and
John 8. Wynant, Treasurer. They were soon initiated, as fire broke out in
J. B. Skinner's residence, March 18. +The Never Fails” were on hand and
demonstrated their skill in the use of the old engine, winning laurels in this emer-
gency.

On the night of August 19, 1871, a fire broke out in 0. P. Jaques’ livery stable,
on Center street. The flames were bursting through the roof when discovered and
it was found impossible to save all of the horses. ~From the stable the fire spread
to Musselman’s law office, thence to the Baptist Church and to William Conrad’s
fine residence ; this might have been saved, but Mr, Conrad, who was Foreman of
Protection Company, gave the order to let his house go and save the church, and
every effort was put forth in that direction, with some prospect of success, until
Berst’s livery stable, north of the church, caught fire, which, with a frame dwelling
between it and the church, were soon enveloped in flames. The bell-tower on the
north end of the engine-house also began to burn, and their efforts to save the
church proved abortive. he Never Fails made a gallant fight to save the engine-
house, and, to the surprise of every one, succeeded, although it was considerably
damaged.

In the mean time, William Conrad's house and out-buildings were burning,
while the steamer was working to save the frame building on the corner of Center
and High streets, and the Lake Citys were trying to prevent the flames from
spreading to the north; this proved impossible, owing to the five catching a num-
ber of frame stables, which stood along the alley. The large stacks of dry wagon-
timber, belonging to Mr. Conrad, on the rear end of his lot, also burned. The
frame on the corner having heen saved, Protection Company next tried to flank
the fire on the east, but the hose-men found themselves surrcunded by fire and
were driven back, and, uniting their efforts with the Lake Citys, made a desperate
effort to save the large frame dwelling belonging to W. 8. Marshall, Esq., on the
east side of the square. Al felt that unless this building could be saved, a greater
portion of the northeastern part of town would be doomed to destruction. The
fight was long and stubborn, but the building was saved, while the fine brick resi-
dence of Mr. Epperson, directly north of it, was destroyed.

The fire was now under control. Out of the entire square, but four buildings
had been saved ; yet all felt that too much praise could not be given to the Fire
Department. The victory, however, was not gained a whit too soon, for every cis-
tern within reach had been exhausted. There was no rain, and a dense cloud of
smoke hovered over Warsaw and the region roundabout, as, in addition to this
fire, about October 1, through carelessness of an engineer on the railroad, fire was
started in the tamarack between East and West Warsaw, which raged for weeks,
to the great danger of property on either side of it. During the first three
months of 1872, fires were frequent.

February 14, 1873, the Trustees purchased a powerful hand-engine, which had
been used a short time by the fire department of Cleveland, Ohio; this was placed
in care of ‘“The Never Fails” and old * Protection’ was again set aside. The
Department was now fully equipped with first-class apparatys. The Chief, Joseph
A. Funk, has the confidence of the officers and members, who render prompt obedi-
dence to his orders ; and it is proper to state that the efficiency of the Department
is largely owing to his untiring efforts; he has been kept at the head of the Depart-
ment almost constantly from the first organization ; his management has been emi-
nently satisfactory, and such as to secure almost every advantage it has yet received.
Mr. Funk has been ably seconded by William Conrad, Foreman of Protection No.
1, for many years, who also takes great pride in the Department, spending his
time and money freely to add to its effici Under his z Protection
Company has been placed on a firm footing. The Company is neatly uniformed,
has money at interest, and a respectable balance in the treasury. Perry Brown,
Chief of the Hose Department, is always on hand, and is “irrepressible.””

Independent Hose Company No. 1, was organized June 6, 1876, chiefly for
sporting purposes, and is to a great extent composed of members of other com-
panies, but has a full complement of men for service. The Company is not subject
to the orders of the Chief, or of the City Council, as they own their outfit—a
very handsome hose-carriage from the Babcock Manfacturing Company, purchased
at a cost of $300. This Company is not backward in responding to an alarm of
fire, however, and when they do so, they use the hose belonging to the Depart-
ment.

The effective department now consists of : Protection Company No. 1, 26 mem-
bers, and Hose Company No. 1, 13 members, in one organization; Never Fails
No. 2, 18 members, and Hose No. 2, 12 members, in one organization ; Lake City
Hook and Ladder No. 1,15 members; Independent Hose Company No. 1, 16
members.

The apparatus consists of one Silsby steamer, cost $4,500; one serviceable hand-
engine, $750; one old hand-engine, not in use, $300; one hook and ladder truck,
with full complement of hooks, ropes, chains, etc., $450; three hose-carts, cost not
given; total, $6,000. Fifteen hundred feet of good hose, chiefly rubber, to which
may be added the hose-carriage of the Independent.

Realizing the value of time at a fire, Mr. John Grabner, the engineer of Protec-
tion Company, invented a blower to be attached to the engine, by the use of which
the fire can be hastened immensely. The first record of this kind was at La Porte,
July 4, 1877, when steam was made from cold water, and a stream was thrown
through 100 feet of hose to a distance of 105 feet from the nozzle, in five minutes
and thirteen seconds from the time the match was applied to the kindling. Again,
at Goshen, September 5, 1877, the same test was given, and resulted in accomplish-
ing the same feat in four minutes and fifty-six seconds, Warsaw has good reason
to be proud of her Fire Department.

Great praise is due to Capt. W. S. Hemphill for bringing together the notes
from which this record is made. -
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